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Message from Chairman
of the Board of Directors

In the fiscal year 2023, the Wastewater Management Authority oversaw

wastewater treatment systems for local administrative organizations across all regions

of Thailand. However, the issue of wastewater continues to arise, leading to a number

of subsequent challenges. It, therefore, becomes a societal issue that has to be addressed
immediately, failing which it might impact Thai people's future quality of life.

The Wastewater Management Authority needs to regularly review and revise its risk
management plan to ensure alignment with present circumstances. This is achieved by examining
and analyzing the issues in each region to enhance effective construction, formulating a
wastewater treatment management plan, and establishing a wastewater management network
through the organization of wastewater clinics to educate the public on the installation and
maintenance of wastewater treatment systems and grease traps. Additionally, efforts are made
to raise public awareness about the pollution caused by domestic wastewater, with the aim of
educating the public on the proper treatment of wastewater before it is discharged into public
water bodies.

In 2024, the Wastewater Management Authority aims to execute its operational plan with
the vision of “managing domestic wastewater using environmentally friendly innovations for
the benefit of society." The Wastewater Management Authority aims to improve organizational
efficiency by implementing a strong and trustworthy management system and to promote
sustainable growth to ensure effective operations.

On this occasion, | express my gratitude to the management team, officials, and all
sectors who have collaborated diligently and willingly to successfully accomplish the nation's
wastewater management mission. This leads to public benefits and promotes the development
of wastewater management processes that are based on comprehensive economic principles to
ensure that water resources are distributed in a sustainable and sufficient manner to meet the

needs of the local community.

Mr. Pornpoth Penpas

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Message from Director General
of the Wastewater Management Authority

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) is a state enterprise under the

Ministry of Interior with mandates to provide centralized wastewater treatment systems
and domestic wastewater management services for local administrative organizations, as
well as to integrate cooperation in wastewater management with all sectors under the vision
of “managing domestic wastewater using environmentally friendly innovations for the benefit
of society.”

In the fiscal year 2023, the Wastewater Management Authority focused on managing the
organization to be highly efficient and building the capacity of personnel at all levels to support
the implementation of important tasks in accordance with the policies of the government and
the Ministry of Interior. Furthermore, it constructed the Water Quality Management Center, an
environmentally friendly domestic wastewater treatment system that can harmoniously coexist
with the local community. The upper facility is designed to accommodate the community's
recreational needs, including the construction of a football field, gym, playground, park, and
aquarium as a wastewater management learning center. Additionally, the facility also reuses
treated wastewater for appropriate beneficial purposes.

As part of its Corporate Social Responsibility initiative (CSR in progress), the Wastewater
Management Authority encouraged stakeholder engagement and raised awareness among
the people and youth regarding the significance of reducing wastewater contamination at its
source. This is a critical mechanism for generating continuous, sustainable, and systematic

solutions to domestic wastewater issues.

Mr. Chira Wongburana

Director General of the Wastewater Management Authority
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HISTOrY SOt Sthe svwastewater
viandagement-AUutnority

Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) is a state enterprise under the Ministry of Interior.
WMA was established under the Royal Decree Establishing the Wastewater Management Authority on 15
August 1995, necessitated by the increasingly critical state of water quality in the lower Chao Phraya river
basin and the understanding that the solution must be carried out continuously. Therefore, Wastewater
Management Authority (WMA) was founded under the Royal Decree Establishing the Wastewater
Management Authority B.E. 2538 (1995) and the subsequent amendments in 1997 and 2005. The
objective of the establishment as stated in Article 6 (page 4) is “to provide the centralized wastewater
treatment systems to treat the wastewater within and outside the wastewater management areas, as
well as to provide any other wastewater treatment related maintenance or services with economic
efficiency”. Currently, WMA’s management covers every province of Thailand, as mandated by the

Cabinet resolution on 22 September 2020.

Visions, Obligations, and Missions of the Wastewater Management Authority

Vision

Mission

1) Design, construct, and manage domestic wastewater collection and treatment systems
throughout the country

2) Rehabilitate and manage domestic wastewater collection and treatment systems
throughout the country

3) Provide services or ongoing activities related to effective wastewater management in
an economical manner

4) Development of environmentally friendly innovations of wastewater treatment

systems for the benefit of society

Values
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Mr.Pornpoth Penpas

Chairman
Age 57

Education

years

1987 Bachelor of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
1990 Master of Engineering, Northrop University,

: United States of America

2003 Bachelor of Public Administration Program,

Sukhothai Thammathirat Open University

Work Experience
2023 - Present
2022 - 2023
2020 - 2022
2019 - 2020
2018 - 2019

{2017 - 2018
{2012 - 2017

i UszaRnsiinausy

Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of
Interior (Community Development and
Local Administration)

Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of
Interior (Internal Security Affairs)

Director General, Department of Public
Works and Town & Country Planning
Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of
Interior (Disaster and Urban Development)
Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of
Interior (Administration)

Sa Kaeo Governor, Ministry of Interior
Deputy Director General, Department of
Disaster Prevention and Mitigation, Ministry

of Interior

- National Defence Course (Class 57) of Academic year 2014-2015,

National Defence College, National Defence Studies Institute

- The Program of Senior Executive on Justice Administration
: (Class 24), Judicial Training Centre

- T Executive Program on the Rule of Law and Development
: (Class 3), Thailand Institute of Justice
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Senior Executive Development Program (Class 46), Damrong
Rajanubhab Institute, Ministry of Interior

MOI Executive Competency Development Program for
Excellence (Batch 5), Damrong Rajanubhab Institute, Ministry
of Interior

Good Governance for Sustainable Development Program

for Senior Executives (Class 1), Office of the Public Sector
Development Commission

Diploma of Environmental Governance Program for Senior
Executives (Class 1), King Prajadhipok’s Institute

Financial and Fiscal Management Program for Senior

Useine Executives (Class 1), the Comptroller General’s Department

- wingmIEuIMIIEAUgIUNIsUIISEes (Juiles Jui 1) - Leadership Development Program “Following the Royal

UNTINYIRE U UNTIDINY

Initiative and Sufficiency Economy Philosophy” (Batch 1),
2011, National Defence College, National Defence Studies
Uagtusseiumianssunisigismna/mineaudy Institute

WA, 2562 - 2566  nssunsnsiidhesndauialssnelne - Senior Executive Program in Urban Administration (Urban

Leader Class 1), Navamindradhiraj University

° v o ' v v ¢y 4 oo da Y
Iuuuviseyarmanning (iu)/selieuiniiteasewianning/ |

s1ensiinealeanu (Connected Transactions) Y89nNssuN1s#se | Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
HuImnssziugaiisesgiamng

lad 2019 - 2023  Member of the Board of Directors, Electricity

agencies currently held:

Generating Authority of Thailand

Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected

i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

None

Annual Report 2023 Wastewater Management Authority (\ 1"
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Mr.Thongrob Danampai
Committee
Age 64 years

Education

- Master of Commerce, Thammasat University , The Thai Bar
Association (Class 33)
- Bachelor of Laws Program (Honor), Ramkhamhaeng

University

Work Experience
Present - Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Managing Director, Halal Global Trading

Company Limited

Director of the Board, Wastewater Management
Authority Committee, Ministry of Interior
Chief Executive Officer, M Thai Corporate

Restructuring Co., Ltd

Legal Consultant (Freelance)

Independent Director, Safari World Public
Company Limited

Previous
i 2018 - 2019
i 2015 - 2017

Manager, Islamic Bank Asset Management
Director of the Board, Public Warehouse
Organization, Ministry of Commerce
Advisor, the Minister of Industry

Director of the Board, RATCH Group Public
Company Limited

£ 2015 - 2017
£ 2015 - 2017
2015 - 2016 Legal Consultant to the Ministry of Digital
Economy and Society

2014 — 2015 Director of the Board, Chief Executive Officer,

: Director of the Board of Nomination and
Compensation, Director of the Board of Risk
Management, Director of the Board of Compliance
and Governance, and Managing Director, Amanah

Leasing Public Company Limited
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T18n15ineqleeiu (Connected Transactions) ¥@9NISUNTHID

HuUImnssziugaiisesgiaving
1idl

£ 2001 - 2013

1992 - 2013

2013 - 2013 Director of the Board and Acting Managing

Director, Islamic Bank of Thailand

Chairman of the Executive Board, M Thai Legal
Corporation Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Managing Director, M Thai Corporate
Restructuring Co., Ltd.

¢ Training

Security Management and Leadership for Executives
Programme (SML) (Class 1) in 2020

Corporate Governance Code Program for Directors of the
Board and Senior Executives of State-Owned Enterprises
Regulator and Public Organizations (PDI) (Class 16) in 2018
Diploma of Capital Market Academy Programs (Class 23)
Diploma of National Defence Course (Class 57)

Diploma of Director Certification Program (DCP) of 10D in 2014
Higher Diploma Program in Top Executive Program in
Commerce and Trade (TEPCoT) (Class 5), University of the Thai
Chamber of Commerce

Diploma Program in Negotiation, Mediation, and Crisis
Solving Techniques (Class 1), Thai Arbitration Institute
Diploma of Senior Governing Executive Program (Class 1),
The Thai Bar Association

Advanced Certificate Course in Politics and Governance

in Democratic Systems for Executives (Class 10), King
Prajadhipok's Institute

Advanced Certificate Course in Public Economic Management
for Executives (Class 3), King Prajadhipok's Institute

Advance Certificate Course in Public Administration and Law

for Executives (Class 9), King Prajadhipok's Institute

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

i None

i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

i None
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Mr. Khanat Kruthkul
Committee
Age 50 years

Education

- Doctoral/Equivalent Degree

- Diploma of the Thai Board of Internal Medicine, the
Medical Council of Thailand

- Diploma of the Thai Board of Cardiology, the Medical
Council of Thailand

- Certificate of the Thai Board of Family Medicine, the
Medical Council of Thailand

- Master of Science Program in Medical Science,

Chulalongkorn University

- Bachelor Degree

- Doctor of Medicine, Khon Kaen University
- Bachelor of Science Program in Applied Statistics, Udon

Thani Rajabhat University

Work Experience

- President, Health and Elderly Establishment Confederation
- President, Nutrition for Sports and Health Association

- Chairman, Foundation for Society, Health and Environment

- Healthcare Services Committee, the Thai Chamber of

Commerce

- Advisor, Medical and Health Device Industry Group, the

Federation of Thai Industries

- Medical Physician, Cardio Vascular Metabolic Center, Faculty

of Medicine, Ramathibodi Hospital



Uszinmsiinausu i Training

- Advance Audit Committee Program - AACP 43/2022 - Advance Audit Committee Program — AACP 43/2022
duANAdLESN@nTUNTINNISUSELne (10D) The Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
- Financial Statements for Director - FSD 44/2021 - Financial Statements for Directors — FSD 44/2021
duAuAsLESNE@nTUNTINNISUSELne (10D) The Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
- Director Certification Program - DCP 309/2021 - Director Certification Program - DCP 309/2021
duAuAdLEsN@nTUNTINNISUS B e (10D) The Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
- CompTIA Healthcare IT Technician Certificate - CompTIA Healthcare IT Technician Certificate
'f]i]igﬁuﬁﬁ\‘iﬁ’lLmﬁ\iﬂsiumﬁgaa’mﬁﬁl/‘wﬁ’aEN’I‘LJ?)"‘L! Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
- ANENITUNNT USS“@VIUS%ﬁ'u?luﬁaqmﬁmmimmﬂéam (uag.) agencies currently held:
- Committee Member, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
SurutiuvFeyadmanning Gu)/medevidniitensemadnning/ i (TCo)
518 sfifigaleaiu (Connected Transactions) ¥a4NssuNTW3D
éﬂ?ﬁﬁizﬁ‘ug@ﬁﬁﬁia%’ﬁm%ﬁa Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
Taidl transactions of senior executives with public enterprises
§ None
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- wé’nqm Non-revenue Water Management (Leakage Control)
Usgmadiu asdn1seusinile sewinsussmavesditu (ICA)

- vidngns thudmsumnuasseiugs Ui 9 (LUa.9) nyavmamuAs

- vidngns fuimnsseiugeumsUinsuiandles (mmuasguil 4)
WNINRIUIUNTBINY

- 1ingns Leadership Succesion Program (LSP) i;'uﬁ 6 yails
an3euaziniueininasyg (IRDP)

- wingms Msmiuguanan1sdmsunIsINMIwaEUTIIIEAUgUe
oufnsiugua (Regulator) 3g3aviauazasdimsumnay fufl 16
aondunsguninin
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NSSUNIS
019 63 U
Mr.Prinya Yamasamit)
Committee
Age 63 years

Education

- Master of Engineering (Sanitary Engineering), Chulalongkorn
University
- Bachelor of Engineering (Civil Engineering), King Mongkut's

University of Technology Thonburi

Work Experience

Present - Advisor, C.M.C Company Limited

Previous - Governor, Metropolitan Waterworks Authority

- President, Thai Water Works Association

- Director of the Board, the State-Owned
Enterprise Labor Relations Committee

- Advisor, Triamn Udom Suksa Alumni Association
under the Royal Patronage

- Advisor to Board Members, Thailand Concrete

Association

Training

- Non-revenue Water Management (Leakage Control) Program

foin Japan, Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)

- Senior Executive Program in Public Administration (Class 9), Bangkok

- Senior Executive Program in Urban Administration and

: Development (Class 4), Navamindradhiraj University

- Leadership Succession Program (LSP) (Class 6), Institute of

i Research and Development for Public Enterprises (IRDP)

- Corporate Governance Code Program for Directors of the

: Board and Senior Executives of State-Owned Enterprises
Regulator and Public Organizations (Class 16)

- Power of Kingdom (Class 5), Chulalongkorn University

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

¢ None

i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

¢ None
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- #5999 INTENTIMNYY (T 2558)
- so%BUANITUTRWIEIAAN1SAN (¥ 2554)

- seeasuUAnsuNsAIAelL @ 2553)

idomgamesnuduyuuasfvunsinaui
nsunsmnelu @ 2551)

- fewnen1snesdsaiuwasRRILINITRATR
nsunsmnelu @ 2550)

Uszafnsilnausu

- udngmsmstioatusizenandng (e, fuil 55 Inendetesiy
T1v0UINs dardulrnsdesiulssine
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01y 63 U
Mr.Whichai Phochanakij
Committee
Age 63 years

Education

- Master of Political Science, Thammasat University

- Bachelor of Laws Program, Thammasat University

- Bachelor of Economics, Ramkhamhaeng University

Work Experience

Present

i Previous

- Chairman, Public Warehouse Organization
Committee, Ministry of Commerce

- Director-General, Department of Internal Trade
(2018-2020)

- Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of
Commerce (2016)

- Inspector General, Ministry of Commerce (2015)

- Deputy Director-General, Department of Business
Development (2011)

- Deputy Director-General, Department of Internal
Trade (2010)

- Cost and Pricing Specialist, Department of Internal
Trade (2008)

- Bureau of Market System Promotion and
Administration, Department of Internal Trade (2007)

Training

- National Defence Course (Batch 55), National Defence

College, National Defence Studies Institute

) , i - Senior Executive Development Program (Class 2/7)
o v =] 1 s [ 4 v = a v s s s L4 .
uILUVtEYRAmEINIWE (Mw)/5eTauiuniinensamanning/ |

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other

agencies currently held:

Chairman, Public Warehouse Organization Committee, Ministry

i of Commerce

Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected

i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

H

i None
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Uszaansanen

- USgyeyven DBA (Doctor of Business Administration) University
of Northern Philippines

- YSan Sguseanaumans (MPPM) aandudnudie
NAIUUIASAENS

a

- USyenn3 UIssInaviudin (M3manm) svnInenaesuigeaugdn

a

- USyages S3ansUnudie umInedesiaainm

UsgdAn1sinau

Uagdu - ASIIAMIUEINT U39 Usnen enedi Acretiu $1in

- BUNTIUNTAAANLNITA UM INNUlEUY
MsUTzdIUATARg

- BUNITUNTFITINAVIAUAZANUTURAYOUS D IAL

3
DIANTATNIUUAN

Pagtudsedunienssunisigiamna/miteanudu
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i Present

NSSUNS

o1y 37U
Mr. Asawin Chotipanang
Committee
Age 37 years

Education

- Doctor of Business Administration (DBA), University of

Northern Philippines

- Master of Public and Private Management (MPPM), National

Institute of Development Administration

- Bachelor of Business Administration (Marketing), Suan Dusit

Rajabhat University

- Bachelor of Political Science, Ramkhamhaeng University

Work Experience

- Board of Directors, Bangkok Quality
Development Co. Ltd.

- Member of Subcommittee on Policy
Implementation Monitoring, Metropolitan
Waterworks Authority

- Member of Subcommittee on Corporate
Governance and Social Responsibility,

Fish Market Organization

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

i None

i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
¢ transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

¢ None
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NSSUNS
o1y 57 U
Ms. Wantanee Maneesilasan
Committee
Age 57 years

Uszaansanen Education
- Uygyln Anszuivisgsia aaududieimuuimsaans - Master of Business Administration, National Institute of
- B3ugns @0 ine1nisreuianes Auging1rans Development Administration
UNTIMEREeNIIATINY - Bachelor of Science (Computer Science), University of the
© Thai Chamber of Commerce
UsIAN19919U :
Uagdu - nesumskazUsEs UM fins Ry Work Experience
VI Tou@sn $1im Present - Board of Directors and Chief Financial Officer,
- NITUMNT USTW 159m A5 fiau d1im Openserve Co., Ltd.
- nssuns VST uedi@gdm shife - Board of Directors, Third Dragon Co., Ltd.
~ nssums U3 Aniia 8ad wad $1in - Board of Directors, Happy Serf Co., Ltd.
- fiUsnw anewAvdiin AugUINIgIe @ty - Board of Directors, Little Hill Place Co., Ltd.
Judnwauuinseans - Advisor, NIDA Alumni Association
- fiUsN¥INTENTINI3ARa Uszan A anvainelulad - Advisor to the Ministry of Finance
d13dunA Telecommunication Sector AU (Telecommunication Sector), in Computer
LﬁTfEJ’JGUWiy Computer Systems Development Systems Development
ohn - 59INTIUNMSHIAN I URAILN SEUULAs TRy TN Previous - Deputy Managing Director, System Development
U3t Twgdu mouiues (1998) $1n (ivnaw) and Financial Accounting, Solution Corner
- n3sunIs U Tewu @59 (Uszmelng) 41da (1998) PCL.
- fiinwinssudnisiinuninennssssuniuay - Board of Directors, Openserve (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
dawandendriinamuauidnig ANEUNUTINYS - Advisor to the Committee on Land, Natural
- mgniiumiﬂizﬁ‘hﬂmzﬂﬁm%msmiﬁau Resources and Environment, Secretariat of the
vinenssssImAuariunndon amfunustegs House of Representatives
- A nwsguuRIeIMInTENTmslne - Member of Subcommittee to the Committee
- danihihesyuuatiuayugsia Uidn Dadadiud $1in on Land, Natural Resources and Environment,
House of Representatives
UsgiRnsilnausu - Advisory Board to the Deputy Minister of Interior
- ¥dngns Director Accreditation Program lay asnAudeasy - Back Office Executive, New system Co., Ltd.
anntunssunisuiening
- wdngns CFO Refresher U 2/2564 lng aaavianyninguia  Training
Uszinelng - Director Accreditation Program by Thai Institute of Directors
- CFO Refresher Program (Batch 2/2021) by Stock Exchange of
i Thailand

Annual Report 2023 Wastewater Management Authority (\ 19



- The Training Program on Benchmarking for Best Practice
in Total Quality Management for SMEs in Malaysia by The
Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship [AOTS],
Japan in cooperation with National Productivity Corporate
[NPC] under support of Ministry of Economy , Trade and
Industry [METI],Japan

- Innovation Strategy and Balanced Scorecard” by

Management and Psychology Institute

- CMMI Maturity Level 3 of the Software Engineering Institute (USA)

- wingms seuuanawITUyd JD Edwards

- "ingms Magic Language Tools 1y UT¥W lwAnwanyiuag
(WUszinelng) iin

- wﬁﬂqm Seven Hurdle Accounting System

- 1éngms Oracle Database lng U3 oo 1A Taufiud
(WUszinelng) iin

- %angms Empowerment Boss 1y nsuduaIugnamnIsy
NILNTNYAAMNTTY

- "ingms Smart team leader lng U INeGELTing

- MAngns Digital Marketing US¥m isaRunauLn $n

- wﬁﬂqm e-learning CFO’s Orientation Course (Thai Version)
lng guddudSunmsiannanuinaiaunainnannindum
Uszinelng

1Y = v v a ¥ & v 1Y 5 o
- NaNgAI lR1ean NPAEs snuselauazduning wioundninaeian

WNedeeiun® lag @5snnsandu

- widngns TFRS 15 eldandaaiviiugniuasnansgnuann
madeuulasnasgiu lag USen Bneusuuwasduuusssudi Iin

UagUuanseinunianssunssgiamne/vmuleaudu
Laidl

o v = ' o v ¢ v a A o aa 1Y v ¢ :
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- The Training Program on Benchmarking for Best Practice

in Total Quality Management for SMEs in Malaysia by the
Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship (AOTS),
Japan in cooperation with National Productivity Corporate
(NPC) under support of Ministry of Economy, Trade and
Industry (METI), Japan

- Innovation Strategy and Balanced Scorecard” by

Management and Psychology Institute

- CMMI Maturity Level 3 of the Software Engineering Institute (USA)
- JD Edwards ERP Software

- Magic Language Tools by Magic Software (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
- Seven Hurdle Accounting System

- Oracle Database by Oracle System (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

i - Empowerment Boss by Department of Industrial Promotion,

Ministry of Industry

- Smart Team Leader by Mahidol University
- Digital Marketing Training Program by Ready planet Co., Ltd.
- E-learning CFO’s Orientation Course (Thai Version) by

Thailand Securities Institute (TSI), Stock Exchange of
Thailand

- Insight NPAEs on Income and Assets with Tax-related Criteria

by Revenue Department

- TFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the

Impact of Standard Changes by Dharmniti Seminar and
Training Co., Ltd.

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

i None

i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

i None
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UsgdAnsnun
- U3l M.Sc. (Business Administration) Strayer College
- Y3galn M.Sc. (Engineering Management)
The George Washington University
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U52IRN1579U
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S = o &
- NUINWINUNRINATIETUU (Lﬂiﬂiﬂﬁﬂiﬂﬂm?@)

L]

Tagtu
ofin - 36:1Qa"mEmWiﬁﬂﬁmmﬁmwﬁmﬁﬁmz
- ;:Ja"wu’mmiﬁwﬁmmﬁmim?ﬁﬁwﬁ dinau
Uimavilaesny
- Qﬁwuwm%ﬁwﬁﬂ%’mmwﬁ 2 dinauuimani
GREYERIY

- @YnIsnse ddneuusmnilansisue

Uszdan1siinausy
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- vidngms madisssunaseslussuuyszdulang dmiutinuims
seiugs Juil 16 andumszunindd

- vdngns MIUBnsnuARSTIAENgVINENNTY Uil 13
an1unszuninin

- wiangms NMsiaTnUIMITEAUES | JUImsdIusIeNg

(uva. 2) Ju 13 delnnuenenssunsinnsnsnaEeu
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Present

01y 54 U

Mr. Teerarak Sangsnit
Representative of the Ministry of Finance
(1 October 2022 - 28 February 2023)
Age 54 years

Education

- Master of Science (Business Administration), Strayer College

- Master of Science (Engineering Management), the George

Washington University

- Bachelor of Business Administration Program in Finance,

the University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce

Work Experience

- Bond Market Advisor (Senior Economist)
Previous - Deputy Director General, Public Debt
: Management Office
- Director, Payment Administration Bureau, Public
Debt Management Office
- Director, Debt Management Bureau 2, Public
Debt Management Office
- Department Secretary, Public Debt
Management Office
Training

- Public Economic Management for Senior Executives (Class 9),

King Prajadhipok’s Institute

- Politics and Governance in Democratic Systems for

Executives (Class 16), King Prajadhipok'’s Institute

- Public Administration and Public Law (Class 13), King

Prajadhipok’s Institute

- Senior Executive Development Programme 2 (Class 13),

Office of the Civil Service Commission

i Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
) ) i agencies currently held:

° £ - ' o ¥ ¢ Y = a o o o v ¢ H
MUIUNUNIBYAATANNING (v!u)/s']awauswmaﬂsamanmwa/ - Board of Directors, PTT LNG Company Limited
i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

i None
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-USgylm  M.B.A. (Finance) Georgia State University, USA

- Uy USmsgsiatadie (N1sRuNsswnAng)
AuEIRvIANERS LAY SUYT
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- vdngmsmstieatusizenaning (We.) fuil 62 Inendudesiu
59e11dnT andivnisdesiuseina

- vidngmInisilesnisunaseslussuauyssunulay dmsudnuims
seiuga (UUs) Juil 21 amdumssunindn

- wingmsaitng nsmtuguatanisdmsunIsuNISUALEUSINIIEAU
gavedaeAnIMAugULa (Regulator) $53a MM wavesANITIVITY
uil 25 anumszunindn

- wﬁﬂgmi Super Series iiuﬁl 3 “Leadership & Effective Corporate
Culture” yadfaniuidbuasiaiuiesdnininsy

- éngmstinuImssedugs fuil 7 oy aaenssumstisenis
WALTOU N.W.

- vidngastintAmsmsnds quil 2 anntiiveimsiasugiauaznisnds
NIENTNNIAG

- ‘Viﬁﬂqm Columbia Senior Executives Program, Columbia Business School

- wﬁﬂgmi Finance for Executives, Kellogg School of Management

UJagduaseiunianssunissgiamne/muleauau
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i Present

i Previous

WINUNS:NS2ONISAAD
(1 DunAY 2566 - 30 NUYNEU 2566)
o1y 57U

Ms. Jindarat Viriyataveekul
Representative of the Ministry of Finance
(1 March 2023 - 30 September 2023)
Age 57 years

Education Record

- Master of Business Administration (Finance), Georgia State

University, USA

- Bachelor of Business Administration (Banking and Finance),

Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn
University

i Work Experience

- Deputy Director General, Public Debt Management Office
Acting Public Debt Advisor

- Director, Public and Planning Bureau, Public Debt
Management Office

- Director, Public Infrastructure Project Management
Bureau, Public Debt Management Office

- Director, Bond Market Development Bureau, Public
Debt Management Office

Training
- National Defense Course (Batch 62), National Defence College,

National Defence Studies Institute

- Politics and Governance in Democratic Systems for Executives

(Batch 21), King Prajadhipok’s Institute

- Certified Training Program on Corporate Governance for

Directors and Senior Executives for State Enterprises Regulatory
Organization (Regulator) (Batch 25), King Prajadhipok’s Institute

- Super Series Training Program on “Leadership & Effective

Corporate Culture” (Batch 3), Institute of Research and
Development for Public Enterprises

i - Civil Service Executive Development Program (Batch 7), Office of

the Civil Service Commission

- Fiscal Management Program (Batch 2), Economics and Finance

Academy, Ministry of Finance

- Columbia Senior Executives Program, Columbia Business School
i - Finance for Executives, Kellogg School of Management

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

i Board of Directors, Treasury Asset Development Co., Ltd., Ministry
fatd of Finance

s1en15iineleeiy (Connected Transactions) ¥84n55uNNS¥38 |

Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

¢ None
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Present

¢ Former

01y 56 U
Mr.Chanon Vasiksiri

Representative Committee of the Ministry of Interior

Age 56 years

Education

- Master of Public Administration, Hartford University, USA

- Bachelor of Arts, Political Science, Kasetsart University

Work Experience

- Vice Governor of Sakon Nakhon

- Vice Governor of Surin

- Assistant Permanent Secretary for Interior

- Director of Policy and Planning Bureau

- Inspector General, Department of Local
Administration

- Local Administration Specialists

- Director of Local Information Technology Center

Training

- National Defence Course (Class 63), National Defence

College, National Defence Studies Institute

- High Level Executive, Ministry of Interior
- Diploma ICT Management for Non-ICT Executive, NSTDA

- New Political Leader Course, King Prajadhipok’s Institute

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

i None

i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
¢ transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

¢ None
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Mr. Pinsak Suraswadi
Representative Committee of the Ministry of

Uszannshnen

- muguzuémm #9NT7IVen @0ty Odense Un|ver5|ty Denmark

- U‘EZ‘UZU’WIW ANYIFER TN UTR mmmsm%maaamm
oty Stirling University, Scotland

- Bygn3 endanstaudin @191inemansnimesia
PHAINTAUMINE Y

UsgdAn1sinau
1 9.0, 2565 - YaqUu SRURNTIATNALIATY NTMAURANLATIY
1 n.8. 2564 - 30 N.8. 2565 38IUdANTENTIMSNEINTEISUIALDE
AWINTRY NILNTININNTTITUYIA
uazAawIndon
9 5., 2563 - 30 N.8. 2564 {ATIVTIVNIINTENTIN
wswmnsﬁssmwaumwmaau
nIEMTIMINeNIsTITALAYALInGeL
T990BURANTUNTNG NI IVIEIALAE
etk nsuvEwenTmMmsaLarei
Fe90BURNTUENEY WistA dn iU
wag gy nIugneULieYd dniln
wawugily
Hemnen1san i idonasinn
nimENImza MeRkmeia wasth
WAL NN INMIAUAETIBEN

8 .M. 2562 - 8 §.A. 2563

8 §l.b. 2560 — 2 1.A. 2562

1 W.A. 2555 — 7 il.8. 2560

Uszaumsal wsan1sUfURUNLAY

W.A. 2552 - 2554 AZNTIUNTANALBYSNBUNLAE
sysuALiUszInAlng auianeysny
UnuarsIsUIRLeUsEMAlne
Hidomamesmasudsnden
FNaYRTITH
AMENTTUNTUSMIAGALADINTNEINT
yuTUURaEEReglonadninau
FamTmeneansiasvalladusieni
AVSIA0AIMUNELaAMENTINNT
ngmsfiansansenumsine
waﬂskuaaLmaaumuimaamwumu
mah dnenulovneuay
WNLNSNENN TS Aas AN Eey
ﬁﬂ?ﬂmv-msauﬂisumﬁmﬂm
NNTAUITN W50 ANETUNTUTING
Samsnswernsmaziauazaneil

WA, ... anHRTYARLATR (FuT.)

A 2555 — 2559
w.e. 2556 - Yagtu

N.A. 2557 — 2559

A 2557
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{8 Jan. 2019 - 8 Dec. 2020

£ 8 Jun. 2017 - 2 Jan. 2019

{1 May 2012 - 7 Jun. 2017

2013 - present

: 2014 - 2016

£ 2014

Natural Resources and Environment
Age 50 years

Education

- Doctor of Philosophy (Biology), Odense University, Denmark
- Master of Science (Aquaculture), Stirling University, Scotland
- Bachelor of Science (Marine Science), Chulalongkorn

: University

Work Experience
i 1 0Oct. 2022 - present

Director General, Pollution Control
Department

1 Sep. 2021 - 30 Sep. 2022 Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry

of Natural Resources and Environment

9 Oct. 2020 - 30 Sep. 2021 Inspector General, Ministry of

Natural Resources and Environment
Deputy Director General, Department
of Marine and Coastal Resources
Deputy Director General,
Department of National Parks,
Wildlife and Plant Conservation
Director, Marine, Coastal

and Mangrove Research and
Development Institute, Department
of Marine and Coastal Resources

Additional Work Experience

2009 - 2011 Associate Board, Bird Conservation Society
of Thailand
2012 - 2016 Environmental Specialist, Court of Justice

Member of Committee on Rural and
Disadvantaged Community Management
Cluster, National Science and Technology
Development Agency

Marine Expert in Expert Committee on the
Environmental Impact Assessment Report
of Water Infrastructure, Office of Natural
Resources and Environmental Policy and
Planning

Advisor to Extraordinary Subcommittee on
Drafting the Act on the Promotion of Marine
and Coastal Resources Management, B.E. ....,
National Legislative Assembly



.A. 2557-2558

w.e. 2563 - Jagtu

w.e. 2563 - Uagdu

A 2563

w.e. 2563 - Uagdu

w.e. 2563 - Uagdu

w.e. 2564 - Jagdu

w.e. 2564 - Jagdu

w.e. 2565 - Uagdu

W.A.2565 - Yagtu

w.e. 2565 - Uagdu
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wismeilzialngegadsdu
AMZNIIUEM TNy ResaNAnY
wwvmansudlatlymedunziaiamny
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{2014 - 2015

2020 - present
i 2020 - present
{2020

i 2020 - present

2020 - present

f 2021 - present

i 2021 - present

{2022 - present
E 2022 - present

{2022 - present

Training

{2021

{2021
L 2023

2023

i None

: None

Member of Subcommittee on Marine and
Coastal Resources Management Reform
Member of Subcommittee on Sustainable
Thailand’s Coastal Erosion Impacts and
Solutions

Member of Extraordinary Committee on
Coastal Erosion Prevention and Marine
Resources Development

Member of Expert Committee on Revision

of the Bachelor of Science Program (Marine
Science and Coastal Management) (2021
Revised Program), Faculty of Technology and
Environment, Prince of Songkhla University
Member of Expert Subcommittee to

the Advisory Committee on Knowledge
Management for the Maritime National
Interests

Member of Working Group on Thailand's
Ocean Quality Index Assessment

Member of Technical Subcommittee on
Preparation of Information to Prevent and
Reduce Bycatch of Marine Mammals in
Capture Fisheries, National Fisheries Policy
Committee, Department of Fisheries
Member of Subcommittee on River Bank
Erosion and Waterway Shallowness Solutions
Member of Technical Advisory Committee
on National Marine Park Management,
Department of National Parks, Wildlife and
Plant Conservation

Member of Working Group on
Establishment of the Department of
Climate Change and Environment, Ministry
of Natural Resources and Environment
Member of Subcommittee on Prevention
and Mitigation of Waste Hazards that
Affects to Public Health

Inspector General of the Ministry of Natural
Resources and Environment Training Program
2021 (1 April 2021 - 30 September 2021), Ministry
of Natural Resources and Environment

Senior Executive Development of the Royal Thai
Police Training Program 2021 (2 August 2021 - 10
September 2021), Royal Thai Police

Climate Action Leaders Forum (Batch 2) (January
— March 2023), Thailand Greenhouse Gas
Management Organization

Senior Executive Program on the Administrative
Justice System (Batch 1) (January — August 2023),
Foundation for Research and Development of the
Administrative Justice System, Administrative Court

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
i agencies currently held:

i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises
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- Uy Amnssumansumiudin
(Gmnssudlaansetinduseynd) Tokyo Institute of
Technology Uizmﬂtﬁj{ju
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Institute of Technology ﬂizmﬂfﬁ"t!u
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Present

i Previous

Mr. Panuwat Triyangkulsri

Representative Committee
of the Ministry of industry
Age 61 years

Education

- M.Eng. Applied Electronics, Tokyo Institute of Technology, Japan
- B.Eng. Electrical Engineering, Tokyo Institute of Technology, Japan

Work Experience

- Secretary of the Cane and Sugar Board

- Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Industry

- General Inspector, Ministry of Industry

- Deputy Director General, Department of Industrial
Promotion

- Director, Bureau of Supporting Industry Development

- Director, Bureau of Industry Services Unit

Development

Training

- National Defence College (Class 60), The National Defence

College of Thailand

- Government Laws for Executives (Class 8), Office of the

Council of State

- Chief Information Officer Development (CIO), Office of the

National Digital Economy and Society Commission

- Advance Certificate Course in Politics and Governance in

Democratic Systems for Executives (Class 24), King Prajadhipok's

Institute

i Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
¢ agencies currently held:

None

5wuquﬁuw‘§agamwé’nw§wé (ﬁ:u)/sﬁH%au‘%ﬁwﬁﬁaﬂsamé'nw%’wé/ Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
: transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

¢ None
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o1y 57 U

Mr. Yuttana Sayochanakon

Representative Committee of Budget Bureau

Age 57 years

Education

- Master of Laws, National Institute of Development Administration

- Master of Development Administration, National Institute of

Development Administration

- Bachelor of Laws Program, Ramkhamhaeng University

Work Experience

Present - Deputy Director, Bureau of Budget
2020 - Advisor, Bureau of Budget

2018 - Director of Division, Budget Bureau
Training

- National Defence Course (Batch 63), National Defence

College, National Defence Studies Institute

- Civil Service Executive Development Program (Batch 1),

Office of the Civil Service Commission, 2019

- Advanced Budget Management, Budget Bureau, 2017

- Administrative Law for Senior Executives, Office of the

Administrative Courts, 2013

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

- Committee Member, Dairy Farming Promotion Organization

of Thailand

- Committee Member, National Innovation

- Committee Member, Geo-Informatics and Space Technology

Development Agency

- Board of Directors, National Nanotechnology Center

- Senior Public Prosecution Committee

i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

i None

Annual Report 2023 Wastewater Management Authority (\ 27



UNESNUANG dSOKIS

UszdAnsAnun
- USe e AMNTINAEnsUNTIN NnIne1asua LNy

Uszdinisineu
Uagdu - 39931M15 (HARU1) MIUsEuATYa
A 2561

W.A. 2559

- 599313 (U3MIiungTunn) n1sussUIunTvwa
- §H8EIIN15 (U313 4) madszUuaTma

Uszdan1siinausy

- MaNgnT Ineraeyinena aantuIngdunisvine1nia

- MNEAT UNUITMTUMUATILAUGS NTUNHUMUAT

- MingnT Executive Coaching U3EM DD

- waNgns NM3MAuQuWanINTITdMIUNTINNSUALEUIIS
an1dunszUningn

- vidngns MITTsnuMATILazngvIneavy antunszUnng

- wdngms msdestusimenandng (We.) fuil 63 Inendudesiu
199113 aniivnsdesiuuseine

- 1ingns Director Certification Program (DCP) Sq'u 321/2022
Thai Directors (I0D)

Uagtumsedumienssunisigiamna/muagaudu
laidl

o ¥ o ' o v ¢ v a A o aa o o ¢

DUAUNUNIDYAAINANNTNE (VW)/3I0UBUTYVINADATDINANNITNE/
a o o . o

T18n15neqleen (Connected Transactions) U@9NISUNISHID

HuSvnssziugaiisesgiavng

Tl

28 I‘ s1g0UUSEONU 2566 ovANISYANISUNIEY

NSSUNMSWUNUNISUS:UIUASKAdD
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Mr. Raksak Suriyaharn
Representative Committee of the
Metropolitan Waterworks Authority
Age 58 years

Education

- Bachelor of Engineering, Khon Kaen University

Work Experience

Present - Deputy Governor (Water Production),

: Metropolitan Waterworks Authority

2018 - Deputy Governor (Western Services),
Metropolitan Waterworks Authority

2016 - Assistant Governor (Service 4), Metropolitan
S Waterworks Authority

Training

- Aerial Defence Program, Air War College
- Metropolitan Executive Course, Bangkok Metropolitan
- Executive Coaching Program, DDI

i - Corporate Governance for Directors and Executives Course,

King Prajadhipok’s Institute

- Public Administration and Law for Executives Course, King

Prajadhipok’s Institute

- National Defence College of Thailand (Class 63)
- Director Certification Program (DCP), Class 321/2022 Thai

Directors (I0D)

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

¢ None

i Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

¢ None
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Present

£ 2015

Mr. Mongkol Valyasevi

Representative Committee of Provincial
Waterworks Authority
Age: 60 years

Education

- Master of Business Administration, Burapha University
- Master of Public Administration, National Institute of

Development Administration

- Bachelor of Engineering (Civil Engineering) Chiang Mai University

Work Experience

- Deputy Governor (Level 3), Provincial
Waterworks Authority

- Acting Assistant Governor (Water Loss Control),
Provincial Waterworks Authority

- Committee, Provincial Waterworks Authority
Foundation

- Chairman, Thai Water Works Association (TWWA)

- Chairman, Provincial Waterworks Provident Fund

- Committee, Provincial Waterworks Employees
Savings Cooperative

- Director, Provincial Waterworks Authority Office 5

Training

- Security Management and Leadership for Executives

- Director Certification Program (DCP) (DCP)

- Advanced Master of Management Program (AMM)

- Digital CEO Program

- Advanced Certificate Course in Public Administration and Law

for Executives

- Workshop for Executives

- Financial Account for Executives Program

- Organization Operation and Strategic Plan Review Program
- Corporate Governance through ITA Program

Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other
agencies currently held:

Committee, Eastern Water Resources Development and
. . Management Public Company Limited
unurzeyarmanning (fu)/seteuitniitensewmanning/

Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected
transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

i None
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Mr. Chira Wongburana
Committee and Secretary
Age 55 years

Education

Master of Business Administration, Chulalongkorn University
Master of Engineering, Environmental Engineering

and Management (Water and Wastewater Engineering)
Asian Institute of Technology (AIT), 2007

Master of Science, Environmental Technology, Department of
Sanitary Engineering, Mahidol University, 1998

Bachelor of Engineering (Civil Engineering), Rajamangala

Institute of Technology, Thewet Campus 1993

Work Experience

© October 1, 2016

anuary 15, 2019 to Present - Director General of Wastewater
Management Authority

Deputy Director General for
Technical and Planning, Acting

Director General of Wastewater

: Management Authority

July 18, 2013 - Deputy Director General for

: Technical and Planning, Wastewater
: Management Authority

May 22, 2013 - Deputy Director for Operations
Training

National Defence Course (Class 65), National Defence College,
National Defence Studies Institute

Budgeting for Executives (Class 6), Budget Bureau

Chief Information Officer Program : CIO Class 28

Ministry of Digital Economy and Society

Leadership Succession Program ,LSP Class 3

Institute of Research and Development for Public Enterprises

Advanced Certificate Course in Public Administration and Law

for Executives Class 13 King Prajadhipok’s Institute



- MSUINIIANTUIRUUY TN SEMSURUTM S TEAUgaTuin 1 i - Integrated Water Management Program for Executives Class 1

aunAunsUsTUwAsUsenalng Thai Waterwork Association

- Development of greenhouse gas reduction in domestic i - Development of Greenhouse Gas Reduction in Domestic

wastewater and on climate finance readiness (CLIiFiT), GIZ, Wastewater and on Climate Finance Readiness (CLIiFiT), GIZ ,

Usempaniusansnsasiesiiv Germany

UagUuanseinunianssunissgiamna/vmuleeaudu i Committee positions in state-owned enterprises and other

Laidl agencies currently held:

i None
o v o ' v v ¢ L,y a4 ao da v W ¢
MUIUNUNIDYAATVANNING ('V(!‘U)/%"lEJ‘UE]UTi‘.‘WI‘VIﬂE]ﬂiENWﬂﬂVIiWE]/ :

518n59Ne7leenY (Connected Transactions) ¥89N35UNIsWse | Shares or share values/ companies with shares/ connected

fusmsseauganiidesgianvia i transactions of senior executives with public enterprises

aid] ¢ None
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Performance Report of the Board of Directors of the
Wastewater Management Authority in Fiscal Year 2023
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During fiscal year 2023, Board of Directors of the Wastewater Management Authority convened
multiple meetings to deliberate and steer the organization's efficient operation in accordance with
government policy and the Wastewater Management Authority's vision of “managing domestic
wastewater using environmentally friendly innovations for the benefit of society." 12 meetings were
convened to deliberate and acknowledge important issues.

The key performance of Board of Directors of the Wastewater Management Authority was

summarized as follows:

msadusumuulaugvoosgura/msasaddigunisatiiuviu

Government Policy Implementation/ Site Inspection
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Mr. Narit Kamnurak, Deputy Minister of
Interior, inspected the operation of the Water
Quality Management Center of the Lampho
Subdistrict Administrative Organization located
in Bang Bua Thong District, Nonthaburi Province.
Mr. Pornpoth Penpas, Deputy Permanent
Secretary of the Ministry of Interior and Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the Wastewater
Management Authority, along with Mr. Apichai
Aramsri, Deputy Governor of Nonthaburi,
Mr. Surasak Jadboonnak, Chief Executive of the
Lampho Subdistrict Administration Organization,
Mr. Somsak Khongram, Chief Administrator of the
Lampho Subdistrict Administration Organization,
Mr. Chira Wongburana, Director General of the
Wastewater Management Authority, and Officers
of the Wastewater Management Authority, jointly
welcomed him and presented an overview of the
Water Quality Management Center of the Lampho

Subdistrict Administrative Organization.
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The Water Quality Management Center
of the Lampho Subdistrict Administrative
Organization is located in Lampho Subdistrict
Administrative Organization, Bang Bua Thong
District, Nonthaburi Province. It is designed and
constructed by the Wastewater Management
Authority, Ministry of Interior according to the
Joint Agreement for the Provision of a Centralized
Wastewater Treatment System signed between
the Wastewater Management Authority and the
Lampho Subdistrict Administrative Organization
in Nonthaburi on January 8, 2020. Its operation
has started since January 2022. The system is an
underground wastewater treatment plant that has
a daily treatment capacity of 1,500 cubic meters.
The underground area serves as a learning center
for the local public and youth by incorporating an
aquarium with transparent acrylic walls through
which one can observe the treatment process. The
treatment system has been extensively designed
to ensure environmental friendliness and public

coexistence.
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Mr. Pornpoth Penpas, Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Wastewater Management
Authority, accompanied by Mr. Prinya Yamasamit
and Mr. Mongkol Valyasevi, Board of Directors
of the Wastewater Management Authority,
inspected the operation of the Water Quality
Management Center of Lampho Subdistrict
Administrative Organization, Nonthaburi Province.
Mr. Chira Wongburana, Director General of the
Wastewater Management Authority, and officers
of the Wastewater Management Authority jointly

welcome the delegation.
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Policy, Plan, and Budget

1. Approve the policy of the Wastewater Management Authority based on the evaluation criteria
of the SE-AM framework in Core Business Enablers.

2. Approve the Capital Expenditure Report, the Revision of the Capital Disbursement Plan, and the
Adjustment of the Capital Budget Framework of the Wastewater Management Authority for Fiscal Year 2023.

3. Approve the Eco Efficiency Improvement Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority
following the criteria of operational value indicators and environmental impact indicators determined by
the Office of the State Enterprise Policy Commission.

4. Approve the Risk Management Report for Fiscal Year 2023.

5. Approve the Internal Control Evaluation and Improvement Report for Fiscal Year 2023.

6. Approve the Clean Energy Wastewater Plant Transition Plan.

7. Approve to amend the contract for the Project on Construction and Increasing Efficiency of
Wastewater Collection System in Phitsanulok Municipality, Nai Muang Subdistrict, Mueang Phitsanulok
District, Phitsanulok Province.

8. Approve to amend the contract for Project on Construction and Increasing Efficiency of Water
Quality Management in the Wastewater Management Area in Songkhla Municipality, Bo Yang Subdistrict,
Mueang District, Songkhla Province Phase 1.

9. Approve the Capital Expenditure Report and the Adjustment of the Capital Budget Framework
of the Wastewater Management Authority for Fiscal Year 2023.

10. Approve the Corporate Risk Management Plan for Fiscal Year 2023.

11. Approve the Public-Private Partnership (PPP) projects.

12. Approve to make a contract for the project, namely Construction and Increasing Efficiency of Water
Quality Management in the Wastewater Management Area in Chiang Mai Municipality, Pa Daet Subdistrict,
Mueang Chiang Mai District, Chiang Mai Province, proceeded by the e-bidding procurement method

13. Approve the revision of the Wastewater Management Authority Corporate Plan 2023-2027.

14. Approve the Wastewater Reuse Business Development Project

15. Approve guidelines on wastewater treatment fee collection optimization

16. Approve the change in manpower framework from employees in levels 1-2 to employees in
levels 3-5.

17. Approve the Wastewater Management Authority Action Plan for Fiscal Year 2024

18. Approve the Budget Request Framework for Fiscal Year 2025

Organization Management
1. Establish 11 committees and sub-committees under the oversight of Board of Directors of the
Wastewater Management Authority to ensure the efficient functioning and successful achievement of the
organization's goals, which include:
1.1 Audit Committee
1.2 Business Relations Committee
1.3 Subcommittee on Corporate Development

1.4 Subcommittee on Risk Management and Internal Control
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1.5 Subcommittee on Law and Regulations Compliance
1.6 Subcommittee on Corporate Governance and Social & Environmental Responsibility
1.7 Committee on Recruitment of the Director General of the Wastewater Management Authority
1.8 Subcommittee on Remuneration of the Director General of the Wastewater Management Authority
1.9 Subcommittee on Performance Criteria and Evaluation of the Director General of the
Wastewater Management Authority
1.10 Subcommittee on Investment Promotion and Procurement
1.11 Subcommittee on Project Monitoring
2. Performance of the Wastewater Management Authority
2.1 Acknowledge the Audit Committee Meeting Report for Fiscal Year 2023
2.2 Acknowledge the 5-year Strategic Audit Plan (2023-2027) and Audit Plan 2024
2.3 Acknowledge the Wastewater Influent Volume Verification Report 2024
2.4 Acknowledge the performance of committees and subcommittees of the Wastewater
Management Authority for fiscal year 2023
2.5 Acknowledge the handicap for the performance evaluation outlined in the SE-AM
framework in Core Business Enablers of fiscal year 2022
2.6 Acknowledge the result of the Wastewater Management Authority’s performance evaluation
according to the State Enterprise Performance Evaluation Memorandum of fiscal year 2022
3. Monitoring the progress of work plans and projects
3.1 Cooperation between the International Finance Corporation (IFC) and the Wastewater
Management Authority
3.2 Operation of Wastewater Management Branch Offices via VDO Conference
3.3 Capital Disbursement Acceleration Plan for Fiscal Year 2023
3.4 Wastewater reclamation
3.5 Technical visit in Japan under the Capacity Building Program for Water Quality Management
of Local Administration Organization, Batch 2
4. Amendments to the Wastewater Management Authority Regulations
4.1 Wastewater Management Authority Regulations on Medical Grants, B.E. 2539 (1996) (Revision
No...), B.E. 2566 (2023)
4.2 Wastewater Management Authority Regulations on House Rent and Personal Moving
Expenses B.E. 2556 (Revision No...), B.E. 2566 (2023)

Performance Evaluation

1. Approve the performance appraisal form for Board of Directors of the Wastewater Management
Authority and the self-assessment form for each member individually.

2. Approve the verification and review of the Audit Committee Operation Guidebook.

3. Approve the verification and review of the Charters of the Wastewater Management Authority
Subcommittee.

4. Approve the draft Memorandum of Agreement on Performance Appraisal of the Wastewater

Management Authority for Fiscal Year 2024.
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5. Approve the review of the policy of the Wastewater Management Authority based on the SE-AM
evaluation criteria in Core Business Enablers.
6. Acknowledge plans according to the Core Business Enablers in SE-AM as follows;

- Corporate Governance and Anti-Corruption Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority
2023-2027 and Action Plan on Corporate Governance and Anti-Corruption of the Wastewater Management
Authority 2023.

- Corporate Social & Environmental Responsibility (CSR in Process) of the Wastewater
Management Authority 2023-2027 and Action Plan on Corporate Social & Environmental Responsibility
(CSR in Process) of the Wastewater Management Authority 2023.

- Risk Management Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority for Fiscal Year 2024.

- Stakeholder Engagement Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority 2023-2027 and Action
Plan on Stakeholders of the Wastewater Management Authority 2024.

- Customer and Market Development Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority 2023-2027
and Action Plan on Customer and Market Development of the Wastewater Management Authority 2024

- Digital Development Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority 2023-2027 and Action
Plan on Digital Development of the Wastewater Management Authority 2024.

- Human Resources Development Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority 2023-2027
and Action Plan on Human Resources Development of the Wastewater Management Authority 2024.

- Knowledge Management Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority 2023-2027 and Action
Plan on Knowledge Management of the Wastewater Management Authority 2024.

- Creativity Development and Innovation Management of the Wastewater Management Authority
2023-2027 and Action Plan on Creativity Development and Innovation Management of the Wastewater
Management Authority 2023.

Annual Report 2023 Wastewater Management Authority l\ 41



d0SWAKANINTUANISINYANNDUINUSIFIGOUNA:UIUSYUATUENSSUMS
20AMSIAMSUNIFYUANSSUNISOUlUATUENSSUNSYAHDY ATUEDUNSSIUNIS
KSoAUMNIUSU MUUAATU:SIUUNS 1Jo3UN 24 WUEU 2562

AINBULNUIIELADU \WeUszyunssunis

N33UNI5FIAMND $33amiNa NUBN
L (Un/idiau) L (Um/isiau)

ANZNTIUNITRIANITANNITULEY

1. Usesnunssunis 12,000 U™ 15,000 U™ * Frawdeusyyulntunssunisi
RTRERHRIEEA Y
2. ASIUNS 6,000 UM 12,000 UM * ATUIMAANAITEIINIITUN

Jredeusyyulaiiund 1 Ay
Wwow wasiesliiiu 15 A/

N35UN159UTUANENTIUNTYALRY AMLIYNTINNIT WIDAMLTINIUDY

1. Usganueunssuns/ - 7,500 UM * greidedseyguliiunssuns

Usesuamgyineu M3 mUseyusInna LAY

2. DUNTTUNNT/AME - 6,000 UM 2 gy

e Anszazliiiu 1 ASYARou
BT

1. Shsmazvdninasinsieameuwnunedounasdeussrudldiduiusgiamemnuiuay ikald
Hadulufoudaly ndsniuiineSguusitufdiuyey

2. NM3IUANNOULNUTIBROU F181MUTEIUNTIUNITFTIAMATLUATT 2 M1TDIAINBULNUIIBLFOY
NIIUNSIFIANND

3. matedevszga Selivszsnluiivssgulusnsifiviudosas 25 veadsUssqunssunis

4. nstifimgaunns owRinsandeideuseruliiiuni 1 eduideu uidedlsiiu 15 ady/dl

5. NFIUNTYALDY ANzayNITINNG WieamzTudulidedeyseyliiunssunissglamaauas
nysunsduililiynainsvesdgiamaa Adiswuszyn Wudmauwiiy sl 2 e euvazlsiifu
1 ada/diou

ANIZNTTUNIINTIIABUYDIDIANITIANITE AL (Audit Committee) TildSuAmauLnulugue
ANENTTNNINTIRAOUVBIBIRNITIANTI LAY Tudarumndaduneifeurifusndsyssrunnznssuns
psfmsdanisiide Taeliuszsunssunisasaaeuldfuameuunuiuivludndesas 25 vosAmauuny
minluideulalifinsuszualiansrmouunuiiglunsdlifinssunisissiunslaifuieussrnouuny
AUFANAIUTTLLIAINTTANTIA LS

AUzNTIIN SR SdUSTasesinsTanstide WDumrauznssumsmungmneceusnuisiamaduiug
fvoumanihiflunsaduayunsinuresuenssunsisiamie IisudeUssgdunendaiiouas 1 ad

ludnsnfesar 0.5 WivesdeUseyunssun1ssgiamia

42 /‘ s190UUs:NU 2566 29vANISYANISUNIFY



Rates and criteria for paying monthly remuneration and meeting allowances for the Wastewater
Management Authority Committee and other committee members in sub-committees or other
working groups according to the Cabinet Resolution on 24 April 2019 (B.E. 2562)

Monthly remuneration| Meeting allowances
State enterprise of state enterprise of state enterprise

. : Remark
group committee committee

not over (Baht/Month) [ not over (Baht/Month)
Wastewater Management Authority Committee

1. Chairman 12,000 baht 15,000 baht * The meeting allowances
shall be paid to the
2. Committee 6,000 baht 12,000 baht committee member who has

attended the meeting

* In case of reasonable

grounds, the meeting

allowance may be paid more

than 1 time/month but not

more than 15 times/year
Other committee members in sub-committees or other working groups

1. Chairman of the - 7,500 baht * The meeting allowances
Sub-committee/ shall be paid to the
Chairman of the committee member who
Working Group has attended the meeting

2. Sub-committee/ - 6,000 baht in total of not more than 2
Working Group committees, each committee

not more than once/month

Remark

1. Rates and rules for paying monthly remuneration and meeting allowances are applicable to all
state enterprises and shall come into force in the following month after the date of approval of the cabinet.

2. Monthly payment of remuneration for the Chairman of State Enterprises shall be paid 2 times
the rate of the monthly remuneration of State Enterprise Directors.

3. Payment of meeting allowances shall be paid to the chairman of the meeting at an additional
rate of 25 percent of the committee’s meeting allowance.

4. In case of reasonable grounds, the meeting allowance may be paid more than 1 time/month
but not more than 15 times/year.

5. Sub-committee or other working groups shall pay meeting allowances to the committee of state
enterprises and other committee members who are not the personnel of state enterprises and have
attended the meeting in total not more than 2 committees, each committee not more than 1 time/month.

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA)’s Audit Committee receives remuneration at a flat
monthly rate equal to the meeting allowance of the WMA’s committee. And the Chairman of the Audit
Committee will receive additional remuneration at the rate of 25 percent of the remuneration. If there
is no meeting in any month, the remuneration shall also be paid partially based on the term of office.

The Wastewater Management Authority Relations Affairs Committee is a committee under the
law on state enterprise labor relations that has the scope of duties to support the work of the state
enterprise committee and shall receive a meeting allowance once a month at the rate of 0.5 times the
meeting allowance of state enterprises committee meeting.
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Meetings of the Wastewater Management Authority Committee: 12 Meetings

Mr

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Mr.

Ms.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

. Pornpoth
Thongrob
Khanat
Prinya
Whichai
Aussawin
Wantanee

Teeralak

Jindarat

Chanon

Pinsak

Panuwat

Yuttana

Raksak

Mongkol

Chira

Penpas
Danampai
Kruthkul
Yamasamit
Phochanakij
Chotipanang
Maneesilasan

Sangsnit

Viriyataveekul

Vasiksiri

Suraswadi

Triyangkulsri

Sayochanakon

Suriyaharn

Valyasevi

Wongburana

Chairman

Committee

Committee

Committee

Committee

Committee

Committee

Representative Committee of the Ministry of Finance
Bond Market Advisor

Representative of the Ministry of Finance

Deputy Director General, Public Debt Management Office
Acting Public Debt Advisor

Representative Committee of the Ministry of Interior
Vice Governor of Sakon Nakhon

Representative Committee of the Ministry of

Natural Resources and Environment

Director General, Pollution Control Department
Representative Committee of the Ministry of industry
Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Industry
Representative Committee of Budget Bureau

Deputy Director-General, Bureau of the Budget
Representative Committee of the Metropolitan
Waterworks Authority

Deputy Governor (Water Production)

Representative Committee of Provincial Waterworks Authority
Deputy Governor (Operation 3)

Committee and Secretary

Director General of Wastewater Management Authority
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Meetings of the Subcommittee Fiscal year 2023

Organization Development Subcommittee

1. Mr. Prinya
Mr. Yuttana
Mr.Pinsak
Mr. Khanat

. Supakit

Ms. Lawan

Mr. Paisan

Mr. Peerasak

0 o N o B L
=
=

Ms. Pimpimon

— =
— O
<
=

Yamasamit
Sayochanakon
Suraswadi
Kruthkul
Phopaphaphan
Chatrungcheewan
Weerakit
Khanom

Saiong

. Seubphong  Buranasirin

. Director General of Wastewater Management Authority

Risk Management and Internal Control Subcommittee

1. Mr. Teeralak

. Mrs.Jindarat

. Mr. Khanat

. Ms. Piyawan

. Mr. Pradab
Col. Dr. Wiwat
. Mr. Worapong
. Ms. Napasanun
. Mr. Auychai

O W N oA W N

Subcommittee on Corporate Governance and Social and Environmental Responsibility

1. Mr. Khanat

2. Mr. Thongrob
3. Mr. Prinya

Mr. Piyakarn
Mr. Pradit

Mr. Nutchanon
Mr. Visut

Mr. Kosin

Mr. Aphichai

0 o N B

Sangsnit
Viriyataveekul
Kruthkul
Lamkitcha
Yamesang
Ruengmee
Atikarnbodee
Pattanaphakul

Kultipmontre

Kruthkul
Danampai
Yamasamit
Peerasaksopol
Ruanedit
Sonprasert
Bootsripoom
Jaetiyanont

Nimchirawat

10. Director General of Wastewater Management Authority

Annual Report 2023

Chairman of Subcommittee
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Subcommittee

Chairman

Chairman

Subcommittee
Subcommittee
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Subcommittee
Subcommittee
Subcommittee

Subcommittee

Chairman of Subcommittee
Subcommittee
Subcommittee
Subcommittee
Subcommittee
Subcommittee
Subcommittee
Subcommittee
Subcommittee

Subcommittee
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Subcommittee on Investment Promotion and Procurement

1. Mr. Whichai Phochanakij Chairman of Subcommittee 4/4
2. Mr. Prinya Yamasamit Subcommittee a/4
3. Mr. Anuchit Trakulmututa Subcommittee a/4
4. Mr. Areesak Streanraparp-Ar-Yut Subcommittee a/4
5. Mr. Krit Thamisiri Subcommittee a/4
6. Mr. Songtham  Detsingsopha Subcommittee 4/5
7. Mr. Pitchaya Chuengsawanan Subcommittee a/4
8. Mr. Phasuk Choeychom Subcommittee a/4
9. Mr. Piyasak Chotpruek Subcommittee 3/4
10. Lt.Gen. Kittipan ~ Chupiputt Subcommittee a/4
11. Director General of Wastewater Management Authority Subcommittee 3/4

Subcommittee on Legal and Regulatory Compliance

1. Mr. Thongrob ~ Danampai Chairman of Subcommittee 8/9
2. Mr. Chanon Vasiksiri Subcommittee 8/9
3. Mr. Pinsak Suraswadi Subcommittee 3/9
4. Mr. Aussawin Chotipanang Subcommittee 5/9
5. Mr. Chamroen  Waraporn Subcommittee 9/9
6. Mr. Krit Thamisiri Subcommittee 9/9
7. Mr. Visit Ariyavestrakool Subcommittee 9/9
8. Representative of Office of the Attorney General Subcommittee 8/9
9. Deputy Director General for Technical and Planning Subcommittee 9/9

Subcommittee on Formulation of Criteria and Performance Appraisals of WMA’s Director General

1. Mr. Thongrob ~ Danampai Chairman of Subcommittee 3/3
2. Mr. Whichai Phochanakij Subcommittee 3/3
3. Mr. Prasit Suebchana Subcommittee 2/3
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Construction Project Monitoring Sub-committee

1. Mr. Prinya Yamasamit Chairman of Subcommittee 11/11
2. Mr. Supakit Phopaphaphan Subcommittee 10/11
3. Director General of Wastewater Management Authority = Subcommittee 2/2
4. Deputy Director General for Technical and Planning Subcommittee 11/11

Audit Committee

1. Mr. Panuwat Triyangkulsri Chairman 12/12
2. Mr. Mongkol Valyasevi committee 12/12
3. Mr. Raksak Suriyaharn committee 12/12

Business Relations Committee

1. Mr. Chanon Vasiksiri Chairman 8/8
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y ASad ASai ASad piefl | sautedu
UTeRnIZILNIIHMS 6/2565 1/2566 3/2566 4/2566 (ﬂ%\i)
25 f1.A. 65|30 U.A. 66|24 13.8. 66|31 N.A. 66|21 &d.A. 66

1 wessdny WEE T v 4 2/5
2 wRuaniml  T[eening v v v 3/5
3 wein ATENA v v v v v 5/5
4 u9anlenssu  awnaan v 4 X v v a/5
5 wwUszau WEILLES 4 v v x v 4/5
6 ".0.03.730 15048 4 4 x v x 3/5
7 WWITHIE DANITURA v v X v x 3/5
8 wwanudatun  fvsunna x v v s v 3/5
9 Wty nadingduue3 v 4 v 4 v 5/5

VUL : ANFIANENTIUNTRIANITIANITUNFLT 2/2566 1509 WASAIAMYOUNTTUNITUTMIANUFLILALAIUAL
nelu Usenia a Juil 31 Jwiaw 2566 Tngladn1sifeunuaiusesunnizaynssunsusmsninudes
warAuANAIETuIINAL WeSsany wasaiin Wisudu wduanin Feeiting

Meetings of the Risk Management and Internal Control Subcommittee in Fiscal Year 2023

Year 2022 Year 2023

Total
ame of Subcommitiee 6/23.22 1/20.23 . 3/20.23 4/2:23 o of
Meetings
25 Oct 30 Jan 31 May 21 Aug

1 Mr. Teeralak Sangsnit v v 2/5
2 Mrs.Jindarat Viriyataveekul v 4 v 3/5
3 Mr. Khanat Kruthkul v v v v v 5/5
4 Ms. Piyawan  Lamkitcha 4 v X v 4 4/5
5 Mr. Pradab Yamesang v v 4 X 4 4/5
6 Col. Dr. Wiwat  Ruengmee v 4 x v x 3/5
7 Mr. Worapong  Atikarnbodee v v x v x 3/5
8 Ms. Napasanun Pattanaphakul X 4 v x v 3/5
9 Mr. Auychai Kultipmontre 4 4 4 v 4 5/5

Remark : Order of the Board of Directors of the Wastewater Management Authority No. 2/2566, Titled
Appointment of the Risk Management and Internal Control Subcommittees, dated March 31,

2023, appointing Ms. Jindarat Viriyataveekul to replace Mr. Teeralak Saengsanit
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26 M.A. 65 [ 16 n.w. 66 | 7 .8. 66 | 7 n.°8. 66

1 Wiy 1nguna v v v 4 a/4

2 weUSean guzaln v 4 4 v a4

3 Wgeydn AENALNA v v 4 v am

4 Wwe3AnA @IS v v v V'

5 w1gnge 5ITUAT v v v 4 a/4

6 UNBNTIGITY LAEAlEn v v v v 4/4

7 Weiveyy Jsatiumil 4 4 4 v 4/4

8 1NBHAY e v v v v

9 welezdng TuRngnie 4 4 4 X 3/4

10 waln An@ius  yiia 4 v v v a/4

11 Q’a"msmmqﬁmﬁmmi‘fnaa v v v X 3/4

Meetings of the Subcommittee on Investment Promotion and Procurement in

Fiscal Year 2023
Year 2022 Year 2023 Total

Name of Subcommittee No. 4 No. 1 No. 2 No. 3 No. of
26 Oct 16 Feb 7 Jun 7 Sep Meetings
v v v v

1 Mr. Whichai Phochanakij 4/4
2 Mr. Prinya Yamasamit v v 4 v 4/4
3 Mr. Anuchit Trakulmututa v v 4 4 4/4
4 Mr. Areesak Streanraparp-Ar-Yut v v 4 v 4/4
5 Mr. Kt Thamsiri 4 4 v v am
6 Mr. Songtham  Detsingsopha v 4 v v 4/4
7 Mr. Pitchaya Chuengsawanan 4 v v 4 4/4
8 Mr. Phasuk Choeychom 4 v 4 4 4/4
9 Mr. Piyasak Chotpruek v 4 4 X 3/4
10 Lt.Gen. Kittipan Chupiputt 4 v 4 v 4/4
11 Director General of Wastewater v v v X 3/4

Management Authority

Annual Report 2023 Wastewater Management Authority (\ 65



6/6
6/8
6/6
6/6
6/6
6/9
6/¢
6/8
6/8

)

PZRIARES

SO S S S S

SO S S S

SO N S S
SO S S S
T N
SO % S S S S S
S RS S

N
>
N
>
>

995z ruLnsnNCNLEssn NRmaszensLaslunionie

A A MMTAENELULALBENLEMNEE 6
: A slpBeLunRrLbUNLENUTY 8
13 5P
A A slrewpeizree  ERpenLn 2
A A egress  bunLi 9
A A reeuLee  fagiLenLn g
- A MIMR]  MEWERLA b
- - WLEEE UUBRABRLIL ¢
A A LBUBLE  FHLARLI
A A MJLEMLL  NENaRLM T

unG

—— —

wrc;wwcm\_.@naemm‘ewrw

NSLUNULUSLUNSSUNCMIUNRISNNCSLRISLU

-

~
o

ANTsYanIsunds

U 2566 ovA

L

-
4

66 I‘ s1gvuls



sujuue)d pue esiuyda|

6/6 J10j Jesauan) Joalg Aindag 6

A A A A A A A A A
1eI2UD) ASUIONY

6/8 A A A A A A A - A 3U3 JO 92UJO JO dAieIUasaIday g
6/6 A A A A A A A A A 10O RIISDARALY WSIA IN
6/6 N N A P P P P P P uiswey WS IN 9
6/6 A A A A A A A A A wiodesepy  usodweyd N G
6/9 P P - - A A = - A Sueuednoyn  umessNy N b
6/¢ - - - A A A = = - IpeMSEINS desuld IN ¢
6/8 N P - N N N P N N HISYISeA uoueyd N ¢

6/8 A A ledweueq qoisuoyl N T

N - N N N N
ssupospy | 9S8 | 8nvie unroz | Aewog | 1dv .z | Jew 6z
10 'ON 8 'ON L 'ON G ON v 'ON € ON ¢ ON 93)}lWwodgns JO SWeN
18301 €20z 1edp 2202 JeaA

€202 Jeaj [edsi4 ul asueldwo) Aiojeinbay pue |[eba7 uo 83j3wIWIOOgnS 3y} jo sbunesy

\/

Annual Report 2023 Wastewater Management Authority (\ 67



MSINSOUUSEBUATUEOUNSSUNSHKUOKANINTUALA:US:ITUWAMSURUGOUWSUIZMS
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S18VIAULBUNTIUNT
1 UYsISU RGRIAT v v v 3/3
2 Wiy Tnwuia 4 v 4 3/3
3 wwelsedns  dutue v v - 2/3

Meetings of the Subcommittee on Formulation of Criteria and Performance Appraisals
of WMA’s Director General in Fiscal Year 2023

Year 2022 Year 2023 el

Name of Subcommittee No. 2 No. 3 No. 1 No. of
25 Oct 15 Dec 21 Jul Meetings
v v v

1 Mr. Thongrob Danampai 3/3
2 Mr. Whichai Phochanakij v 4 v 3/3
3 Mr. Prasit Suebchana 4 v = 2/3
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Work Force of Wastewater Management Authority as of Septemcer 30" 2023

A1897U IUIN/AY
Work Force Number of people

IIEBIENT (86U 9) 3

Deputy Director General, Level 9

Q’éﬁmﬂﬂm'hﬂ/ﬁﬁﬁﬂ/él,%aww (526U 8) 6

Bureau/Office Director, Experts, Level 8

S¥AU 7 / Level 7 25

56U 6 / Level 6 23

5¥0U 3 - 5/ Level 3-5 57

5¥0U 1-2 / Level 1-2 3

373/Total 117

B soudunems (sedu 9) B sudiu 6
Deputy Director General, Level 9: Level 6:
{enensthe/diin/iidesnay (szdu 8) B sedu3-5
Bureau / Office Director, Experts, Level 8: Level 3 - 5:

B sueu 7 B sviu1-2
Level 7: Level 1-2:
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Executive Members of the Waster Management Authority

UNgBS: IVAYSTUE
duKuD WoudeMsovAMsYanstide

UsziRnsAnu

yggln - vsmsgsfaumdndia anw1uimsgsia poasnsal
UANINEAY

‘d%zyzyﬂw Master of Engineering , Environmental Engineering
and Management (Water and Wastewater
Engineering) Asian Institute of Technology (AIT)

Gaaln  Ineenassundadio awinaluladaaeden
AAIIAINTIUGVIAUIE U TInedeuding

YSugws  Aemnssumanstudia Qenssulesi)
aonduwmaluladsisusea Inerwamnas

UsIAN199119U

15 uns1Ax 2562 - Yagdu  femnen1sesdnisdnnisude

1 ganAu 2559 JOUBIUILNTIVINITUALUNY
SNIMIUNUEDIIENTBIANTT
Sansuide

18 nInQIAN 2556 JOUBIUILNTIVINITUALUNY

22 QWAL 2556 s eSS URNS

Uszdin1sinausy

- véngns mstesiusivenandns (e.) Juil 65 Inedolesiu
57921001305 anduivinslesiuuseing

- vidnges thuSmsmssulssnaseaugs W) Juil 6 dnieuyszana

- nangms guinainaluladansaumnaseaugs (Chief Information
Officer : CIO) Juil 28 navnsAdTaLDIATYEAILATHIAL

- Méngns Leadership Succession Program ,LSP juﬁ 3 yaild
an3feuaziniunesdininiasy

- wdngasmsUInsnuMASEuAENMNBITULT 13
andunsyunngn

- mstimsdanstuuuysannisdmiuduimsssdugedud 1
anpunsUszUuislszmalng

- Development of greenhouse gas reduction in domestic
wastewater and on climate finance readiness (CLiFiT), GIZ,

Usgimaniusansisasgeesiu

January 15, 2019 to Present

i October 1, 2016

i July 18, 2013

i May 22, 2013

o1y 55 U

Mr. Chira Wongburana
Position: Director General of Wastewater
Management Authority
Age 55 years

Education

- Master of Business Administration, Chulalongkorn University
i - Master of Engineering, Environmental Engineering

and Management (Water and Wastewater Engineering)
Asian Institute of Technology (AIT), 2007

- Master of Science, Environmental Technology, Department of

Sanitary Engineering, Mahidol University, 1998

- Bachelor of Engineering (Civil Engineering), Rajamangala

Institute of Technology, Thewet Campus 1993

Work Experience

- Director General of Wastewater
Management Authority

- Deputy Director General for
Technical and Planning, Acting
Director General of Wastewater
Management Authority

- Deputy Director General for
Technical and Planning, Wastewater
Management Authority

- Deputy Director for Operations

Training
¢ - National Defence Course (Class 65), National Defence College,

National Defence Studies Institute

- Budgeting for Executives (Class 6), Budget Bureau
i - Chief Information Officer Program : ClO Class 28

Ministry of Digital Economy and Society

- Leadership Succession Program ,LSP Class 3

Institute of Research and Development for Public Enterprises

- Advanced Certificate Course in Public Administration and Law

for Executives Class 13 King Prajadhipok’s Institute

- Integrated Water Management Program for Executives Class 1

Thai Waterwork Association

- Development of Greenhouse Gas Reduction in Domestic

Wastewater and on Climate Finance Readiness (CLIiFiT), GIZ ,
Germany
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U8By 1PUWIUNSD
GNUKLIDSOLWIUDYNSIBINS A WU
o1y 60 U

UsziRnisAnen
Useyglm  Master of Science in Civil and Environmental
Engineering, George Washington University, U.S.A.
0.Al. 2538

Gygyws  enmanstadio (@1sn5aamans) a1u3nn

auiva uInedeiing w.A. 2529

Uszdansvinuludumisuimssedugs
1ganau 2564  SONHBILIENTIVINITUALIHY

Shwimsunusesgeruensufiinis
3 fiquigu 2562

15 Un91AuN 2562
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o v
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1 panas 2555 KomnensieiauIenng
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14 ganau 2551 Hwensihed1sin Shwinsunu
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24 nsnQA 2546 Feiensiedig
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U

19 fugngu 2545
UfTRnthilusumis frnensineideuas
walulag

21 NQuAAY 2545

3 flunAy 2540

§E18M3ENg LA TAUlATINTS
PANTINDIUTLENUIU HN8IUHULAZ AL
TAs9ns

Uszafn1sinausy

- United Nations 2023 Water Conference a gninaulvey
anlszrvd uastheesn Usuinaansgoini

- Public - Private Partnerships and Project Finance Program,
Harvard University

- véngpsithnsduaiuiasygionavia (Digital CEO) uft 3
dinaudaasuiasugnanidva

- msfmhgudeyaiiouimsdamsnuesdnisianisihidseded
Usgdnsnm
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Mr. Suchai Janepojanat

Position Deputy Director General for
Technical and Planning
Age 60 years

Education
i 1995

: 1986

Master of Science (Civil and Environmental
Engineering), George Washington University, U.S.A.
Bachelor of Science (Public Health) in Sanitation,
Mahidol University

Senior Executive Work Experience

i 1 October 2021

£ 3 June 2019

15 January 2019

1 October 2012

i 28 May 2011

{14 October 2008

£ 16 August 2008

£ 24 July 2003

{19 September 2002
£ 21 May 2002

i 3 March 1997

Deputy Director General for Technical and Planning
Acting Deputy Director General for Operation
Deputy Director General for Technical and Planning
Director, Organization Development Department
Acting Deputy Director General for Technical
and Planning

Director, Organization Development Department
Director, Regional Wastewater Management
Department

Director, Survey Department

Acting Director, Services and Database Department
Director, Survey Department

Acting Director for Administration

Director, Survey Department

Director, Project Planning and Development
Department

For Director, Research and Technology Department
Director, Project Planning and Development
Department

Head of Coordination Division, Project

Planning and Development Department

Training

United Nations 2023 Water Conference at UN Headquarters,
New York City, USA

Public-Private Partnerships and Project Finance Program,
Harvard University

Digital CEO Program (Batch 3), Digital Economy Promotion Agency
Database for Effective Management of the Wastewater

Management Authority



Experience on Wastewater Operation in U.S.A
MIUTILIENTEUIUNMTTINNUIBINsUTTUdmLUAA (NUA.)
nsEnTAaLiaIATugRaLar Ay

Tasimsfineusuides 'msdndedninuseifounsznsienisad
’jﬁu8mﬁ'ﬂ%ﬁm’mLmzmﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ@mﬂ%ﬁ W.A.2560 Uagng)
NIENTHN

Tasamsounduun Bos fuafofungmnensiunisadaniaiy
Juit 1
1ATINIHRUITZUUUIMTINNININGINTYARATBIDIANITIANTS
iy sveedl 1 oansduuun HR for Non-HR
MsRUTIMENERS "HUIN1sdESILATYENAATYTa (Digital CEO)"
Uil 3 UM umehsUsemafiodnyuazasauuunsEous
MnesdnsfivszauarmdFa o Ussmelgosuil

nseusy Boa msthimalulaunusuganmsmiiunuues
osfmsdanisthide

MsdunnBUfiRng Bes mamuvmuanudesesdnmsdans
hidsUsyanTeutszan we.2563 (Mumusewingd)
nslneusa 3o HR for Non-HR Uszdd w.a. 2563
MsduLRU URNINSWsENANNTaNRTIAUTHIIUTTUY
SE-AM weseeRnsdansinge YsvsndvayT 2563
MsduuBiRnms iewlsuamieuduionasiayns
poULUUUsHAuKAR Y Enablers 14 8 ¢ 1113 Online AN
YUV SE-AM 93 99U, UszdUUnT 2563
MIFULUNTIUZUANT MsUsziiunansauiivnusgiamng
§u Core Business Enablers Usza1UUnyd 2563 waginsguaiu
wieugnsussiiuna UsedUdnd 2564
MsdBUiRnTg Fes mawisuanumieudiuenas nd
thiaue wazuundlunmsneudnudmiunmadessuiionsan
Usidly (Site Visit) 91nu3sm vi3a resaisdu Sain
MsdBUiTRng Fes mawdsuanumieudiuenas nd
thiaue wazuuvndlunsneudnudwiunmadessuiionsas
Uszidly (Site Visit) 91nu3em vi3a resuaisdu Siin
NMsdBUTRng Fes mawdsuanumieudiuenas nd
thiaue wazuundlunmsneudnudmiunadeusuiionsas
Uszidly (Site Visit) 1nu3sm vi3a resaisdy Siin
lassnsineusudalfiinisvdngns “nisaseanuduiusiv
fildulidudevesesdnmsinnniude” Ussdvd 2564
lassnsineusudaliins ninges “nsdnnisauiivay
Winnssuvesesmstamsinde” Usysivd 2564
lassmsineusudalfiiinmsmdngns “n1susmsdianisgnan
(N3satiugnén) vesesdmsdamstnide” Ussddiind 2564
lassnsineusudaliiins “nsdansanuuazuinnssy”
“nsusmavuaywdvesesinisianistnde” Usysttad 2564
lassnsineusudafiinisvdngns “n1saiiuanunisuans
anusuiinveudedsauuarAunndeutumaiauaiianiud
wisliguou (fidwlddnude)” Useddlnd 2564
Tasanstneusu@fuRnisvangns “nisgatiugiidnliduds
wazgnA1” Used Uy 2564

nsduuTuamantsUszidiu Core Business Enablers funs
TNUNLTINALNS (SP)

MsduLuwaHan1 Uzl Core Business Enablers A1un1g
Umsanudsuazeuaugly (RM&IC)

Experience with Wastewater Operation in the U.S.A
Lecture on the Provincial Waterworks Authority’s Work
Flows, Ministry of Digital Economy and Society

Training on “Procurement according to the Public
Procurement and Supplies Administration Act, B.E. 2560
(2017) and Relevant Ministerial Regulations”

Seminar on Contemporary Public Fiscal Law (Batch 1)

HR Management Development Program Phase 1: Seminar
on HR for Non-HR

Digital CEO Program (Batch 3), Study the Successful Model
at the Federal Republic of Germany

Technology for Organizational Development Program
Technical Workshop on Risk Review of the Wastewater
Management Authority, Fiscal Year 2020 (review during a year)
HR for Non-HR Training Program 2020

Technical Workshop on Preparation for the SE-AM
Assessment, Fiscal Year 2020

Technical Workshop on Preparation for Online SE-AM
Evaluation in 8 Enablers, Fiscal Year 2020

Technical Workshop on Preparation for SE-AM Evaluation in
Core Business Enablers, Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021
Technical Workshop on Preparation of Supporting
Documents and Guidelines for SE-AM Evaluation by Tris
Corporation Co., Ltd.

Technical Workshop on Preparation of Supporting
Documents and Guidelines for SE-AM Evaluation by Tris
Corporation Co., Ltd.

Technical Workshop on Preparation of Supporting
Documents and Guidelines for SE-AM Evaluation by Tris
Corporation Co., Ltd.

Technical Workshop on “Building Relationships with
Stakeholders of the Wastewater Management Authority,”
Fiscal Year 2021

Technical Workshop on “Knowledge and Innovation
Management of the Wastewater Management Authority,”
Fiscal Year 2021

Technical Workshop on “Customer Management (Customer
Centric) of the Wastewater Management Authority” Fiscal
Year 2021

Technical Workshop on “Knowledge and Innovation
Management” and “Human Capital Management of the
Wastewater Management Authority,” Fiscal Year 2021
Technical Workshop on “Social & Environmental
Responsibility and Strengthening Communities
(Stakeholders),” Fiscal Year 2021

Technical Workshop on “Stakeholder and Customer
Management,” Fiscal Year 2021

Seminar on SE-AM Evaluation Results in Core Business
Enablers (Strategic Planning: SP)

Seminar on SE-AM Evaluation Results in Core Business

Enablers (Risk Management and Internal Control: RM&IC)
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AanssudaeunssuiumsmdunumunsuInsianslasinig
Usziluaaussnuazralusildunsiniivnuesmheminasy
(Integrity & Transparency Assessment : ITA) YosmssImdY
nseusuMdngasithnsauaBuLAsgioRavia (Digital CEO) fuft 3
FEnwgau o aviusansisasgwesuil)

nstineusy Bas madanisuimnssuvesesdns
mstineusuviangns weysvlngRruasesdeyadiuynaa w.A. 2562
AM3ENBUIH IFC Senior Training Public-Private Partnerships
and Project Finance Program

nsiineusy e nszuaunsiuilsgndnuaznisuimsdnnis
JofosSsugnives nsuszlrdugiing

nsEnausIvangns NsusziliunisudesineiSeunseanves
03Ans ednvhuuimasgandunarmsansvey
nsineusundngns nsUseyndld ws.u. Auasesdeyadiuyana
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mstineusundngss  n1sivavesdeyadiuyanatunssuIumves
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wagszuumaunaulagggua (Admin)"
nMaBoumuazAnmguunsiviiuasvans "shunssjatiug
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Technical Workshop on “Knowledge and Innovation
Management and Human Capital Management of the
Wastewater Management Authority,” Fiscal Year 2021
Seminar on SE-AM Evaluation Results in Core Business
Enablers (Digital Technology: DT)

Seminar on SE-AM Evaluation Results in Core Business
Enablers (Knowledge Management and Innovation
Management: KM & IM)

Technical Workshop on “Corporate Governance, Leadership,
and Strategic Planning,” Fiscal Year 2021

Technical Workshop on “Stakeholder and Customer
Management,” Fiscal Year 2021

Training on “Application of Information Systems in Internal
Control Systems for Users, Fiscal Year 2021”

Workshop for Knowledge Exchange according to the
Knowledge Management Process of the Wastewater
Management Authority

Training on Strategic Planning (SP)

Training on Risk Management and Internal Control (RM & IC)
Training on Human Capital Management (HCM)

Training on Knowledge Management and Innovation
Management (KM & IM)

Capacity Building Program on Integrity & Transparency
Assessment (ITA) of the Wastewater Management Authority
Digital CEO Program, Batch 3, Study Visit at the Federal
Republic of Germany

Training on Organizational Innovation Management

Training on the Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562 (2019)
IFC Senior Training on Public-Private Partnerships and
Project Finance Program

Training on Customer Complaint Management and Process
of the Provincial Waterworks Authority

Training on the organization’s greenhouse gas emissions
assessment to develop guidelines towards carbon neutrality
Training on the Application of the Personal Data Protection
Act, B.E. 2562 (2019) (PDPA)

Online Seminar on SE-AM Evaluation Criteria in Core

Business Enablers for State Enterprises, Fiscal Year 2023

- Training on “Personal Data Breach in the Working Processes

of Different Organizations” and “Data Processing Record”
Training on “Personal Data Breach in the Working Processes
of Different Organizations” and “Data Processing Record”
Training on “Application of iDoxcons Program”

Training on “Application of Auto Reply System (Chatbot)
and Manual Reply System (Admin)”

Study Visit at the Metropolitan Electricity Authority in
“Stakeholder and Customer Management and Knowledge
and Innovation Management”

Training on “Greenhouse Gas Management”

Training on Core Business Enablers in Strategic Planning
Technical Workshop on “Application of iDoxcons Program”

(Latest Version)
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Position: Deputy Director General for
Administration
Age 52 years

Education

2019 Master of Business Administration, Ramkhamhaeng University

1994 Bachelor of Business Administration, Ramkhamhaeng University

1 October 2022

© 24 January 2019

{24 January 2019

{22 January 2019

1 April 2016

12 June 2012

Training Record

Senior Executive Work Experience
i 3 October 2022

Deputy Director General for Administration, Acting
Director of Accounting and Finance Department
Deputy Director General for Administration
Director, Accounting and Finance Department
Acting Head of Budget Division

Acting Finance Division

Director, Accounting and Finance Department
Acting Head of Budget Division

Director, Accounting and Finance Department
Head of Budget Division, Acting Head of
Finance Division

Head of Budget Division

- Training on Increasing Efficiency of Public Fiscal Management

Year 2018: Public Finance Insights

- Capacity Building Program on the Public Budget
- Lecture on the Provincial Waterworks Authority’s Work Flows
- Seminar on Contemporary Public Fiscal Law (Batch 1)

{ - Training on “Procurement according to the Public

Procurement and Supplies Administration Act, B.E. 2560 (2017)

and Relevant Ministerial Regulations”

- HR Management Development Program Phase 1: Seminar on
{ HR for Non-HR
- Training on “Technology for Organizational Development”

- Technical Workshop on Risk Review of the Wastewater

Management Authority, Fiscal Year 2020 (During fiscal year)
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Technical Workshop on Risk Review of the Wastewater
Management Authority, Fiscal Year 2020 (During fiscal year)
Training on “HR for Non-HR” in 2020

Technical Workshop on Preparation for SA-AM Evaluation in
Core Business Enablers, Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021
Technical Workshop on “Building Relationships with
Stakeholders of the Wastewater Management Authority,”
Fiscal Year 2021

Advanced Budget Management Program (Batch 8)

Training on Strategic Planning (SP)

Training on Risk Management and Internal Control (RM & IC)
Training on Human Capital Management (HCM)

Training on Knowledge Management and Innovation
Management (KM & IM)

Capacity Building Program on Integrity & Transparency
Assessment (ITA) of the Wastewater Management Authority
Training on Organizational Innovation Management
Training on the Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562
(2019)

Training on Customer Complaint Management and
Processes of the Provincial Waterworks Authority

Training on the Organization’s Greenhouse Gas Emission
Assessment for Developing Carbon Neutrality Guidelines
Training on the Application of the Personal Data Protection
Act, B.E. 2562 (2019) (PDPA)

Online Seminar on SE-AM Evaluation Criteria in Core
Business Enablers for State Enterprises, Fiscal Year 202
Training on “Personal Data Breach in the Working Process of
Different Organizations” and “Data Processing Record”
Training on “Application of iDoxcons Program”

Training on “Application of Auto Reply System (Chatbot)
and Manual Reply System (Admin)”

e-Government for Chief Executive Officer Program, Batch 9
(e-GCCO#H9)

Training on “Greenhouse Gas Management”

Training on Core Business Enablers in Strategic Planning
Technical Workshop on “Application of iDoxcons Program”

(Latest Version)
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Position: Deputy Director General
for Operation
Age 59 years

Education

2012 Master of Business Administration (Public Management),
: Burapha University

1995 Bachelor of Engineering (Industrial Engineering),

: Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi

Senior Executive Work Experience

i 3 October 2022

i 1 October 2022
28 February 2022
i 20 October 2021
i 6 October 2021

{5 July 2020
i 9 February 2016

© 9 February 2016
£ 10 April 2015

1 September 2014
i 11 June 2008

i 4 February 2008

i 1 August 2005

Acting Deputy Director of Operations,

Deputy Director of Wastewater Management
Department 1

Acting Deputy Director of Operations

Director of Wastewater Management Department 1
Director of Organizational Development Department
Director of Engineering Department, Acting
Director of Organizational Development Department
Director of Engineering Department

Director of Wastewater Management
Department 1, Acting Director of Wastewater
Management Department 2

Director of Wastewater Management Department 1
Director of Regional Wastewater Management
Department

Head of Central Coordination Division

Head of Community Wastewater Division
Acting Head of Community Wastewater Division
Acting Head of Northern Metropolitan
Wastewater Management Division

Training

Database development for efficient organizational wastewater
management

Project management

Training project on "Procurement and Contract Management
according to the Ministry of Finance Regulations on Procurement
and Material Management in the Public Sector B.E. 2560 (2017)
and Ministerial Regulations"

Experience on Wastewater Operation in U.S.A

Development project for the personnel management system of the
Wastewater Management Authority, Phase 1, Seminar on HR for Non-HR
Training on "Project Management and Planning with Primavera
Project Planner"

Visits to Anti-Corruption Museums, Office of the Public Sector
Anti-Corruption Commission

Training on the application of technology to improve the
operations of the Wastewater Management Authority
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Seminar and workshop on reviewing the risk of the Wastewater
Management Authority, Fiscal year 2020 (Mid-year Review)
Seminar and workshop on reviewing the risk of the Wastewater
Management Authority, Fiscal year 2020 (Mid-year Review)

HR for Non-HR training, Fiscal Year 2020

Seminar and workshop on SE-AM system assessment
preparation of the Wastewater Management Authority, Fiscal
Year 2020

Seminar and workshop on evaluating the operations of the
Core Business Enablers of the Wastewater Management
Authority, Fiscal Year 2020 and preparation for the evaluation,
Fiscal Year 2021

Training on "Basic Knowledge of Wastewater Treatment Systems'
Technical workshop on "Knowledge Management and
Innovation Management of the Wastewater Management
Authority", Fiscal Year 2020

Technical workshop on "Knowledge and Innovation
Management" and "Human Capital Management of the
Wastewater Management Authority", Fiscal Year 2020
Technical workshop on "Knowledge and Innovation
Management and Human Capital Management of the
Wastewater Management Authority", Fiscal year 2020
Technical workshop on "Focus on Stakeholders and
Customers", Fiscal Year 2020

Training on "Contract Management"

Activity for listening and exchanging learning experiences
according to the knowledge management process of the
Wastewater Management Authority

Technical workshop on "TOR Preparation”

Training on Strategic Planning (SP)

Training on Risk Management and Internal Control (RM & IC)
Training on Human Capital Management (HCM)

Training on Knowledge Management and Innovation (KM & IM)
Integrity & Transparency Assessment (ITA) activities for
assessing the integrity and transparency of the operations of
the public sector organizations conducted by the Wastewater
Management Authority

Training on organizational innovation management

Training on Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562 (2019)
(PDPA)

Training on customer feedback and complaint management
of the Provincial Waterworks Authority

Training on the evaluation of organizational greenhouse gas
emissions for carbon neutrality

Training on the Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562 (2019)
(PDPA) application

Seminar on Core Business Enablers assessment criteria and
management processes for the Fiscal Year 2023 of state
enterprises via electronic media

Training on "Personal Data Flow within Each Organization" and
"Data Processing Recordings"

Training on "iDoxcons Program Usage"

Training on "Automatic Response System (Chatbot) Usage and
Admin Response System"

Training on "Greenhouse Gas Management"

Strategic Planning overview training on Core Business Enablers
Training on "iDoxcons Program Usage" (latest update)

"Public Economics Management for Senior Executives, 15th
Edition" course at the King Prajadhipok's Institute
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Policy and Remuneration for Chief Executives

The calculation and payment of remuneration for the Wastewater Management Authority
executives followed the cabinet resolution on 13 June 2000, regarding the guidelines and procedures for
chief executives, whereby the Ministry of Finance is consulted on the calculation of the remuneration
and other employment benefits. The criteria for the calculation are as follows: 1) conformity with the
Ministry of Interior’s policy, 2) performance of the WMA, and 3) management of the organization as
approved by the Wastewater Management Authority Committee.

The remuneration of Deputy Director Generals and other directors followed the salary structure
as approved by the Wastewater Management Authority Committee. Furthermore, other compensations
included a monthly salary, bonus, company car, other benefits and welfare according to the regulations

of the Wastewater Management Authority.

Remuneration for executives of the Wastewater Management Authority, 2023
unit : Million baht

Remuneration for Executives Amount

Salary 10.93

Bonus -
Meeting Allowance 0.16
Company car compensation 1.30
Total 12.39
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WUSKISS:QU 8 YovooAMSYamMsLNide
Executive Members of the Wastewater Management Authority

UWEDESSWIDA aWNdMN ULAJVIY YOFISSTU
Ms. Sunpangdee Lamkitcha Mrs. Duangkae Yongsuwan
wouoemMs drinasovdoumelu T e L A"
Director of Internal Audit Office SnunMsKoKINNoUS 8 SUWUS

Director of Director's Office
Acting Head of Public Relations Division

ugnaG Ssaslay ungUdrutuwaul SunsSISTydy
Mr. Kiiti Teerasoradech Mr. Pannapat Chuncharoensook
@l'z"ssamtydwumsﬁqmslhéa WOWDIMSWIIWIUNODANS
Wastewater Management Specialist Director of Organization Development Department
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SASosn3weuuND Sordok U&12dsuuUn dunsay ungassnd ywauln
Acting Sub Lt. Pattanapoom Ms. Woranan Jandanu Mr. Atirak Bupachanto
Angsusingha SnumswausgMswraUrys SUMSINUWSUDEMSWIY
WoudeMS lta:nsidu Samsthide 1
WhauUsSKISMsdaIusgla Acting Director of Accounting Acting Director of
Director of Fee Collection and Finance Department Wastewater Management
Management Department Department 1

ungouwus 1iglwsynand ungouna tkaudryoyn

Mr. Anupand Tiapairatkulkit Mr. Anukul Laempanya
WoWDENSWIYSFONSSY SNUIMISUNUWSUDIMSWIYSUDYNS

§nmmsvjé‘mu:)an'\svihaé'on‘\sﬁ‘uéa 2 Acting Director of General

Director of Engineering Department Administration Department

Acting Director of Wastewater Management
Department 2
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Business Conditions, Plans, and Strategies

The situation regarding water resources and wastewater is a critical issue that many parties are
concerned with in implementing plans and measures. These efforts aim to conserve, restore, and manage
sustainable use, with the involvement of stakeholders from all sectors. The National Strategy B.E. 2560-
2580 (2018-2037) and the Master Plan under the National Reform Plan (Revised Edition) and the 13"
National Economic and Social Development Plan B.E. 2566-2570 (2023 - 2027) provide guidelines for
development in the natural resources and environmental sectors. In addition, according to water quality
survey data from the Pollution Control Department in 2021 (Source: Thailand Pollution Situation Report
B.E. 2564 (2021)), it was found that the water quality of the country's 59 main rivers and 6 lentic habitats
falls within the categories of excellent (2%), good (40%), fair (44%), and deteriorated (14%). Consequently,
addressing water quality issues has become an urgent national mission that must be promptly pursued.
The Ministry of Interior has prioritized policies for addressing wastewater issues, focusing on reducing
wastewater discharge from sources and controlling wastewater quality to meet accepted standards.
Community wastewater management has been designated as a key priority in the government's agenda,
with the goal of treating community wastewater to meet standard quality before releasing it into public
water sources. The Ministry of Interior has delegated authority to the Wastewater Management Authority,
which has been transferred under the supervision of the Ministry, to establish comprehensive wastewater
treatment systems and provide management services to improve, restore, and efficiently manage
community wastewater treatment systems to meet standards.

The Wastewater Management Authority is a state enterprise under the Ministry of Interior. Its
objectives include establishing comprehensive wastewater treatment systems for wastewater management
areas and providing management services for wastewater treatment systems both within and outside
wastewater management areas. This includes continuous services related to efficient wastewater
management practices economically. On September 22, 2020, the Cabinet approved the designation
of wastewater management areas for the Wastewater Management Authority to cover all provinces in
Thailand. This will support the organization's mission in addressing the country's water pollution issues,
enabling it to efficiently manage community wastewater for local authorities nationwide. This plays a
crucial role in accelerating the development of the country's wastewater management system to meet
standards and efficiency, preparing for preventing and addressing water pollution problems affecting public
health, quality of life, economy, and environment in a timely manner.

According to nationwide community wastewater volume data, approximately 9.50 million cubic
meters per day of wastewater is generated. Of this, 4.60 million cubic meters per day, or 48% of the total
community wastewater volume, undergo treatment by wastewater treatment systems installed according
to building control laws. These systems are able to naturally rehabilitate and do not negatively impact
water sources' quality. Furthermore, 3.20 million cubic meters per day, or 349%, are treated by combined
community wastewater treatment systems managed by local government organizations, totaling 105 sites.
However, there remains 1.70 million cubic meters per day, or 18%, of untreated community wastewater,
which adversely affects the water quality of various water sources.

The Wastewater Management Authority has developed a 20-Year Operational Plan for Community
Wastewater Management B.E. 2561 — 2580 (2018 - 2037). This plan will serve as a guideline for efficient
management and resolution of wastewater issues in the country. The plan prioritizes target areas for
community wastewater management and the construction of wastewater treatment systems in 464
local government organizations, totaling 780 sites. It aims to increase the capacity to treat community
wastewater by an additional 1.70 million cubic meters per day. This will help improve the water quality of
59 main rivers and 6 lentic habitats, which currently have deteriorating or barely acceptable water quality,
to meet acceptable standards. Additionally, it is expected to benefit a population of 10.00 million people
economically, in terms of tourism, and in health due to improved water quality.
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Summary of the Wastewater Management Authority’s Operations
for the Fiscal Year 2023 (October 1" 2022- September 30" 2023)

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) had the mission to establish comprehensive
wastewater treatment systems for wastewater management areas and provide management services for
wastewater treatment systems both within and outside wastewater management areas. This includes
continuous services related to efficient wastewater management practices economically.

In the fiscal year 2023, the WMA received a budget of 747.3941 million baht to carry out its operations.

Targets

Quantity Achieve a treated wastewater volume meeting wastewater discharge standards from
community wastewater treatment systems of 60.00 million cubic meters.

Quality Ensure post-treatment wastewater quality meets the standards set by community
wastewater treatment systems, with:

- Rehabilitation and management of wastewater treatment systems project: not less than 99.95%

- Royal Initiatives project: not less than 99.95%

- Construction of water quality management centers project: not less than 96.00%

Performance

1. Performance compared to objectives for the fiscal year 2023

Quantity: The treated wastewater volume met the standards from community wastewater
treatment systems, totaling 62.41 million cubic meters, which is equivalent to 104.02% of the
organizational target. (Data as of 30 September 2023)

Quality: The post-treatment wastewater quality met the standards set by community wastewater
treatment systems, with:

- Rehabilitation and management of wastewater treatment systems project: not less than 100.00%

- Royal Initiatives project: not less than 100.00%

- Construction of water quality management centers project: not less than 94.74%

(Data as of 30 September 2023)

2. Rehabilitation and Management of Wastewater Treatment Systems for 26 Local Government
Organizations as follows:
1. Phayao Municipality, Phayao Province
. Lampang Municipality, Lampang Province
. Chiang Mai Municipality, Chiang Mai Province
. Mae Sot Municipality, Tak Province

2
3
a
5. Prachuap Khiri Khan Municipality, Prachuap Khiri Khan Province
6. Krabi Municipality, Krabi Province

7. Songkhla Municipality, Songkhla Province

8. Si Racha Municipality, Chonburi Province

9. Bang Sare Subdistrict Municipality, Chonburi Province

10. Ban Phe Subdistrict Municipality, Rayong Province
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11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.

Udon Thani Municipality, Udon Thani Province
Mukdahan Municipality, Mukdahan Province

Amnat Charoen Municipality, Amnat Charoen Province
Ban Pong Municipality, Ratchaburi Province

Kamphaeng Phet Municipality, Kamphaeng Phet Province
Sing Buri Municipality, Sing Buri Province

Pak Chong Municipality, Nakhon Ratchasima Province
Mab Ta Phut Municipality, Rayong Province

Kanchanaburi Municipality, Kanchanaburi Province
Buriram Municipality, Buriram Province

Kalasin Municipality, Kalasin Province

Cha-am Municipality, Phetchaburi Province

Ao Nang Subdistrict Administration Organization (Phi Phi Island), Krabi Province
Ratchaburi Municipality, Ratchaburi Province

Phitsanulok Municipality, Phitsanulok Province

Trang Municipality, Trang Province

The cumulative treated wastewater volume: 59.16 million cubic meters (October 2022 -
September 2023)

3. Construction and Management of Water Quality Management Centers and Wastewater

Treatment Systems under the Royal Initiatives Project, totaling 34 areas

3.1 Water Quality Management Center Construction Project, comprising 27 areas as follows:

1. Nakhon Chai Si Subdistrict Municipality, Nakhon Pathom Province
Bang Pla Subdistrict Municipality, Samut Sakhon Province (Site 1)
Bang Pla Subdistrict Municipality, Samut Sakhon Province (Site 2)
Bang Ya Phraek Subdistrict Municipality, Samut Sakhon Province
Tha Chin Subdistrict Municipality, Samut Sakhon Province

Bang Len Subdistrict Municipality, Nakhon Pathom Province

Rai Khing Municipality, Nakhon Pathom Province

Sam Khwai Phuak Municipality, Nakhon Pathom Province

Wichit Subdistrict Municipality, Phuket Province

10.Bang Bua Thong Municipality, Nonthaburi Province

0 o N oy RN

11.Pak Nam Pran Subdistrict Municipality, Prachuap Khiri Khan Province
12.Rawai Subdistrict Municipality, Phuket Province

13.Phrom Lok Subdistrict Municipality, Nakhon Si Thammarat Province
14.Rayong Municipality, Rayong Province

15.Kamala Subdistrict Administration Organization, Phuket Province
16.Bang Phli Subdistrict Municipality, Samut Prakan Province

17.Sam Phran Municipality, Nakhon Pathom Province

18.Chalong Subdistrict Municipality, Phuket Province
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19.Mueang Rayong Municipality, Rayong Province

20.0m Yai Subdistrict Municipality, Nakhon Pathom Province

21.Lam Pho Subdistrict Administration Organization, Nonthaburi Province

22.Kamphaeng Saen Subdistrict Administration Organization, Nakhon Pathom Province

23.Phraek Sa Municipality, Samut Prakan Province

24.Ban Chang Subdistrict Municipality, Rayong Province

25.Khao Noi Subdistrict Municipality, Prachuap Khiri Khan Province

26.Plai Bang Subdistrict Municipality, Nonthaburi Province

27.Pak Phanang Municipality, Nakhon Si Thammarat Province

The cumulative treated wastewater volume: 2.94 million cubic meters (October 2022 -
September 2023)

3.2 Wastewater Treatment Systems in Project Areas under the Royal Initiatives Project, totaling 7 areas:

1. Pak Phanang Municipality, near Wat Nakhawari, Nakhon Si Thammarat Province

2. Pak Phanang Municipality, near the prison, Nakhon Si Thammarat Province

3. Hua Sai Subdistrict Municipality, along Sukhaphiban 1 Road, Nakhon Si Thammarat Province

4. Hua Sai Subdistrict Municipality, behind the fresh market, Nakhon Si Thammarat Province

5. Cha-uat Subdistrict Municipality, near Wat Sri Maprasit, Nakhon Si Thammarat Province

6. Hoo-Long Subdistrict Administration Organization, in the HoiRak-SriSomboon community,
Nakhon Si Thammarat Province

7. Sirindhorn International Environmental Park, Phetchaburi Province

The cumulative treated wastewater volume: 0.31 million cubic meters (October 2022 -
September 2023)

4. The Action Plan of the Wastewater Management Authority for Fiscal Year 2024

The Wastewater Management Authority, as a government agency with missions and responsibilities
in wastewater management, promotes and executes various activities to tackle pollution concerns and
restore water quality in Thailand. The following four targets are established:

1. Organizational development and human resource development

2. Construction of a water quality management center

3. Rehabilitation of wastewater treatment systems

4. Management of wastewater treatment systems

The Wastewater Management Authority had prepared work plans and projects to support these
targets as follows:

1. The organizational development and performance of the personnel by the organizational
management have been developed completely in all aspects in order to operate efficiently to be inlined
with government policies and related plans as well as supporting and contributing to the operations of
the organization as follows:

1.1 Develop knowledge management (KM) of the organization

1.2 Develop organizational innovation

1.3 Developing and establishing an information equipment system for organizational management.
1.4 Integration of research and development cooperation

1.5 Evaluation of the organization’s eco-efficiency
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1.6 Reuse of treated wastewater

1.7 Use of renewable energy in wastewater treatment system management
1.8 Promotion of good governance (CG)

1.9 Development of organizational management (8 Enablers)

1.10 Strengthening corporate values and culture

1.11 Creation of organizational engagement

2. Construction of a water quality management center, whereby the Water Management Authority
designs the underground area for wastewater treatment systems and transforms the surface landscape
into green areas, promoting environmental friendliness, public acceptance, and community shared
benefits.

3. Rehabilitation of 118 existing wastewater treatment systems.

4. Wastewater treatment system management: The Wastewater Management Authority oversees
the operation of 60 existing municipal wastewater treatment systems.

However, in the operation of the Wastewater Management Authority in each area, there are
operations including the wastewater treatment techniques which will be implemented to reuse treated
wastewater, raise awareness, and provide knowledge and understanding on wastewater management to
the people and youth as well as laying out suidelines for collecting wastewater treatment fees. In order
to comply with government policy, including the development of the digital system “Thailand 4.0” by
establishing the Wastewater Monitoring Center of Thailand. The office is located at Lao Peng Nguan
Building 1, 24th Floor, Vibhavadi Rangsit Road, Chomphon Subdistrict, Chatuchak District, Bangkok 10900
for supervising wastewater treatment system management in order to solve water quality problems for

the greatest benefit and developing wastewater management works efficiently.
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WMA Corporate Social Responsibility in Process: CSR In Process

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) is aware of the organization’s mission along with
social and environmental responsibilities. Therefore, to implement the works regarding social and
environmental responsibility for maximum efficiency and effectiveness, WMA has prescribed CSR in the
process to be in line with the mission as follows:

1. Commit to developing wastewater management services according to the main mission of the
organization by adhering to the principles of good corporate governance, ethics, fair business practices,
transparency, and accountability. Including, adhering to the rule of law, treating all customers equally,
taking into account basic human rights in having a good quality of life from a standard quality water
source, be responsible for society, community, and environment by taking into account all stakeholders.

2. Cultivate and create consciousness among employees at all levels to perform duties with
the responsibility to society, community, and environment until the corporate culture is a transparent
organization with morality and ethics, including improving the quality of life as well as employee well-
being, promoting a working atmosphere and environment to make employees happy at work along with
developing their potential to work effectively in response to the organization’s goals.

3. Support social, community, and environmental responsibility operations in the core processes
of the business (CSR in Process), treating wastewater to meet the proper quality before discharging it to
society, reducing the amount of greenhouse gas emissions in the wastewater treatment system by taking
into account the prevention of impacts that may occur from the operations of the organization to society
and the environment by adapting the ISO 26000 standard for social and environmental responsibility in
the CSR in Process as a guideline for decision making and carrying out various activities. CSR in Process
consists of 7 principles; good governance, human rights, labor practices, environment, fair treatment.
consumer issues, community participation, and community development.

4. Promote sustainable development based on the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) sustainability
reporting framework for corporate operations and CSR performance reporting covering economic, social,
and environmental dimensions to increase credibility in reporting to be accepted internationally.

5. Establishing a collaborative network between the Wastewater Management Authority and stakeholders
to drive and implement social and environmental responsibility initiatives, prioritizing community needs and
leveraging the organization’s expertise to execute corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives.

6. The Public Relations Division under the Office of the Director is tasked with promoting and
supporting the organization’s initiatives in corporate social responsibility (CSR) and environmental
sustainability to ensure maximum effectiveness and efficiency. This includes monitoring, evaluating, and
reporting on the progress of CSR initiatives to the Director of the Wastewater Management Authority and
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

In this regard, the Wastewater Management Authority’s personnel must adhere to social
and environmental responsibility policies as a part of their operations. In order for the Wastewater
Management Authority to become an organization that operates all the works with social and environmental

responsibility which is an important foundation for development organization towards sustainability.
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Implementations of social and environmental responsibility

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) has carried out the continued operations with
social and environmental responsibility by adapting the standard on social responsibility ISO 26000 of the
International Organization for Standardization (ISO) as a guideline for the operations. And WMA has set a
policy on social and environmental responsibility (WMA CSR Policy) in order to perform its main mission
with the highest efficiency and effectiveness by solving the country’s wastewater problems, becoming a
high-performance organization, and having network partners to get involved in supporting each other’s
operations in response to the needs of stakeholders. In addition, there is also a sustainable development
report to disseminate and communicate sustainability management guidelines and disclose information
on economic, social, and environmental performance according to the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI

Standard). For more details, please visit WMA’s website at https://www.wma.or.th

Implementation of social responsibility in the economic dimension

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) adheres to public responsibility, creates innovation and
technology as well as emphasizes the personnel of the organization as valuable resources in the development
and driving of the organization to economic stability, comprehensive risk management, and adhering to good
governance and ethics to operate the works with transparency and honesty. In addition, WMA is also accountable
for good corporate governance and management of conflicts of interest towards the implementation of good
governance of the WMA, internal control and internal audit, supply chain management, and procurement.

Implementation of social responsibility in the social dimension

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) considers community wastewater management to
meet the standards with sustainability, including reusing treated wastewater, and the water released into
natural water sources must meet the standards set by the Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment.
In addition, WMA has set up a monitoring and reporting center for wastewater situations in Thailand with
an automatic display of water quality reports and control of machine operation which gives importance to
occupational health and safety at work, including developing the potential of human resources to have the
skills and knowledge to efficiently and effectively manage the wastewater treatment system. In addition,
WMA also focuses on employee benefits and welfare provident funds and preparation for retirement.
Moreover, it has also instilled an organizational culture of cooperation and coordination with other agencies

to extend the results in creating a good quality of life in society in order to live together sustainably.

Corporate Social Responsibility in Environmental Aspect

The Wastewater Management Authority preserves natural resources, rehabilitates, develops, and
manages the wastewater treatment systems operated by Local Administrative Organizations (LAOs),
constructs and manages the wastewater treatment systems, and promotes public participation in
reducing community wastewater problems through community wastewater management capacity
building programs for community leaders, people, and youth in wastewater management areas and
targeted areas in managing the wastewater treatment system. It aims to raise awareness among citizens,
community leaders, youth, and students in the responsible area to pay greater attention to environmental

issues and to expand the networks for the conservation of natural resources in the wastewater management areas.
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Meaning of Royal Volunteerism and
Raising Awareness of Being a Volunteer
to Conserve the Environment by
Managing Household Wastewater with
Basic Grease Trap Systems

On February 11, 2023, the Wastewater
Management Authority, with Miss Chalittha Saelim,
Engineer 5, as a lecturer, presented a lecture on
"The Meaning of Royal Volunteerism and Raising
Awareness of Being a Volunteer to Conserve the
Environment by Managing Household Wastewater
with Basic Grease Trap Systems" to students
of Sritammaraj Educational School, Tha Wang
Subdistrict, Mueang District, Nakhon Si Thammarat
Province. The students gained knowledge and
understanding of volunteerism and raising
awareness to reduce environmental problems
caused by wastewater, as well as the benefits of
using grease trap systems in households.
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Provincial Electricity Authority (PEA)
Officials Conducted a Study Visit on
Customer and Stakeholder Management
Knowledge at the Metropolitan Electricity
Authority (MEA).

On February 27, 2023, at the Metropolitan
Electricity Authority (MEA) headquarters in Klong
Toey, executives and staff from the Wastewater
Management Authority visited to study customer
and stakeholder management knowledge of the
MEA. Mr. Somsak Bamrungwat, Deputy Director of
Organizational Strategy and Sustainability, chaired
the reception for the executives and staff from
the Wastewater Management Authority. During the
visit, an overview of MEA's operations and various

areas such as SM, CM, KM, and IM was presented.
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Project to Promote Knowledge about
Wastewater Management

On March 10, 2023, at the conference
room of Municipality School 5 (Phaholyothin
Ramindra), Ratchaburi Province, the Wastewater
Management Authority conducted a training
program to promote knowledge about wastewater
management. The training was provided to 150
students from Municipality School 5 (Phaholyothin
Ramindra). Mr. Supachok Inthasang, the Director
of the Education Office, honored the event by
presiding over the opening speech. The training
session included lectures on basic wastewater
management knowledge, as well as methods for
constructing grease traps and proper maintenance

of grease trap systems.
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Capacity Building for Community
Wastewater Management for Local
Government Organizations in the 4
Regions, 4th Session (Southern Group)
On April 20, 2023, the Wastewater
Management Authority, with Mr. Kitti Teerasoradech,
an expert in wastewater management, as a
lecturer, conducted training on "Capacity building

for community wastewater management
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for local government organizations in the
4 regions”, 4th session (Southern Group) at
Hotel S22, Surat Thani Province, Surat Thani.
Participants included officials from local
government organizations, the Office of Natural
Resources and Environment, the Environment
and Pollution Control Office, hospital staff, and
private sector entrepreneurs in the area. The

training was successfully completed.



Signing Ceremony of the "Ao Lanta
Covenant for Sustainable Development:
Blue & Green Island”

On April 25, 2023, at the Community
Hall, District Office of Ko Lanta, Ko Lanta
District, Krabi Province. Mr. Amornchai Hiranrat,
Manager of the Krabi Wastewater Management

Branch Office, participated in the meeting along
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with representatives from the Department of
Environmental Quality Promotion, the Department
of Pollution Control, the Department of Marine and
Coastal Resources, and the Andaman Foundation.
They were joined by Koh Lanta District and 45
network partners to sign the covenant. Mr. Paskorn
Boonyalucksana, Governor of Krabi Province,

presided over the ceremony.
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Ceremony for Delivering and Installing
Sink Bowls along with Installing Grease
Trap Systems for Bang Kadee Community
School

On June 27, 2023, the Wastewater
Management Authority, in collaboration with the
Metropolitan Waterworks Authority, organized the
"Water Conservation Unity" project for the year 2023
(3 year). The ceremony involved the delivery and
installation of sink bowls along with the installation
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of grease trap systems for Bang Kadee Community
School, Pathum Thani Province. Discussions and
recommendations on grease trap management
were provided by Ms. Supasri Chumkaew, the
school director. Additionally, financial support was
provided for the school's lunch program, and dolls
were given to kindergarten and primary school
students. Various activities were also conducted,
such as "World-Caring Garbage Disposal" with
students from grades 4 to 6.
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The Wastewater Management Authority
Organized a Training Course on "Control
Techniques and Maintenance of Wastewater
Treatment Systems for Efficiency"

The Wastewater Management Authority
organized a training course on "Control Techniques
and Maintenance of Wastewater Treatment Systems
for Efficiency” at Krungsri River Hotel, Phra Nakhon Si
Ayutthaya Province, on June 22-23, 2023. There were
58 participants from various hospitals attending the
training. The training was honored by Mr. Chalermrit
Takrudnak, an expert in wastewater management, and
Ms. Pusadee Yiamsuwat, Director of the Environmental
and Pollution Control Office No. 6, as guest speakers.
Additionally, the participants had the opportunity to
visit and observe the wastewater treatment system
at Bang Pa-In Hospital, Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya

Province.
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Visiting Wastewater Treatment Systems

On July 19, 2023, at 10:00 AM, Mr. Naris Khamnurak,
Deputy Minister of the Ministry of Interior, inspected the
operations of the water quality management center of
Lampho Subdistrict Administration Organization, Bang
Bua Thong District, Nonthaburi Province. Present at the
inspection were Mr. Porapak Penpas, Deputy Permanent
Secretary of the Ministry of Interior and Chairman of
the Wastewater Management Authority Committee,
Mr. Aphichai Aramsri, Deputy Governor of Nonthaburi

Province, Mr. Surasak Chadabunnak, Mayor of Lampho

Subdistrict Administration Organization, Mr. Somsak Khongram, Secretary of Lampho Subdistrict

Administration Organization, Mr. Chira Wongburana, Director General of the Wastewater Management Authority,

and officials from the Wastewater Management Authority who welcomed and presented information

on the operations of the water quality management center of Lampho Subdistrict Administration

Organization.
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Lecture on the Topic "Understanding
Wastewater Management Methods"
On August 24, 2023, the Wastewater
Management Authority, through the Chiang
Mai Branch Office, conducted a lecture on
"Understanding Wastewater Management
Methods" Mr. Amnad Titasiriviriya, Manager
of the Chiang Mai Branch Office, served
as the lecturer. The lecture took place at the meeting room on the 1* floor of the Public Service Building,

Subdistrict Municipality Office, Sankampaeng District, Chiang Mai Province.
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Signing Ceremony of the Memorandum of Cooperation to Establish a Centralized Wastewater
Treatment System within the Municipal Area of Samut Sakhon City Municipality

On August 30, 2023, the Wastewater Management Authority, represented by Mr. Atirak Bupachanto, Deputy
Director of Operations, participated in the signing ceremony of the memorandum of cooperation to establish
a centralized wastewater treatment system within the municipal area of Samut Sakhon City Municipality. The ceremony

took place at the Panthainorsing Meeting Room (Room 401) in the Provincial Hall of Samut Sakhon Province.
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Wastewater Clinic for Thai People

In the fiscal year 2023, the Wastewater
Management Authority, through its various
branch offices, has conducted activities
under the project "Wastewater Clinic for Thai
People." These activities include promoting
knowledge through lectures on topics such
as "Understanding Wastewater Treatment
Systems and Reducing Wastewater Pollution
in Households" and providing education about
grease traps to students in various schools
located within the areas managed and supervised
by the Wastewater Management Authority.
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On the Occasion of the 28" Anniversary
of the Establishment of the Wastewater
Management Authority, the National Defence
College joined hands with the Wastewater
Management Authority to organize the
"Youth Environmental Conservation" activity.

The National Defence College, together with
the students from the 65" batch and the Wastewater
Management Authority under the Ministry of Interior,
collaborated to organize the "Youth Environmental
Conservation" and "Social Responsibility Activities" on
the occasion of the 28" anniversary of the establishment
of the Wastewater Management Authority. This event
took place at Kasetsart University, Bangkhen Campus,
on August 23, 2023. The ceremony was presided over
by Lieutenant General Phanupong Suwannasat, Deputy
Director of the National Defence College. He praised
and expressed gratitude to all involved in organizing
the event, emphasizing its significant contribution to
society and the environment. The event aimed to raise
awareness among participants about the increasing
importance of wastewater management due to the
growing population and to ensure a better quality of
life for future generations of Thais.
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Regarding Mr. Chaiwat Chunakosum, the Deputy
Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Interior, in his capacity
as the chairman of the social development activities, he
spoke about the origin of the project in conjunction with the
National Defence College's curriculum. The curriculum consists
of various components including classroom education, field
trips, sports competitions, recreational activities, and another
crucial aspect that the students have consistently organized
throughout their studies, which is social development activities.
These activities involve collaborating with the Wastewater
Management Authority under the Ministry of Interior. The
students aim to raise awareness among youth and the public
about environmental conservation, particularly focusing on

Thailand's wastewater management.

In addition to organizing booths to promote understanding
of wastewater treatment and environmental education for
students, batch 65 of the National Defence College also
included fun games and scholarship grants for students. They
also provided sports equipment and grease traps to three
schools: Rittiyawannalai School, Ratchawinit School
Bangkhen, and Horwang School. Before concluding the event,
which had more than 500 participants, batch 65 of the National
Defence College entertained the youth with a mini-concert
featuring the band "Bond Nanon" and closed with a charity
football match between batch 65 students and former Thai
national football players. The match was led by Piyapong
Pue-on, Anurak Srikerd, and Songserm Maperm. They played
against a team led by Saksit Tangthong, Sena Hoi, Tono Phakin,
DJ Puthipong Puthichai Kasetsin, Boy Kongkapan, Tengmo
Pongsophon, and others, representing the Mang-Por-Lor-Klun
Team. Another team, led by Gret Wirinthorn, Kik Danai, John
Bawvo, Kang Chatchawan, and others, represented the Star
Rider team. The match took place at the Insee Chantarasat
Stadium, Kasetsart University Bangkhen Campus.
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Good Governance
of the Wastewater Management Authority

The Wastewater Management Authority has always prioritized good governance principles and
guidelines in accordance with the Principles and Guidelines on Good Governance for State Enterprises,
B.E. 2562 (2019), and the guidelines issued by the State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO), Ministry of
Finance. It is a crucial aspect in fostering organizational sustainability and enhancing organizational
performance. The primary objectives are to oversee, monitor, and supervise individuals who are
authorized to undertake administrative responsibilities to ensure that organization’s resources are used
effectively and efficiently to achieve its objectives. It seeks to provide maximum benefits to stakeholders
in an equitable manner.

The Wastewater Management Authority’s board has recognized the paramount importance
of mechanisms under the principles of Good Corporate Governance. Consequently, a committee
for corporate governance and social responsibility towards society and the environment has been
appointed to oversee and monitor the organization’s operations in line with corporate governance
principles. Policies for good corporate governance and elevating the organization’s standards have
been established to serve as clear frameworks and align with the principles and guidelines for good
governance in state enterprises in 2019 and the practices outlined by the State Enterprise Policy
Commission, including the roles of the public sector, shareholder rights and equality, board of directors,
stakeholders’ roles, sustainability and innovation, information disclosure, risk management, internal
controls, ethics, and performance monitoring categories. Key principles for good corporate governance
have been established as international standards. Furthermore, to ensure the consistent implementation
of policies and guidelines for good corporate governance and to utilize them systematically in the
operations, the Wastewater Management Authority has developed a Corporate Governance and Anti-
Corruption Development Plan for the fiscal years 2023-2027 and an annual Corporate Governance and
Anti-Corruption Action Plan for the fiscal year 2023. These plans serve as frameworks to align operations
with the strategies outlined to drive policies towards their goals as per established practices. The
objectives include promoting awareness for participatory involvement in organizational operations to
enhance transparency and accountability, subject to good corporate governance principles, which are
crucial foundations for sustainable organizational growth. These plans consist of one strategy, two tactics,
and fourteen projects/activities designed to achieve the objectives and targets set forth. They are
estimated to achieve 100% completion to elevate the effectiveness of governance and anti-corruption

measures.
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On December 14, 2022, the Wastewater Management Authority
organized the CG Day event for the fiscal year 2023, focusing on
"Practicing Religious Activities for Public Benefit, Training, and Site Visits
to Wastewater Treatment Systems" at the Water Quality Management
Center of the Sub-district Administration Organization of Lampho
and Lampho Temple, Nonthaburi Province. The main objective was
to learn about wastewater treatment processes at the Water Quality
Management Center of the Sub-district Administration Organization of
Lampho, providing insights into the entire wastewater treatment process
from start to finish, including the utilization of treated water for various
purposes. Additionally, participants learned about the use of alternative
energy sources, particularly solar energy, for generating electricity to
power machinery and equipment in wastewater treatment systems. This
event aimed to foster community participation in developing effective
wastewater treatment systems that are environmentally friendly, while
promoting moral values and ethics among the employees and staff of
the Wastewater Management Authority.
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The Wastewater Management Authority
is participating in the project to develop ethical
organizations with the Ethics Center (a public
organization) in order to create knowledge and
understanding about the concepts, processes,
and key tools of ethical standards. This includes
promoting ethics through positive reinforcement,
applying ethical standards to drive organizational
ethics, and developing organizational ethics
promotion plans. This involves monitoring the
progress of activities according to the ethics
promotion plan to learn from experiences,
strengthen operational capabilities, and support

improvement directions.

162 I‘ s1g0UUsENU 2566 90ANISYANISUNIFY



'
A o oA

WoTun 27 NINYIAY 2566 BIANT
INsUBASINTINAN I N15TULAGEU
BIANTAMSTTN 0 AZLNVEAANTINIAINTA]

UWINYIAY

On July 27, 2023, the Wastewater
Management Authority participated in
a study visit on driving organizational
ethics at the Faculty of Medicine,

Chulalongkorn University.
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The Wastewater Management Authority was awarded the certificate of recognition as an
"Exemplary Ethical Organization" for the year 2022 by the Department of Religious Affairs, in
collaboration with the Ministry of Culture, under the Community Promotion Project for Ethical
Organizations at the district and provincial levels, as part of the National Ethical Promotion Plan
Phase | B.E. 2559 — 2565 (2016-2022). This was to acknowledge exemplary ethical organizations

within various ministries.
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Wastewater Management Authority’s Conflict of Interest Prevention

The Wastewater Management Authority realized the importance of complying with the corporate
governance principle where the operations of staff must be performed with transparency and fairness
which focused on common interest.

The committee of the Wastewater Management Authority has appointed a committee for
corporate governance and social and environmental responsibility, comprising representatives from the
Wastewater Management Authority’s committee who have knowledge and experience in organizational
management based on corporate governance principles. They are independent and impartial, able
to exercise discretion in fulfilling their duties as appointed. Their role is to provide opinions to the
Wastewater Management Authority’s committee in cases where conflicts of interest arise within the
organization.

The Wastewater Management Authority Committee had appointed the Good Governance
Subcommittee comprised of representatives from the Wastewater Management Authority Committee
which has knowledge and experience on managing organization under the good governance principle.
The Subcommittee can exercise their roles with independence and impartial judgment and then report
their viewpoints to the Wastewater Management Authority Committee when conflicts of interest occur
within the organization.

The Wastewater Management Authority stipulates that the executives and staff avoid any action
which may cause conflict of interest. The reporting of conflict of interest of executive and staff must
abide by that rules. Everyone must report the conflict of interest annually and the Office of Internal Audit
has the responsibility to monitor and review the conflict of interest of executives and staff.

During the Fiscal Year 2023, the practice of reporting conflicts of interest was clear and effective
corresponding to the announcement of the Wastewater Management Authority Committee’s policy
on conflicts of interest and to be in line with good governance principles. Staff and employees of the
Wastewater Management Authority had reported conflicts of interest in accordance with the Wastewater
Management Authority’s handbook on conflict of interest and order on Code of Conduct on conflict of

interest. In the fiscal year 2023, it appears that no conflict of interest occurred in the organization.
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Risk Management of the Wastewater Management Authority
for Fiscal Year 2023

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) implements risk management at all levels
throughout the organization in accordance with the criteria/guidelines for risk management and internal
control set by the State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO) of the Ministry of Finance and the international
framework of COSO Enterprise Risk Management - Integrating with Strategy and Performance 2017 (COSO
2017). This emphasizes the importance of creating added value for the organization and integrating risk
management alongside the development of the corporate plan to ensure the risk management plan
is efficient and effective, aligning with the organization's goals and strategies. Additionally, it places
importance on monitoring changing situations, which are significant external factors, as well as emerging
risks, to proactively prepare risk management measures before they impact the organization's operations.

In 2023, the Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) enhanced its organizational risk
management to align with the State Enterprise Assessment Model (SE-AM) criteria as stipulated by the
State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO). This involved analyzing and assessing both internal and external
situations and establishing Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) that cover all significant risks. The aim was to manage
these risks within the organization's acceptable risk level (Risk Appetite: RA) or ensure deviations do
not exceed the accepted risk tolerance (Risk Tolerance: RT). Additionally, WMA focused on fostering an
atmosphere and culture that supports risk management, embedding it as an organizational culture to
add value and build confidence among all stakeholders. Emphasis was placed on allocating resources
and supporting operations appropriately by integrating risk management with the organization's key
processes according to the Governance, Risk Management, and Compliance (GRC) policies. This approach
is essential in promoting the organization's stable and sustainable growth.

Additionally, the WMA has implemented internal control measures in accordance with the
Ministry of Finance's criteria on internal control standards and practices for state agencies, B.E. 2561
(2018). The aim is to promote an internal control system that aligns with risk management. There is
regular monitoring and reporting of the implementation of risk management and internal control plans
to the working group, the Risk Management and Internal Control Subcommittee, and the WMA Board of
Directors every quarter. This approach helps to oversee the organization's risk management and internal
control comprehensively and effectively. Furthermore, the WMA has been tracking, reviewing, and

managing the organization's significant risks, with the key points summarized as follows:

Strategic Risk

The WMA places importance on and formulates strategies to adapt to changes in economic, social,
and technological directions as per the global context. Therefore, the organization reviews its strategies
and operational directions annually and devises operational and action plans that encompass all
situations. Additionally, the WMA promotes and drives environmentally friendly operations, continuously
striving to develop wastewater treatment management processes based on the goal of enhancing the

quality of life for the public.
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Operational Risk

The WMA analyzes and identifies key operational risk management strategies and prepares for
potential risks to ensure that its operations align with the organization's goals and performance indicators.
This includes developing information technology systems to keep pace with current global conditions
and changing situations while maintaining the security of IT systems. WMA emphasizes the importance of
addressing threats and cyber security to enhance cyber security.

Furthermore, the WMA assesses the adequacy of existing control activities and develops a Business
Continuity Plan (BCP) by consideringthe significance of potential operational disruptionsinall dimensionsthat
could severely impact the organization. Therefore, the WMA evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of its
Business Continuity Management (BCM) system to ensure that the BCP covers all scenarios comprehensively.

Financial Risk

The WMA manasges financial risks by emphasizing the implementation of revenue management
measures from the operation of community wastewater treatment systems. It ensures thorough
and efficient financial processes to minimize errors, build stakeholder confidence, and maintain the

organization's financial sustainability.

Compliance Risk

WMA recognizes the impact of changes in laws, regulations, and the challenges arising from
unclear interpretations and misunderstandings due to the complexity of legal provisions. These issues
could affect the organization's operations and image. Therefore, WMA has processes in place to manage
regulatory risks by monitoring the activities of the Audit Committee and the Subcommittee on Legal and
Regulatory Compliance. This ensures systematic governance and management and the adherence to risk
management and internal control responsibilities.

Furthermore, WMA integrates corporate governance practices following the policies on governance,
risk management, and compliance (GRC) to ensure that its operations are well-governed, transparent,
and compliant with internal controls. It thoroughly assesses risks and ensures that operations align with

laws, regulations, and organizational policies.
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Internal Control of the Wastewater Management Authority
for Fiscal Year 2023

The Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) has established internal controls according to the
Ministry of Finance's standards and guidelines for internal control practices for state agencies, B.E. 2561
(2018), in conjunction with the COSO 2013 framework (The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission). To achieve the objectives of internal control, the WMA focuses on integrating risk
management with internal control, promoting a system that harmonizes both effectively. Internal control
systems are adequately and appropriately designed to cover all organizational activities, with continuous
monitoring, evaluation, and improvement. The internal control system comprises five components:

1* Component: Control Environment

2" Component: Risk Assessment

3" Component: Control Activities

4™ Component: Information & Communication
5" Component: Monitoring & Evaluation

For organizational-level internal control assessments, the WMA reviews the Control Self-Assessment
(CSA) documentation for each department at least twice a year to ensure accuracy, completeness, and
the achievement of the following objectives:

Operational Objectives

Reporting Objectives (reliability of financial reporting)

Compliance Objectives (adherence to laws, regulations, and policies)

Additionally, the WMA reviews its internal control policies to remain up-to-date with changing
circumstances. The internal control processes adhere to ethical standards, are transparent, auditable,
and promote the core values of the WMA. Personnel are assigned responsibilities for the performance
results under the internal control system to achieve organizational objectives. The overall internal
control assessment for fiscal year 2023 concluded that the internal control management system is
adequate, appropriate, and systematically implemented across all components. Risks or weaknesses
identified through internal control evaluations are appropriately and promptly addressed, providing

reasonable assurance that the organization's operations will meet the set goals.
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The Audit Committee Report of the Wastewater Management Authority
for Fiscal Year 2023

The Audit Committee of the Wastewater Management Authority was appointed by the Wastewater
Management Authority Committee according to the Order of the Wastewater Management Authority
Committee No. 1/2021 dated March 26, 2021, including:

1. Mr. Panuwat Triyangkulsri Chairman
2. Mr. Mongkol Valyasevi Committee Member
3. Mr. Raksak Suriyaharn Committee Member

Assigned Director of the Office of Internal Audit as Secretary
In the fiscal year 2023, the audit committee held 12 meetings as follows:
1. Meeting No. 1/2022 on Thursday, October 20, 2022

2. Meeting No. 2/2022 on Monday, November 14, 2022

3. Meeting No. 3/2022 on Thursday, December 15, 2022

4. Meeting No. 4/2023 on Tuesday, January 24, 2023

5. Meeting No. 5/2023 on Thursday, February 16, 2023

6. Meeting No. 6/2023 on Thursday, March 16, 2023

7. Meeting No. 7/2023 on Tuesday, April 18, 2023

8. Meeting No. 8/2023 on Tuesday, May 16, 2023

9. Meeting No. 9/2023 on Wednesday, June 21, 2023

10. Meeting No. 10/2023 on Monday, July 24, 2023

11. Meeting No. 11/2023 on Monday, August 21, 2023

12. Meeting No. 12/2023 on Friday, September 1, 2023

The Audit Committee performed duties and responsibilities following the Charter of the Audit
Committee, Operation Manual of the Audit Committee which was approved by the Wastewater
Management Authority Committee, the Ministry of Finance Regulation on Audit Committee and Internal
Audit Unit of the State Enterprise, B.E. 2555 (2012), Revised Work Manual of the Audit Committee in
the State Enterprise, B.E. 2555 (2012), Ministry of Finance Rule on Standard and Criteria for Internal
Audit in Government Agencies, B.E. 2561 (2018), and the Revised Ministry of Finance Rule on Standard
and Criteria for Internal Audit in Government Agencies, B.E. 2562 (2019), Principles and Guidelines for
Good Corporate Governance in State Enterprises, B.E. 2562 (2019), and Guidebook on State Enterprise
Performance Assessment Model (SE-AM). The Audit Committee executed its duties with expertise,
prudence, and independence for the benefit of all stakeholders. They attached great importance to risk
management, good corporate governance, an internal control system, and anti-corruption principles to
achieve the organization’s goal in a transparent manner in 2023. The Audit Committee met twelve times
with officials from the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand, the Office of Financial Audit and
Supplies Administration 17, and high-level executives, as well as observed the operation site, in order to
gather crucial operating information and report to the Wastewater Management Authority Committee.

The report is summarized as follows:
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1. Meetings and Consultations with Auditors and Management

The audit committee conducts meetings and consultations to exchange views with representatives
from the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand, the Financial and Procurement Audit Office No. 17
regarding scopesandwork practices. Thisaims tofacilitate good coordination and reduce redundancy intasks.

Additionally, meetings are held to exchange views with senior management of the Wastewater
Management Authority across all departments, ensuring effective oversight, risk management, internal
controls, and technology and information management. This is done to ensure that the financial reports
of the Wastewater Management Authority are prepared in accordance with accounting principles and
financial reporting standards, with sufficient, complete, and reliable disclosure of information. Furthermore,
the accuracy of financial and accounting data is evaluated, covering asset protection measures to prevent
leakage or loss, ensuring compliance with the organization’s regulations. This is done to ensure that

operations are carried out in accordance with the regulations of the Wastewater Management Authority.

2. Financial Report Review

The Audit Committee reviewed monthly, quarterly, and annual financial reports and analyzed
financial status and performance together with executives, auditors, and the Office of Internal Audit
to ensure that the Wastewater Management Authority’s financial reports were collected on time and
in accordance with the law, accounting principles, and Thai Financial Reporting Standards as well as

providing adequate information disclosure.

3. Good Corporate Governance Review

The Audit Committee examined the performance of executives and employees in compliance
with the Wastewater Management Authority’s Code of Ethics, as well as the Conflict of Interest Reports,
to ensure that good corporate governance has been implemented. It focused on promoting employee
ethics and anti-corruption efforts; assessing operational progress; recognizing operations that adhere to

the principles of good corporate governance; rules and regulations; and advising the Internal Audit Bureau.

4. Audit of Risk Management

The audit committee has examined the risk management practices to ensure that they adhere to
international standards. This includes covering both internal and external risk factors, having effective risk
management plans and strategies in place, and ensuring that the organization can control or mitigate any
potential impacts on its operational objectives. Additionally, the audit committee regularly evaluates the

effectiveness and appropriateness of the risk management processes of the Wastewater Management Authority.

5. Internal Control System Effectiveness Review

The Audit Committee reviewed and monitored the Wastewater Management Authority’s
operations to ensure its sufficiency, effectiveness, and compliance with internal control standards; to
provide reasonable assurance that management is maintained at an acceptable level; including the
establishment of an internal control system and appropriate risk control activities for the executives and
the Internal Audit Office in accordance with the Ministry of Finance Rule on Standards and Criteria for
Internal Audit in Government Agencies, B.E. 2561 (2018); Principles and Guidelines for Good Corporate
Governance in State Enterprises, B.E. 2562 (2019); and the COSO 2013 internal control framework.
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6. Audit Report Examination

The audit committee has reviewed audit reports and follow-up reports on the implementation
of recommendations from the internal audit office. This is done to promote good governance practices,
ensure adequate internal controls, and in the year 2022, the audit committee examined the Enabler
operations of the Wastewater Management Authority according to the new State Enterprise Assessment
Model (SE-AM).

7. Internal Audit Supervision and Development

The Audit Committee granted the Office of Internal Audit autonomy and integrity in its operations.
There are no conflicts of interest between internal auditors and the work being audited. The committee
considered the independence of the Director of the Office of Internal Audit and the fairness of the
Office of Internal Audit, developed internal audit work to meet international standards, supported the
use of information technology to enhance the efficiency of audit work, encouraged internal auditors to
obtain an international auditing certificate, and has been continuously developing professional skills and

learning knowledge of related business and information technology.

8. Maintenance of Audit Committee Quality

The audit committee adheres to its charter, handbook, and reviews to ensure aligcnment with
regulations, criteria, guidelines, and relevant manuals. Additionally, individual and committee self-
assessments were conducted in the fiscal year 2023, and an efficiency enhancement plan for the audit
committee was developed.

The Audit committee made useful recommendations and observations regarding the operations of
the Wastewater Management Authority, which led to the development of operational processes and a
prevention system, as well as increased operational efficiency and effectiveness, and contributed to the
organization’s value creation.

In conclusion, the Audit Committee stated that the Wastewater Management Authority’s financial
report for the year 2023 was prepared in accordance with accounting principles and Thai Financial
Reporting Standards as assessed by the Auditor General’s Office of Thailand. Good corporate governance,
competent risk management, internal control, and effective internal audits were present. The executives
were responsible for ensuring compliance with all laws and regulations. The results indicate that there
are no significant operational difficulties, and the internal audit is generally successful and efficient.

The Audit Committee participated in work and expressed the opinions freely from the Wastewater
Management Authority Committee, as well as received information and good collaboration from all
parties. The committee was responsible for providing executives and participants with candid advice in

order to support the organization’s benefits.

(Mr. Panuwat Triyangkulsri)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Capital and Shareholder Structure
The Wastewater Management Authority is fully owned by the Ministry of Finance.
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Report on the Committee's Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Wastewater Management Authority Committee is responsible for financial reporting by
supervising the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting
Standards. Important information must be disclosed in the financial statements' notes and also certified
by the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand.

The Wastewater Management Authority Committee always prioritizes duties and responsibilities
in accordance with good corporate governance policy to ensure that the organization's operations
are efficient, transparent, and reliable and to establish suitable controlling systems, risk management
systems, and efficient internal control systems. Its purpose is to ensure that accounting information is
accurate, complete, and sufficient, as well as to prevent fraud and materially irregular operations.

The Wastewater Management Authority Committee had the opinion that the financial statements
of the Wastewater Management Authority, which present its financial status and changes in capital and

cash flow, are materially correct in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Mr. Pornpoth Penpas
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of the Wastewater Management Authority
Qualified Opinion

The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has audited the financial statements of the
Wastewater Management Authority (the "entity"), which comprise the statement of financial position as
of September 30, 2023, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand acknowledges that, except for the potential impacts
that may arise from the misrepresentation of material facts, as mentioned in the criteria for expressing a
qualified opinion, the above financial statements accurately represent the financial position, operating
results, and cash flows of the Wastewater Management Authority as of September 30, 2023. These

statements are presented in accordance with applicable financial reporting standards.

Criteria for Expressing a Qualified Opinion

Material Misstatement

According to Note 5.9 to the financial statements, Employee Benefits Obligations, the amount
of THB 19,455,168.80 is reported as non-current liabilities in the statement of financial position as of
September 30, 2023. The Office of the Auditor General found that the presentation of this information is
materially incorrect, as detailed below:

For estimating employee benefits obligations, the company has a policy to review the
assumptions for evaluating employee benefit obligations every three years. In 2023, it was the year to
review the existing assessment report, which covered the fiscal years 2021-2023. Therefore, the company
prepared a new assessment report and disclosed information in accordance with Accounting Standard
No. 19 on Employee Benefits, dated December 12, 2023. Upon review, it was found that the company
reported an employee benefits obligation amount of THB 19,455,168.80. However, the new assessment
report calculated the obligation to be THB 28,209,025.00, showing a difference of THB 8,753,856.20, and
recorded a gain from actuarial estimation of THB 3,674,640.00. The Office of the Auditor General found
the following discrepancies:

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand
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1. The new assessment report showed the present value of the beginning employee benefits
obligation for 2023 as THB 29,881,231.00, whereas the previous report showed THB 23,806,681.00,
resulting in a difference of THB 6,074,550.00. This present value is used as the starting point for estimating
obligations.

2. The new assessment report only calculated retirement benefits for employees and did not
include benefits for death or disability cases.

Based on the above information, the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand cannot determine
the necessary adjustments to the reported figures as of the fiscal year-end 2023. Consequently, it cannot
be assured of the accuracy and completeness of the presentation and disclosure of employee benefits
obligations and actuarial estimation gains in the financial statements for the fiscal year 2023.

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand undertakes auditing according to the Financial
Auditing Standard and the Accounting Auditing Standard. The responsibility of the State Audit Office of
the Kingdom of Thailand is stated in the paragraph on the responsibility of the auditor for the financial
statements in the report of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand. The State Audit Office
of the Kingdom of Thailand is independent from other businesses according to the financial auditing
standard and the Code of Ethics of Professional Accountants as defined by the Federation of Accounting
Professionals with respect to the audit of financial statements. The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of
Thailand has complied with all other ethical responsibilities according to the financial auditing standard
and the Code of Ethical Principles. The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand believes that the

accounting audit evidence received is sufficient and appropriate to use as a criterion for giving an opinion.

Other Information

Executives are responsible for the other information, including information in the annual report
but excluding the financial statements and auditor’s report. The State Audit of the Kingdom of Thailand
expects to receive the annual report after the date of this auditor’s report.

The opinion of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand on the financial statements
does not cover other information and the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand does not assure
the other information.

The responsibility of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand regarding the financial
statements is reading and considering whether other information has significant conflicts with the financial
statements or with the knowledge gained from the audit of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of
Thailand, or it appears that any other information is misrepresented from the matter of evidence or not.

When the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has read the Annual Report, and if the
State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand concludes that the information presented is significantly
contradictory to the facts, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand would communicate this

matter to the person in charge of supervision.

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand
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Responsibility of executives and those responsible for overseeing the Financial Statements
Executives management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these corrected
financial statements to conform with general accounting principles and financial reporting standard
including responsible for internal control that the executives consider for its necessity to prepare its
financial statements without information contradicting the facts regardless of corruption or errors.

In preparing the financial statements, the executives have the responsibilities to assess the
ability of the business to continue its operations, to disclose any matters related to ongoing operations in
accordance as appropriate, and to use the accounting criteria for continued operations, except however,
when the executives intend to liquidate or to stop the operation or are unable continue the operations.

The supervisor is responsible for overseeing the process of preparing financial statements of

the business.

Auditor’s responsibility for auditing the financial statements.

The audit of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand aimed to gain confidence
through reasoning that the financial report as a whole is transparent without information that conflicts
with the facts whether caused by corruption or errors. This report is presented to the auditor including
the opinion of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand. Reasonable confidence is a high level
of confidence but it does not guarantee that the performance of the audit is in accordance with the
financial auditing standard, and accounting auditing standard will be able to detect any information that
is contrary to the facts which are essentially always available. This information may be due to corruption
or error and is considered to be important when each item or combination will affect the decision in
economic judgment of the budget users considering these financial statements.

In the audit of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand in accordance with the
financial auditing standard and the accounting auditing standards, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom
of Thailand used the principles of discretion, observation, and suspicion as a professional throughout the
auditing. The operations of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand include:

To identify and assess the risks of any information that conflicts to the financial statements
whether caused by corruption or errors. Design and implement audit trails to respond to those risks as
appropriate and accounting audit evidence is used to serve as a basis for expressing opinions of the State
Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand. The risk as a result of corruption, is higher than the risk of error.
Since corruption may be about conspiracy, fake documents, intention to ignore data, displays data that
does not match to the facts or internal intervention. To understand the internal control system related
to the auditing in order to design monitoring procedures as appropriate to the situation. It is not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the business internal control.

To assess the appropriateness of accounting policies used by executives and the reasonableness

of accounting estimation and disclosures of related information made by the executives.

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand
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To summarize the appropriateness of applying the accounting criteria for continued
implementation of the executives and from the obtained audit evidence. There are significant uncertainties
regarding an event or situation that may cause significant suspicion to the ability of the business.
It is possible to continue operations or not. If the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand concludes
that there is significant uncertainty, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand must address it
in the report of the Auditor of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand if the disclosure is
insufficient. Opinion of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand will be changed. The conclusion
of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand is based on the accounting audit evidence received
to date in the Auditor’s Report of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand. However, future
events or situations may cause the business to stop operating continuously. To evaluate the presentation,
the structure and content of the consolidated financial statements including the disclosures that
financial statements show list of items and events in a format that makes the information presented
correct as it should.

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has communicated with the important
persons in charge of overseeing with various matters. This includes the scope and period of the planned audit.
Significant issues are encountered from the auditing, including the significant error in the internal control system,
if the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has observed during the audit by the State Audit
Office of the Kingdom of Thailand.

(Mrs. Chittina Siriwatcharakul)

Director of the Bureau of Financial Audit and Procurement Office 17

(Mrs. Duenpen Khamthae)

Auditor, Senior Professional Level

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand
Date of 27" March 2024
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63,866,288.73
103,964,938.33
1,567,054.93
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77,831,636.01

118,845,439.85
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Wastewater Management Authority

Statements of financial position
As of 30" September 2023

Unit : Baht

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Tax receivables

Inventory

Accrued revenue

Investments in Current Assets

Deposits in specialized financial institutions
Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Guarantees on Asset
Buildings and Equipment
Right-of-use Assets
Intangible Assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Total assets

0" September 2023 30" September 2022

5.1 63,866,288.73 121,525,520.64
103,964,938.33 65,092,769.59

1,567,054.93 1,778,356.43

52 54,075,297.13 45,284,220.73
53 77,831,636.01 77,831,636.01
= 989,808.94

54 118,845,439.85 48,843,581.50
420,150,654.98 361,345,893.84

1,133,235.00 1,133,235.00

55 2,084,156,980.82 1,744,362,030.70
5.6 1,075,034.60 1,612,551.80
5.7 12,959,254.86 19,464,960.80
2,099,324,505.28 1,766,572,778.30

2,519,475,160.26

2,127,918,672.14

The footnotes on financial statements are considered an integral part of the financial statements.
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84,481,262.59
36,003,879.52
142,293,200.70

557,221.12
3,395,564.33

30 NUe8Y 2565

183,865,746.30
67,861,910.99
88,066,546.17
989,808.94

534,847.48
3,319,451.43

266,731,128.26

344,638,311.31

61,000.00
4,577,449.95
580,530.62
19,455,168.80
2,127,7120,763.74

66,500.00
2,255,994.46
1,137,751.74

23,236,762.00
1,691,344,022.93

2,152,394,913.11

1,718,041,031.13

2,419,126,041.37 2,062,679,342.44
100,349,118.89 65,239,329.70
100,349,118.89 65,239,329.70

2,519,475,160.26

2,127,918,672.14
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Wastewater Management Authority

Statements of financial position
As of 30" September 2023

Unit : Baht

Liabilities and Owner’s Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable voucher

Accrued expenses

Guarantees

Short-term liabilities

Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities — due within one year

Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable for Employment Guarantee

Long-term provisions

Lease Liabilities

Employee Benefits Liabilities

Deferred Income

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Owner’s Equity

Accumulated Profit

Total Owner’s Equity
Total Liabilities and Owner’s Equity

Remarks 3

84,481,262.59
36,003,879.52
142,293,200.70

58 557,221.12
3,395,564.33

0™ September 2023  30™ September 2022

183,865,746.30
67,861,910.99
88,066,546.17
989,808.94

534,847.48
3,319,451.43

266,731,128.26

344,638,311.31

61,000.00 66,500.00

4,577,449.95 2,255,994.46

5.8 580,530.62 1,137,751.74
59 19,455,168.80 23,236,762.00
5.10 2,127,7120,763.74 1,691,344,022.93
2,152,394,913.11 1,718,041,031.13
2,419,126,041.37 2,062,679,342.44
100,349,118.89 65,239,329.70

100,349,118.89 65,239,329.70

2,519,475,160.26

2,127,918,672.14

The footnotes on financial statements are considered an integral part of the financial statements.

(Mr. Chira Wongburana) (Ms. Woranan Jandanu)

Director-General of the Wastewater Management Authority Deputy Director General for Administration
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69,174,909.38
274,965,422.67
1,019,384.19
953,646.26

30 NUe8Y 2565

50,429,072.77
254,087,835.26
650,355.96
634,203.34

346,113,362.50

305,801,467.33

221,736,307.73
85,212,184.22

211,555,624.77
87,753,671.11

7,671,048.84 15,764,683.60
58,672.52 80,147.80
314,678,213.31 315,154,127.28
31,435,149.19 (9,352,659.95)
3,674,640.00 =
35,109,789.19 (9,352,659.95)




Wastewater Management Authority
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the year ending 30" September 2023

Unit : Baht

Remarks 30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Revenues
Operating Revenue 5.11 69,174,909.38 50,429,072.77
Government Subsidy 5.12 274,965,422.67 254,087,835.26
Interest Revenue 1,019,384.19 650,355.96
Other Revenue 953,646.26 634,203.34

Total Revenue

346,113,362.50

305,801,467.33

Expenses
Operating Expense 5.13 221,736,307.73 211,555,624.77
Administrative Expenses 5.14 85,212,184.22 87,753,671.11
Non-operating Expense 5.15 7,671,048.84 15,764,683.60
Financial Cost 58,672.52 80,147.80
Total Expense 314,678,213.31 315,154,127.28
Net income (loss) for the year 5.16 31,435,149.19 (9,352,659.95)
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial Gains and Losses 3,674,640.00 -
Comprehensive income (loss) for the year 35,109,789.19 (9,352,659.95)

The footnotes on financial statements are considered an integral part of the financial statements.
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Wastewater Management Authority
Statements of Changes in Owner’s Equity
For the year ending 30" September 2023

Unit : Baht

Accumulated Profit

Balance as of 17 October 2021 (as previously reported) 73,557,389.10
Cumulative Effect of the Error Correction 1,081,842.04
Balance as of 1% October 2021 (after revision) 74,639,231.14
Reserve fund from net profit for the fiscal year 2018 (47,241.49)
loss for the year (9,352,659.95)
Balance as of 30" September 2022 65,239,329.70
Balance as of 1* October 2022 65,239,329.70
Other Comprehensive Income - Actuarial Gains and Losses (2,294,093.20)
Profit for the year 31,435,149.19
Balance as of 30« September 2023 29,141,055.99

The footnotes on financial statements are considered an integral part of the financial statements.
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Wastewater Management Authority
Statements of Cash Flow
For the year ending 30" September 2023

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit (loss) for the year 31,435,149.19 (9,352,659.95)
Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities

Changes on Increase (Decrease) in Assets
Other debtors

(38,872,168.74)

Depreciation 118,529,675.67 113,561,127.62
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets 537,517.20 537,517.20
Intangible Assets Amortization 7,156,593.72 7,044,153.13
Estimated Employee Benefit 2,042,250.00 2,236,122.00
Estimated Liabilities 2,321,455.49 1,628,712.70
Gain on Sale of Assets (11,879.24) (78,822.00)
Loss of assets from termination of contracts 802,180.85 1,468,426.51
Accrued Interest (1,019,384.19) (650,355.96)
Financial Cost 58,672.52 80,147.80
Government Subsidy Income (274,965,422.67) (254,087,835.26)
Losses on operations before changes
in operating assets and liabilities (113,113,191.46) (137,613,466.21)

(52,820,107.22)

Inventories 211,301.50 514,008.38
Accrued Revenue (8,694,642.19) 8,176,878.05
Deposits in specialized financial institutions 989,808.94 (989,808.94)
Other Current Assets (70,001,858.35) 17,581,986.07
Guarantees on Asset - 282,000.00
Other Non-Current Assets - 857,718.24

The footnotes on financial statements are considered an integral part of the financial statements.
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Wastewater Management Authority
Statements of Cash Flow
For the year ending 30" September 2023

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Changes on Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities

Accounts Payable Vouchers (99,433,943.71) 150,401,074.07
Accrued Expenses (31,858,031.47) 18,216,788.69
Payment Guarantee 54,226,654.53 21,830,769.27
Other Current Liabilities 76,112.90 (325,765.71)
Accounts Payable for Employment Guarantee (5,500.00) 15,000.00
Estimated long-term liabilities (989,808.94) 1,617,090.70
Employee benefits cash (2,149,203.20) (4,919,682.20)

Net Cash Provided by (used in) Operating Activities (309,614,470.19) 22,824,483.19

Cash flow from Investment Activities

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

Net Cash from Financing Activities
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Increase (Decrease)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of year

Cash used for investments in current financial assets -
922,949.98
(459,126,834.64)
(650,891.78)
11,911.24

Cash received from Interests of Investing Activities
Cash used in Purchase Assets
Cash used in Purchase of Intangible Assets

Cash from Sales of Assets

(3,689,798.21)
680,404.89
(999,308,804.62)
(6,318,024.20)
78,860.00

(458,842,865.20)

(1,008,557,362.14)

Cash flow from financing activities

711,342,163.48
(487,766.35)
(56,293.65)

Proceeds from government
Cash paid for Principal Portion of Lease Liabilities

Cash paid for Interests of Lease Liabilities

1,023,747,472.31
(511,622.00)
(81,898.00)

710,798,103.48

1,023,153,952.31

(57,659,231.91)
121,525,520.64

37,421,073.36
84,104,447.28

63,866,288.73

121,525,520.64

The footnotes on financial statements are considered an integral part of the financial statements.
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Wastewater Management Authority
Footnotes to Financial Statement
For the Fiscal Year ending 30" September 2023

1. General information

Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) was founded under the Royal Decree
Establishing the Wastewater Management Authority B.E. 2538 (1995), which was later amended (No.2) in
1997 and (No.3) in 2005. The objective of its establishment is to provide the central wastewater treatment
systems to treat the wastewater within and outside the wastewater management areas with a service fee
charge, including any other wastewater treatment related services with economic effectiveness.

Wastewater Management Authority (WMA) has the right to conduct survey research,
develop operation plan, design construction, manage and maintain the wastewater treatment system
and the central wastewater treatment system, follow up and assess the wastewater treatment
operational system within and outside the wastewater management areas, and the central wastewater
treatment system within the controlled wastewater management areas. In addition, the organization
also has the right to establish a limited or a public limited company in order to operate the wastewater
management business in the controlled wastewater management areas. The participation by entering
into a business partnership with private or public companies within and outside the Kingdom of Thailand
or international organizations can be done to achieve the benefit of the organization’s business within
the objective framework. However Wastewater Management Authority may hold shares in the limited
company or public limited company not exceeding 30 percent.

The office building is located at 333 Lao Peng Nguan Tower 1, 23 Viphavadee Rangsit
Road, Jomphol, Jatujuk, Bangkok, 10900.

2. Criteria for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

2.1 The Wastewater Management Authority prepared the financial statement for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2023 in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standards under the
Accounting Act, B.E. 2543 (2000), as well as accounting principles and interpretation of the Federation of
Accounting Professions. It conforms to the classification in the financial statements in accordance with the
Department of Business Development’s Notice on the Requirement for a Simplified Financial Statement (No.
3) issued on December 26, 2019.

2.2 In order to prepare financial statements in accordance with the Thai Financial
Reporting Standards, executives must conduct financial estimates and make assumptions that affect
policy formulation and financial reporting in terms of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Actual
results may differ from predictions. Financial estimates and assumptions will be reviewed on a regular
basis. Adjustments to accounting estimates will be recorded in the period in which they are reviewed
and when they are affected in the future. Uncertainty in estimation and significant assumptions in the
application of accounting policies have a substantial effect on the amounts reported in the financial
statements.
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3. New Thai Financial Reporting Standards

3.1 Active Thai Financial Reporting Standards

The Wastewater Management Authority applies the Thai Accounting Standards, the
Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and the Thai Accounting Standards Interpretations issued and revised
by the Federation of Accounting Professions for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022. These documents are modified and improved to conform to International Financial Reporting
Standards, which primarily affect wording, terminology, interpretation, and accounting guidance for users.
The adoption of these Thai Financial Reporting Standards has had no significant effect on the financial
statements of the Wastewater Management Authority.

3.2 Inactive Thai Financial Reporting Standards
During the accounting period, the Federation of Accounting Professions announced
the enforcement number of the Amended Thai Financial Reporting Standards (revised 2022), which
became effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. These documents were
modified and improved to conform to the International Financial Reporting Standards. The Wastewater
Management Authority’s executives have been assessing the impact on the financial statements in
accordance with the forthcoming Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

4. Summary of Accounting Policy

4.1 Accrued Budget Income
Accrued budget income is an income incurred from budget but has not yet been
collected. At the end of the fiscal year, the income will be recorded as the number of unpaid debts and
requisite to pay for these debts.

4.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and equipment are shown as of the acquired date or completed
construction date minus the accumulated depreciation by which the cost of asset is shown separately
in regards to their differences in significance and economic life as of the acquired date or completed
construction date which are as follows:

4.2.1 Assets which cost per unit less than 30,000 Baht are to be fully recognized as
expenses in the acquisition period and assets which cost per unit exceeding 30,000 Baht are to be fully
recognized as assets and registered under the fixed asset register to provide direct control over those
assets according to the Ministry of Finance document Korkor 0511/ Wor. 51 dated April 3, 1991 on the
minimum limit of tangible assets that can be considered expenses on wholly purchased accounts by
creating a fixed assets register for control purposes.

4.2.2 Depreciation is calculated at the asset cost using a straight-line method based
on service life or estimated useful life of the assets as follows:

Service Life
Office Buildings 5-20 Years
Wastewater Treatment Plants 5-30 Years
Pumps/Stations 5-30 Years
Machinery and Equipment 5-10 Years
Centralized Wastewater Pipes and Wastewater Pipelines 5-10 Years
Public Utility System 5-10 Years
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4.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Service Life
Tools and Equipment 5 Years
Office Supplies 5 Years
Vehicles 5 Years
Landscape Works 5 Years

4.2.3Work progression is to be recorded with deferred income earned from the
budget cost of construction.

4.3 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are presented by their cost on the date of transaction or the date of
final arrangement minus the accumulated amortization. The amortization is calculated by the straight-
line method based on the 5-year useful life of the assets.

4.4 Employee Benefits
The Wastewater Management Authority provides post-employment benefits. The
benefits include a severance package (pay) according to labor laws and regulations. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated according to actuarial gains and losses with the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated at a discount rate by which the interest
cost is based on market yields on government bonds.
Actuarial gains and losses are included in other comprehensive income in the
reporting period when they occur.

4.5 Revenue and Expense Recognition
Revenue and expense are recognized on an accrual basis.

4.6 Government Subsidy
4.6.1 Grants related to assets are recognized as accrued revenue and accumulated as
revenue earned by profit or loss under a systemized and practical framework throughout the economic
life of the assets.
4.6.2 Grants related to income are considered as net income and to be reported
separately.

4.7 Provident Fund

The Wastewater Management Authority and staff have set up provident funds pursuant
to the Provident Fund Act, B.E. 2530 (1987), under the name “Registered Thai Munkong Provident Fund”
and, subsequently, on October 1, 2013, the name was changed to “Registered Thai Munkong Master
Pool Provident Fund”. The Wastewater Management Authority employees make contributions at a rate
of between 3 to 15% of their monthly wage, and the Wastewater Management Authority provides grant-
in-aid for its provident fund members at a rate of 9% of their monthly wages from the first month of their
membership throughout their working life. If the employee’s length of employment exceeds 20 years,
the Wastewater Management Authority is required to provide grant-in-aid at 10% of the monthly wage
and recognize it as operating expenses under comprehensive income.
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4.8 Committee and Staff Bonus
The Wastewater Management Authority was classified by the State Enterprise Policy
Office as a non-profit seeking to support enterprises that are funded primarily by the annual government
budget (group 4), according to the State Enterprise Policy Office document Korkor 0804.1/3570, dated
September 16, 2014. The Wastewater Management Authority was evaluated and met the criteria for
bonuses. Therefore, the Wastewater Management Authority assigned bonuses to its committee and staff,
as presented in the statements of comprehensive income.

4.9 Leases

Right-of-use Assets

The Wastewater Management Authority recognizes the right-of-use assets on the
effective date as recorded by depreciated cost, accumulated impairment loss, and cost of right-of-use
assets, comprising the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct cost, and
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date, the Wastewater Management Authority recognizes the
lease liabilities at the present value of the lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the carrying
amount of lease liability will increase to reflect interest on the lease liability, decrease to reflect lease
payments, and be remeasured whenever the lease is reassessed and modified.

Short-term Leases and Leases for which the Underlying Asset is of Low Value

Lease payments for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (a short-term lease)
or for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value will be recognized as expenses on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

4.10 Financial Instruments

Classification and Measurement

Financial assets are measured at their amortized cost or fair value, depending on the
Wastewater Management Authority’s business plan for financial asset management and their contractual cash
flow characteristics.

The Wastewater Management Authority calculates initial financial liabilities at fair value
and transection cost, as well as recognizes interest expenses and amortizes financial liabilities based on the
real interest rate.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Wastewater Management Authority recognized the expected credit loss
measured at the amortized cost or the fair value through other comprehensive income and calculated
the 12-month expected credit loss for financial assets with a low credit risk.
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5. Additional Information

5.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Unit : Baht
Cash 15, 000.00 15,000.00
Current account 1,000.00 1,000.00
Savings Deposits 63,789,288.73 121,443,020.64
Savings Deposits (Employment Guarantee) 61,000.00 66,500.00
Total 63,866,288.73 121,525,520.64

5.2 Accrued Income

Unit : Baht
Grant in Aid Earned from Service Provision 51,213,641.10 44,987,877.81
Accrued Interest 167,192.84 70,758.63
Accrued budget contribution 2,694.463.19 225,584.29
Total 54,075,297.13 45,284,220.73

As of September 30, 2023, there was an outstanding receivable amount of
51,213,641.10 baht from service fees. A portion of this, amounting to 11,539,000.00 baht, is currently

under consideration pending resolution of disputes with the Office of the Attorney General.

5.3 Investment in liquid financial assets
Investment in liquid financial assets as of September 30, 2566 and 2565 amounted
to 77,831,636.01 baht. This includes fixed deposits with a term of 12 months, with interest rates ranging
from 0.75% to 1.95% and 0.70% to 0.75%, respectively.

5.4 Other Current Assets

Unit : Baht
Other debtors 1,512.78 230.82
Loans receivables, advances 137,375.30 3,385,486.71
Prepaid expenses 113,180,871.85 35,348,374.92
Undue input vat 2,148,371.57 10,042,084.84
Suspense account
(Construction Insurance, Temporary Borrowings) 3,377,308.35 67,404.21
Total 118,845,439.85 48,843,581.50
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aunsal - gns 623,717,038.12  (38,142,932.60) (802,208.85)  584,771,896.67
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212 I\ s1g0UUsENU 2566 90ANISYANISUNIFY



5.5 Building and Equipment

As of
October 1*
2022

Building - Cost
Office building

Wastewater Treatment Plants

50,173,997.36

Account Activity

Increase

Decrease

Unit : Baht
As of
September 30"
2023

50,173,997.36

Building - Accumulated depreciation
Office building

Wastewater Treatment Plants

Building - Net

Equipment - Cost

152,960,682.54 5,645,855.40 = 158,606,537.94
203,134,679.90 5,645,855.40 = 208,780,535.30
(16,612,905.29) (4,012,183.48) - (20,625,088.77)
(29,117,225.77) (9,344,714.01) = (38,461,939.78)
(45,730,131.06) (13,356,897.49) = (59,087,028.55)
157,404,548.84 (7,711,042.09) = 149,693,506.75
127,572,178.07 10,470,324.15 = 138,042,502.22

Pipes/Wastewater Pipeline

Pumps/Station 339,127,257.28 24,101,811.89 - 363,229,069.17
Public utility system 157,924,350.51 13,728,798.18 (500,000.00) 171,153,148.69
Landscape works 113,591,886.00 8,150,560.57 - 121,742,446.57
Machinery and Equipment 308,888,642.45 8,055,678.25  (39,452,126.90) 277,492,193.80
Tools and Accessories 41,593,236.59 2,176,938.16 (2,274,565.00) 41,495,609.75
Office Supplies 25,120,755.41 345,734.38 (2,665,451.54) 22,801,038.25
Vehicles 3,627,771.00 - - 3,627,771.00

1,117,446,077.31 67,029,845.58 (44,892,143.44)  1,139,583,779.45

Equipment - Accumulated depreciation

Pipes/Wastewater Pipeline (43,704,578.83)
Pumps/Station (55,958,783.88)
Public utility system (70,217,971.70)
Landscape works (54,412,676.74)
Machinery and Equipment  (210,776,427.07)
Tools and Accessories (36,906,025.81)
Office Supplies (18,124,806.16)
Vehicles (3,627,769.00)

(13,311,965.26)
(23,756,791.78)
(16,470,251.58)
(14,537,816.90)
(32,617,145.04)

(1,732,857.34)

(2,745,950.28)

146,538.41
39,003,437.64
2,274,557.00
2,665,401.54

(57,016,544.09)
(79,715,575.66)
(86,541,684.87)
(68,950,493.64)
(204,390,134.47)
(36,364,326.15)
(18,205,354.90)
(3,627,769.00)

(493,729,039.19)

(105,172,778.18)

44,089,934.59

(554,811,882.78)

Equipment - Net 623,717,038.12

(38,142,932.60)

(802,208.85)

584,771,896.67

Construction in progress 963,240,443.74

454,561,320.60

(68,110,186.94)

1,349,691,577.40

Building and Equipment — Net 1,744,362,030.70

408,707,345.91

(68,912,395.79)

2,084,156,980.82
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1,672,599.22 2,185,971.42
(534,847.48) (513,372.20)
1,137,751.74 1,672,599.22
(557,221.12) (534,847.48)
580,530.62 1,137,751.74




5.6 Right-of-use Assets

Unit : Baht
As of Account Activity As of
October 1% September 30"
2022 Increase Decrease 2023
Vehicles - Cost 2,598,000.00 - - 2,598,000.00
Vehicles -
Accumulated depreciation (985,448.20) (537,517.20) - (1,522,965.40)
Right-of-use Assets - Net 1,612,551.80 (537,517.20) - 1,075,034.60

5.7 Intangible Assets

Unit : Baht
As of Account Activity As of

October 1% September 30"
2022 Increase Decrease 2023

Cost 58,927,592.72 650,891.78  (1,421,720.00) 58,156,764.50
Accumulated amortization  (39,462,631.92) (7,156,593.72) 1,421,716.00 (45,197,509.64)
Intangible Assets - Net 19,464,960.80 (6,505,701.94) (4.00) 12,959,254.86

5.8 Lease Liabilities

Unit : Baht

Lease liabilities at the beginning of the period 1,672,599.22 2,185,971.42
Paid during the accounting period (534,847.48) (513,372.20)
1,137,751.74 1,672,599.22

Less The portion due within one year (557,221.12) (534,847.48)
Lease Liabilities 580,530.62 1,137,751.74
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5.8 Lease Liabilities (Continue)

An analysis of the maturity of the lease payments is as follows:

Unit : Baht
30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Lease Deferred Lease Deferred

Liabilities interest expense Liabilities interest expense
Within a year 593,520.00 (36,298.88)  557,221.12 593,520.00 (58,672.52)  534,847.48
From one to
five year 593,520.00 (12,989.38)  580,530.62  1,187,040.00 (49,288.26) 1,137,751.74
Total 1,187,040.00 (49,288.26) 1,137,751.74 1,780,560.00 (107,960.78) 1,672,599.22

Expenses of leases recognized in profit and loss

Unit : Baht
Depreciation of rights-of-use assets 537,517.20 537,517.20
Interests of lease liabilities 58,672.52 80,147.80
Expenses related to short-term lease contracts 11,883,480.00 11,883,480.00
Expenses of leases for which the underlying asset is 369,792.00 369,792.00

of low value

5.9 Employee benefits Liability
Every three years, the Wastewater Management Authority reviews the assumptions
for evaluating defined benefit obligations. The following are changes in the current value of the defined

benefit obligation:

Unit : Baht
Employee benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 23,236,762.00 25,920,322.20
Current Management Cost 1,617,596.00 1,773,494.00
Interest Charge 424,654.00 462,628.00
Actuarial Profit (3,674,640.00) -
Employee benefits paid during the year (2,149,203.20) (4,919,682.20)
Present Value of Employee Benefit Liability at the
end of the year 19,455,168.80 23,236,762.00
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5.9 Employee benefits Liability (Continue)
actuarial profit
Unit : Baht
30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Change of financial assumptions

- Reduction Rate (4,683,217.00) -
- Salary Increase Rate 207,066.00 -
- Staff rotation rate 2,168,393.00 -
Experience change (1,366,382.00) -
Total (3,674,640.00) =

Expenses recognized in the statements of comprehensive income for year ending
30 September 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Current Management Cost 1,617,596.00 1,773,494.00
Interest Charge 424,654.00 462,628.00
Expenses recognized in the statements of 2,042,250.00 2,236,122.00

comprehensive income

The main assumptions principle for estimation is based on the actuarial basis

30" September 2023  30™ September 2022

Salary Increase Rate (Percentage) 6.13 6.03
Reduction Rate (Percentage) 3.60 1.69
Retirement Age (Year) 60 60

Thai mortality rate announced by the Office of
Insurance Commission (OIC) Year 2017 Year 2017

Sensitivity analysis of the main assumptions principle for estimation is based on the

actuarial basis

Unit : Baht

Changes in .
. Effects on the defined benefit program obligation
assumptions

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Reduction Rate 0.50 0.50 27,044,115 22,644,517 29,461,103 25,063,711
Salary Increase Rate 0.50 0.50 29,414,429 25,240,787 27,075,318 22,471,800
Staff rotation rate 0.50 0.50 26,966,221 22,330,144 29,539,106 25,405,401
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5.10 Deferred income

Unit : Baht

Expected revenue
Subsidies recognized as net assets
Subsidies - Work in progress
Subsidies - Advance Payments

Total

5.11 Operating income

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

747,694,194.25
1,188,421,909.49
191,604,660.00

797,374,199.86
801,437,393.07
92,532,430.00

2,127,720,763.74

1,691,344,022.93

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Contribution Income
Phayao City Municipality
Lampang City Municipality
Mukdahan City Municipality
Mae Sot City Municipality
Udon Thani City Municipality
Kamphaengphet City Municipality
Amnat Charoen City Municipality
Sing Buri City Municipality
Pak Chong City Municipality
Ubon Ratchathani City Municipality
Kalasin City Municipality
Buriram City Municipality
Sriracha City Municipality
Bang saray Subdistrict Municipality
Saensuk City Municipality
Ban Phe Subdistrict Municipality
Map Ta Phut City Municipality
Ban Pong City Municipality
Kanchanaburi City Municipality
Prachuap Khiri Khan City Municipality
Songkhla City Municipality
Hat Yai City Municipality
Krabi City Municipality

2,242,990.65
2,242,990.65
2,052,894.32
1,585,491.08
1,700,411.67
1,401,869.16

785,046.72
1,121,495.32
4,205,607.48
1,816,390.02
2,471,149.00
3,129,655.58
1,614,002.73

312,771.04

894,019.25

684,031.52

678,504.68
3,174,098.33
2,800,063.69
1,971,147.52

1,850,280.35

1,121,495.32
1,121,495.32
2,004,498.78
1,100,800.59
1,989,115.39
1,401,869.16

785,046.72
1,121,495.32
4,205,607.48

291,550.77
1,738,823.87
2,303,317.92
3,224,593.13

984,949.30
4,473,955.22

708,935.39
1,835,665.98

678,504.68
1,196,431.57
2,123,435.43
1,840,865.61
(808,807.48)
1,842,619.74
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5.11 s78laannisaniueu (o)

30 NUBN8U 2566 30 NUBN8YW 2565

WIAUTALI 9L BN

wiAvasnuauIntIused

mmmmﬁaaﬁﬁﬂaﬁawsw

NAUIAUATIZYBN

WAUIasNUaUIUaN

WIAUIARIUAUIIUAN A 2

WAUIALEBILNINEN

WAUTIAAUARLN

wiAUNaLlaglueT e

WAUIARIUAITR

WMAUIARNUARADY

wAUIaAIUaUaIEuUN

DIANITUSINTAIUSUANLNILAL

wiAvIaduagenlngy

wiAauIasuas g

BIANISUSMNTAIUSUANLAN

WIAUIAF VALY

WIAUNIAANUATIUAN

v v & 1 o v B o
seldannisiaiuAttitau e

WAUTALBINSE Y

snglaannsinausy

s1eldannIsEnausy

334

5.12 Ruaanyuaniguna

2,739,681.62

747,663.55
1,570,093.46
1,858,427.02

373,831.77

471,028.04
1,570,093.45
1,906,542.04
1,121,495.32
1,121,495.33
1,162,294.04
1,906,542.04
1,570,093.44
1,570,093.44
1,713,489.87
1,869,158.88
1,906,542.06
1,164,485.96

1,343,676.37

2,7153,270.92

69,174,909.38

1,767,140.88
747,663.56
1,570,093.46
1,064,696.21
373,831.78
471,028.04
1,489,028.83
1,392,834.88
953,116.25
1,121,495.32
492,480.35

935,713.00

763,685.00

50,429,072.77

PUIEY : UM

30 NUEBU 2566 30 NUe8Y 2565

WNEUIANYY
Gugamyuinluitefualddnglunisuimns 75,575,000.00 76,290,400.00
Tufinseldsenissuiiduneliiueamuaniguia 126,986,362.14 152,689,070.53
202,561,362.14 228,979,470.53
UeTedy 72,404,060.53 25,108,364.73
33U 274,965,422.67 254,087,835.26
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5.11 Operating income (Continue)

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Cha Am City Municipality 2,739,681.62 1,767,140.88
Pak Nam Pran City Municipality 747,663.55 747,663.56
Pu Chao Saming Phrai City Municipality 1,570,093.46 1,570,093.46
Rayong City Municipality 1,858,427.02 1,064,696.21
Bang Pla Subdistrict Municipality 373,831.77 373,831.78
Bang Pla Subdistrict Municipality No. 2 471,028.04 471,028.04
Phraek Sa City Municipality 1,570,093.45 1,489,028.83
Lam Pho Subdistrict Municipality 1,906,542.04 1,392,834.88
Muang Mai Bang Bua Thong Municipality 1,121,495.32 953,116.25
Wichit Municipality 1,121,495.33 1,121,495.32
Chalong Municipality 1,162,294.04 492,480.35
Plaibang Municipality 1,906,542.04 -
Kamphaeng Saen Subdistrict Administrative Organization 1,570,093.44 -
Om Yai Municipality 1,570,093.44 -
Rawai Municipality 1,713,489.87 -
Kamala Subdistrict Administrative Organization 1,869,158.88 -
Khao Noi Municipality 1,906,542.06 -
Ban Chang Municipality 1,164,485.96 -
Income from wastewater treatment fees
Krabi City Municipality 1,343,676.37 935,713.00
Income from training
Income from training 2,153,270.92 763,685.00
Total 69,174,909.38 50,429,072.77

5.12 Government Subsidies
Unit : Baht
30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Subsidy Budget

Subsidy for administrative expenses 75,575,000.00 76,290,400.00
Record deferred income from government subsidy 126,986,362.14 152,689,070.53
202,561,362.14 228,979,470.53

Other expenses budget 72,404,060.53 25,108,364.73
Total 274,965,422.67 254,087,835.26

Annual Report 2023 Wastewater Management Authority l\ 223



5.13 A1 l991891nN1SALRUIU
5.13.1 wUIANNANWYMLAIgINe

YUY : U

30 NUEIBY 2566 30 NUEBY 2565

A lgeaiuudsdsau (seuiin)
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Adousnn
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8,962,324.85
1,403,889.28
273,204.10
785,815.69
2,082,967.08
30,410,510.86
81,380.85
111,555,408.09
5,232,574.72

20,811,734.41

380,800.00
10,709,617.65
1,648,828.00
547,520.53
1,946,596.24
34,952,378.77
302,272.02
106,412,972.93
4,481,513.13

20,127,712.02

2,083,267.18 1,389,224.25
1,792,308.80 1,721,756.10
= 6,940.00

= 1,200,929.00
3,698,749.65 2,704,256.60
20,071,872.19 13,342,748.23
2,248,349.55 1,371,947.74
2,738,044.52 576,246.05
1,459,176.84 1,485,990.93
619,528.15 293,730.44
6,924.00 38,826.54
5,377,926.74 5,111,482.36
221,695,957.55 210,754,289.53
= 11,342.00
3,050.00 95,229.50
34,239.58 110,907.98

= 489,000.00

= 46,300.00

= 10,036.00
3,060.60 38,519.76
40,350.18 801,335.24

221,736,307.73

211,555,624.77




5.13 Operating Expenses

5.13.1 Categorized by type of expenses

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Social Operational Expenses
(Wastewater Treatment Plants)
Repairing and Rehabilitation of wastewater systems (Rehab)
Operating Expenses from Construction
Management fees
Durable Articles Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Contracts and Services
Utility Expenses
Materials
Depreciation
Amortization
Social Operational Expenses (Office Branches)
Salary and Benefits
Welfare
Provident Fund
Seminar Training Fee
Bonus
Temporary / Regular Travelling Expenses
Employee / Project Expenses
Office Expenses
Maintenance
Utilities Expenses
Material
Other Expenses
Depreciation

8,962,324.85
1,403,889.28
273,204.10
785,815.69
2,082,967.08
30,410,510.86
81,380.85
111,555,408.09
5,232,574.72

20,811,734.41

380,800.00
10,709,617.65
1,648,828.00
547,520.53
1,946,596.24
34,952,378.77
302,272.02
106,412,972.93
4,481,513.13

20,127,712.02

Total Social Operating Expenses

Learning Center Operational Expenses
(Wastewater Treatment Plants)

Contracts and Services

Material

Depreciation
Learning Center Operational Expenses (Office
Branches)

Employee / Project Expenses

Office Expenses

Maintenance

Depreciation

Total Learning Center Operational Expense

2,083,267.18 1,389,224.25
1,792,308.80 1,721,756.10
= 6,940.00

- 1,200,929.00
3,698,749.65 2,704,256.60
20,071,872.19 13,342,748.23
2,248,349.55 1,371,947.74
2,738,044.52 576,246.05
1,459,176.84 1,485,990.93
619,528.15 293,730.44
6,924.00 38,826.54
5,3717,926.74 5,111,482.36
221,695,957.55 210,754,289.53
- 11,342.00
3,050.00 95,229.50
34,239.58 110,907.98

- 489,000.00

= 46,300.00

= 10,036.00
3,060.60 38,519.76
40,350.18 801,335.24

Total

221,736,307.73

211,555,624.77
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5.13 A1 l91821nN15AUU (59)
5.13.2 WUIANNEINNIUIANITUNLEY

WY - UM
AdadaunazUulssszuutidatinide (Rehab) - @edany
drfaudanisinde avngns

240,500.00 -
syuu Rt AsUAEn WA UaUIaUan 128,400.00 -
drfhaudanisinde avdedl 970,000.00 -
Ainnusansinge avuslaen 222,473.00 -

At usAnTIEY @S 69,000.00 -
Ainanudannstnide ANU11UIATEY 144,450.00 -
dtfeudanisinde aideigd 85,000.00 -
dineudamisunde awlines 961,348.24 -
ssuutiimidevuadn IAUIARTUAU N LN 231,120.00 -
syuuatndsunaEn auiasualsds 22,470.00 -
syuUTAtABUALEN WAUNaRUAULAY 60,883.00 -
szuuhdmhidennndn esdnsuEmsdusuaaeeen 39,269.00 -
guivdmsdanisamnmi maiadiedyiunstmes 57,459.00 -
dineudamsunde @A 159,025.14 -
Aihnusanaings awunaas 56,282.00 -
drfaudanisinde avndhulds 497,485.80 -
dtnaudanisinde amingauys 1,498,980.99 -
drfhaudamsinde avnUszaruasiug 908,173.00 -
drfhausansinde awinsed 1,302,112.92 70,500.00
dtfnudanisinds amuauge - 310,300.00
WmALIasUaYreIn (TnAsunUsans) 35,800.00 -
drfaudanisinde aveen 539,772.01 -
guiUImsdanisamn M mAuIasuatIntU T 668,950.00 -
@uéu%mﬁmmi@mmwﬁw INAUIAUATIZYDY 63,370.75 -
ﬁhmuqmswﬂﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ (Operation Management) - 19&9A3
drfaudanisinde avdedl 1,973,378.42 1,623,783.45
drfnaudanisiide avmeen 3,611,326.77 2,308,330.68
drfnaudaniside avngng 2,078,511.38 2,325,324.19
drfnaudanisinde avusaen 2,444,538.73 1,947,057.82
drfnaudanisinde avfunames 1,685,125.55 1,262,676.87
dhoudanninde awndeivs 2,679,945.35 2,247,611.21
ssuutiiaidevuadn weuiamuaunsiees 1,916,319.40 1,501,269.39
ssvutiaddevuadn weunasmuauiaan 1,388,981.10 1,343,033.60
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5.13 Operating Expenses (Continue)

5.13.2 Categorized by wastewater management offices

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Maintenance and Renovation of wastewater treatment systems-social

Lampang Wastewater Management Branch Office

Bang Pla Small Wastewater Management System

Chiang Mai Wastewater Management Branch Office

Mae Sot Wastewater Management Branch Office

Kamphaengphet Wastewater Management Branch Office

Amnat Charoen Wastewater Management Branch Office

Sing Buri Wastewater Management Branch Office

Pak Chong Wastewater Management Branch Office

Bang Ya Phraek Small Wastewater Management System

Raikhing Small Wastewater Management System

Bang lan Small Wastewater Management System

small wastewater management system, Sam Kwai Phueak

Subdistrict Administrative Organization

Water Quality Management Center Muang Mai Bang Bua Thong

Municipality

Sriracha Wastewater Management Branch Office

Bangsaray Wastewater Management Branch Office

Ban Pong Wastewater Management Branch Office

Kanchanaburi Wastewater Management Branch Office

Prachuap Khiri Khan Wastewater Management Branch Office

Krabi Wastewater Management Branch Office

Sansuk Wastewater Management Branch Office

Cha-Uat Municipality (Si Ma Prasit Temple)

Cha Am Wastewater Management Branch Office

Water Quality Management Center Pak Nam Pran Subdistrict Municipality

Water Quality Management Center Rayong Municipality
Operation Management - social

Chiang Mai Wastewater Management Branch Office

Phayao Wastewater Management Branch Office

Lampang Wastewater Management Branch Office

Mae Sot Wastewater Management Branch Office

Kamphaengphet Wastewater Management Branch Office

Sing Buri Wastewater Management Branch Office

Nakhon Chaisri Small Wastewater Management System

Bang Pla Small Wastewater Management System

Annual Report 2023

240,500.00
128,400.00
970,000.00
222,473.00
69,000.00
144,450.00
85,000.00
961,348.24
231,120.00
22,470.00
60,883.00

39,269.00

57,459.00
159,025.14
56,282.00
497,485.80
1,498,980.99
908,173.00
1,302,112.92
35,800.00
539,772.01
668,950.00
63,370.75

1,973,378.42
3,611,326.77
2,078,511.38
2,444,538.73
1,685,125.55
2,679,945.35
1,916,319.40
1,388,981.10

70,500.00
310,300.00

1,623,783.45
2,308,330.68
2,325,324.19
1,947,057.82
1,262,676.87
2,247,611.21
1,501,269.39
1,343,033.60
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5.13.2 wUIANEIUNUINNTITULEY (6iB)

YUY : U

30 NUB18U 2566 30 NUEBY 2565

AMIUANTEUUUIUIAULEY (Operation Management) - Wadeay (5i2)
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syvutiaindevuadn weuiasiuaunaay
ssvutaidevuindn weuasuaidn
szuuhmhiAenaEn esdmsusmsausUaa AN
AuduImsiansanunmih mavnaidedluuiedmes
dfnaudanininde #UUUANG

1%
o w [ o

dinaudnnsinidy a1wnyauys

1%
o w [ o

dinaudnnisindy awnguasisndl

o w

dinaudnanisdnide awiniwaug

228 I‘ s1g0UUsENU 2566 90ANISYANISUNIFY

4,199,113.56
3,442,585.65
2,224,426.09
1,759,702.73
4,702,270.28
2,004,593.70

907,204.17
2,880,747.27
1,466,681.07
3,171,984.84
1,543,734.68

836,072.03

698,278.88
4,119,873.17

1,706,625.41
184,682.00
321,121.68
513,391.12
714,349.78

3,683,132.86
1,478,243.02
1,755,544.35
1,000,645.18
2,329,867.29
1,931,328.61
1,732,853.08
6,436,924.80
1,974,621.11
2,798,124.34

219,198.41
3,861,823.78

3,194,648.22
3,299,090.42
2,399,921.12
1,817,682.32
5,357,387.37
1,572,412.99
4,661,616.86
2,621,238.42
1,826,444.24
2,581,230.94
1,022,614.97
2,7136,234.67
9,793,064.43
2,106,477.69

1,485,395.62
317,001.00
310,300.66
387,594.32
1,121,904.62

3,495,337.02
1,430,427.96
1,928,376.36
2,872,003.55
2,457,597.00
4,138,620.31
3,806,174.62
5,872,374.33
3,335,030.56
1,912,802.55
1,883,641.90
3,868,762.62



5.13.2 Categorized by wastewater management offices (Continue)

Unit : Baht

Operation Management - social (Continue)
Pak Chong Wastewater Management Branch Office
Udon Thani Wastewater Management Branch Office
Mukdahan Wastewater Management Branch Office
Amnat Charoen Wastewater Management Branch Office
Sriracha Wastewater Management Branch Office
Bangsaray Wastewater Management Branch Office
Sansuk Wastewater Management Branch Office
Ban Phe Wastewater Management Branch Office
Ban Pong Wastewater Management Branch Office
Prachuap Khiri Khan Wastewater Management Branch Office
The improved water quality Sirindhorm Intemational Environmental Park
Songkhla Wastewater Management Branch Office
Hat Yai Wastewater Management Branch Office
Krabi Wastewater Management Branch Office
Nakhon Si Thammarat Wastewater Management Branch Office
- Pak Panang Municipality (Behind the detention center)
- Pak Panang Municipality (Nak Wari school)
- Hua Sai Municipality (Sukapiban 1 Road)
- Hua Sai Municipality (Behind the market)
- Cha-Uat Municipality (Si Ma Prasit Temple)
- Hu Long Subdistrict Municipality
(Hoirak-Srisomboon community)
Bang Ya Phraek Small Wastewater Management System
Tha Chin Small Wastewater Management System
Raikhing Small Wastewater Management System
Bang lan Small Wastewater Management System
Wichit Small Wastewater Management System
small wastewater management system, Sam Kwai Phueak
Subdistrict Administrative Organization
Water Quality Management Center Muang Mai
Bang Bua Thong Municipality
Map Ta Phut Wastewater Management Branch Office
Kanchanaburi Wastewater Management Branch Office
Ubon Ratchathani Wastewater Management Branch Office

Kalasin Wastewater Management Branch Office

4,199,113.56
3,442,585.65
2,224,426.09
1,759,702.73
4,702,270.28
2,004,593.70

907,204.17
2,880,747.27
1,466,681.07
3,171,984.84
1,543,734.68

836,072.03

698,278.88
4,119,873.17

1,706,625.41
184,682.00
321,121.68
513,391.12
714,349.78

3,683,132.86
1,478,243.02
1,755,544.35
1,000,645.18
2,329,867.29
1,931,328.61

1,732,853.08

6,436,924.80
1,974,621.11
2,798,124.34

219,198.41
3,861,823.78

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

3,194,648.22
3,299,090.42
2,399,921.12
1,817,682.32
5,357,387.37
1,572,412.99
4,661,616.86
2,621,238.42
1,826,444.24
2,581,230.94
1,022,614.97
2,736,234.67
9,793,064.43
2,106,477.69

1,485,395.62
317,001.00
310,300.66
387,594.32
1,121,904.62

3,495,337.02
1,430,427.96
1,928,376.36
2,872,003.55
2,457,597.00
4,138,620.31

3,806,174.62

5,872,374.33
3,335,030.56
1,912,802.55
1,883,641.90
3,868,762.62
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5.13.2 WUSANNAITUNUIANITUNEY (D)

YUY : U

30 NUB18Y 2566 30 NUE8Y 2565

AMIUANTEUUUIUAILEY (Operation Management) - 1@adeay (52)
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6,045,798.44
4,597,805.71
6,555,797.03
5,549,131.67
6,758,142.68
8,634,902.73
7,624,852.09
6,116,695.71
5,131,981.70
5,844,501.74
5,977,628.28
7,040,033.64
6,616,734.74
6,864,628.59
6,061,334.34
6,440,573.91
9,406,218.41
8,666,160.78
6,288,876.71
2,131,957.56

2,004.60

14,337.80
19,901.78
6,110.60

221,736,307.73

8,463,417.78
4,605,567.53
6,254,240.57
5,354,289.80
6,773,663.53
8,235,7126.72
7,654,585.78
6,385,032.40
5,964,203.98
5,546,736.85
5,558,886.95
6,658,386.29
5,816,911.84
8,681,508.35
2,736,657.65
5,464,700.49
6,771,786.27
1,869,692.16
1,400,988.62

4,009.10

133,579.50
14,337.80
41,279.78

294,138.16

120,000.00
144,000.00

54,000.00

211,555,624.77



5.13.2 Categorized by wastewater management offices (Continue)
Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Operation Management - social (Continue)

Buriram Wastewater Management Branch Office 6,045,798.44 8,463,417.78
Cha Am Wastewater Management Branch Office 4,597,805.71 4,605,567.53
Water Quality Management Center Pak Nam Pran Subdistrict Municipality 6,555,797.03 6,254,240.57
Water Quality Management Center Phrom Lok Subdistrict Municipality 5,549,131.67 5,354,289.80
Water Quality Management Center Chalong Subdistrict Municipality 6,758,142.68 6,773,663.53
Water Quality Management Center Rayong Municipality 8,634,902.73 8,235,7126.72
Water Quality Management Center Kamala Subdistrict
Administrative Organization 7,624,852.09 7,654,585.78
Rawai Small Wastewater Management System 6,116,695.71 6,385,032.40
Water Quality Management Center Bang Phli Subdistrict Municipality 5,131,981.70 5,964,203.98
Water Quality Management Center Sampran Municipality 5,844 501.74 5,546,736.85
Water Quality Management Center Bang Pla Subdistrict Municipality No. 2 5,977,628.28 5,558,886.95
Water Quality Management Center Mueang
Pu Chao Saming Phrai Municipality 7,040,033.64 6,658,386.29
Water Quality Management Center Om Yai Subdistrict Municipality 6,616,734.74 5,816,911.84
Water Quality Management Center, Phraek Sa Municipality 6,864,628.59 8,681,508.35
Water Quality Management Center, Plaibang Municipality 6,061,334.34 2,7136,657.65
Water Quality Management Center, Kamphaeng Saen Municipality 6,440,573.91 5,464,700.49
Water Quality Management Center, Lum Po Subdistrict
Administrative Organization 9,406,218.41 6,771,786.27
Water Quality Management Center, Khao Noi Municipality 8,666,160.78 1,869,692.16
Water Quality Management Center, Ban Chang Municipality 6,288,876.71 -
Head office 2,131,957.56 1,400,988.62
Laboratory 2,004.60 4,009.10
Operation Management — Learning Center
Sing Buri Wastewater Management Branch Office - 133,579.50
Sriracha Wastewater Management Branch Office 14,337.80 14,337.80
Ban Phe Wastewater Management Branch Office 19,901.78 41,279.78
The improved water quality Sirindhorn International
Environmental Park 6,110.60 294,138.16
Nakhon Si Thammarat Wastewater Management Branch Office
- Pak Panang Municipality (Behind the detention center) - 120,000.00
- Pak Panang Municipality (Nak Wari school) = 144,000.00
- Hu Long Subdistrict Municipality
(Hoirak-Srisomboon community) - 54,000.00
Total 221,736,307.73 211,555,624.77
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36,674,524.14

3,799,756.51
2,792,969.20
3,782,951.28
5,988,608.00
2,135.00
3,351,193.43
2,042,930.73
988,543.92
2,682,525.40
2,546,539.69
1,912,274.18
467,901.36
182,397.52
11,883,480.00
50,627.00
1,559,040.66
537,517.20
1,924,019.00
2,042,250.00

38,244,605.88
3917,811.43
3,021,533.10
1,411,697.43
6,733,525.81
2,287,837.00
5,560,800.43
948,324.07
2,348,403.00
92,973.20
1,524,865.62
521,311.10
11,883,480.00
2,032,979.25
1,887,244.59
537,517.20
2,562,640.00
2,236,122.00

85,212,184.22

87,753,671.11
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808,912.50 11,048,222.39
1,908,500.00 942,500.00
1,830,000.00 600,000.00

802,180.85 1,468,426.51
2,321,455.49 1,705,534.70
7,671,048.84 15,764,683.60




5.14 Administrative Expenses

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Salary and Benefits
Welfare

Provident Fund

Seminar fees

Meeting Allowance
Position certification fee
Bonus

Communication Expenses
Office Expenses
Advertising and Public Relations
Maintenance

Utilities Expenses
Material

Durable Articles Expenses
Office Space Rental
Other Expenses

Depreciation

Depreciation - Right-of-use Assets

Amortization

Employee benefits after departures

Total

36,674,524.14
3,799,756.51
2,792,969.20
3,782,951.28
5,988,608.00
2,135.00
3,351,193.43
2,042,930.73
988,543.92
2,682,525.40
2,546,539.69
1,912,274.18
467,901.36
182,397.52
11,883,480.00
50,627.00
1,559,040.66
537,517.20
1,924,019.00
2,042,250.00

38,244,605.88
3917,811.43
3,021,533.10
1,411,697.43
6,733,525.81
2,287,837.00
5,560,800.43
948,324.07
2,348,403.00
92,973.20
1,524,865.62
521,311.10
11,883,480.00
2,032,979.25
1,887,244.59
537,517.20
2,562,640.00
2,236,122.00

85,212,184.22

87,753,671.11

5.15 Other Non-Operating Expenses

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Consultant Hiring fees
Assessment fees
Audit fees

Losses on assets from termination of agreements

Litication fines
Total

808,912.50 11,048,222.39
1,908,500.00 942,500.00
1,830,000.00 600,000.00

802,180.85 1,468,426.51
2,321,455.49 1,705,534.70

7,671,048.84 15,764,683.60
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5.16 Operating Performance

Unit : Baht

30" September 2023 30" September 2022

Income 346,113,362.50 305,801,467.33
Expense 314,678,213.31 315,154,127.28
Total comprehensive profit (loss) 31,435,149.19 (9,352,659.95)

In the year 2566, the Wastewater Management Authority had a total income of
346,113,362.50 baht, mostly comprising government subsidies and revenue from operations. The
total expenditure amounted to 314,678,213.31 baht, primarily incurred from operational expenses
and management costs. In this year, the organization managed wastewater treatment systems
within a total of 57 areas.

. Chiang Mai Wastewater Management Branch Office

. Phayao Wastewater Management Branch Office

. Lampang Wastewater Management Branch Office

. Mae Sot Wastewater Management Branch Office

. Kamphaengphet Wastewater Management Branch Office
. Sing Buri Wastewater Management Branch Office

. Nakhon Chaisri Small Wastewater Management System

. Bang Pla Small Wastewater Management System

O 00 ~N O U1 A W N =

. Pak Chong Wastewater Management Branch Office

—_
(@)

. Udon Thani Wastewater Management Branch Office

—_
—_

. Mukdahan Wastewater Management Branch Office

—
N

. Amnat Charoen Wastewater Management Branch Office

—_
(SN

. Sriracha Wastewater Management Branch Office

,_\
N

. Bang Saray Wastewater Management Branch Office

—
€]

. Sansuk Wastewater Management Branch Office

—_
(@)

. Ban Phe Wastewater Management Branch Office

—_
-~

. Ban Pong Wastewater Management Branch Office

—_
oo

. Prachuap Khiri Khan Wastewater Management Branch Office

—_
\O

. Wastewater quality Improvement at Sirindhorn International Environmental Park

N
(@)

. Songkhla Wastewater Management Branch Office

N
—

. Hat Yai Wastewater Management Branch Office

N
N

. Krabi Wastewater Management Branch Office

N
(SN

. Nakhon Si Thammarat Wastewater Management Branch Office - Pak Panang Municipality
(Behind the detention center)
24. Nakhon Si Thammarat Wastewater Management Branch Office - Pak Panang Municipality
(Nak Wari school)
25. Nakhon Si Thammarat Wastewater Management Branch Office - Hua Sai Municipality
(Sukapiban 1 Road)
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5.16 Operating Performance (Continue)

26

27

28.

29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.

39.
40.
41.
4z.
43.
a4,
45,

46.
47.

48.
49.
50.
51.
52.
53.

. Nakhon Si Thammarat Wastewater Management Branch Office - Hua Sai Municipality
(Behind the market)

. Nakhon Si Thammarat Wastewater Management Branch Office - Cha-Uat Municipality

(Si Ma Prasit Temple)

Nakhon Si Thammarat Wastewater Management Branch Office - Hu Long Subdistrict Municipality
(Hoirak-Srisomboon community)

Map Ta Phut Wastewater Management Branch Office

Kanchanaburi Wastewater Management Branch Office

Bang Ya Phraek Small Wastewater Management System

Tha Chin Small Wastewater Management System

Raikhing Small Wastewater Management System

Bang lan Small Wastewater Management System

Kalasin Wastewater Management Branch Office

Buriram Wastewater Management Branch Office

Wichit Small Wastewater Management System

small wastewater management system, Sam Kwai Phueak

Subdistrict Administrative Organization

Cha Am Wastewater Management Branch Office

Water Quality Management Center Rayong Municipality

Water Quality Management Center Kamala Subdistrict Administrative Organization
Water Quality Management Center Sampran Municipality

Water Quality Management Center Chalong Subdistrict Municipality

Rawai Small Wastewater Management System

Water Quality Management Center Pak Nam Pran Subdistrict Municipality

Water Quality Management Center Phrom Lok Subdistrict Municipality

Water Quality Management Center Muang Mai Bang Bua Thong Municipality
Water Quality Management Center Bang Phli Subdistrict Municipality

Water Quality Management Center Bang Pla Subdistrict Municipality No. 2

Water Quality Management Center Mueang Pu Chao Saming Phrai Municipality
Water Quality Management Center Om Yai Subdistrict Municipality

Water Quality Management Center, Phraek Sa Municipality

Water Quality Management Center, Lum Po Subdistrict Administrative Organization

54. Water Quality Management Center Kamphaeng Saen Subdistrict Administrative Organization

55
56
57

. Water Quality Management Center, Khao Noi Municipality
. Water Quality Management Center, Plaibang Municipality
. Water Quality Management Center, Ban Chang Municipality

Annual Report 2023 Wastewater Management Authority ’\ 237



6. MsiaiwgoyalngINUINSOLLIONINISIBU

6.1 AULHYINIULATAN

AMUEBIUATAR Muede ANUdsIAnINMsignuiliuURauder mualudyan F9e19

Y

]

reliAnaudsmeuesdnisdnnisihide uazerafieudssiiddyalianmsoufiRmudeuluasdonnas

Tudya ﬁ?faemaiﬁaaﬁmﬁmmsﬂfwLﬁﬂlﬁé’%’wﬁﬁzL‘Eummjﬁ’@iywLﬁmﬁ’ﬂmumué’agiyﬂ
TunsdlvosnssuiaunindnanisGuiuandusuuansgiuensiiu yariaudydves

Funsnddatufinlusunansgiugnnsiiu ferluyadgegavesmnuidesiiaannsliufifnudyan

6.2 AMLAEIRUERTINENLUY
= 1% 1Y) = = a4 aa a - a
ANUEEURsInenly vu1eds ANudssiinannsasusUasmasiinlusuian
Y239 T1nonUelunan FIAIHANTENUABNITATUIIULALNTELARUANVBIDIANITIANITULAY LagBIAng
JnsudstianudesnndnsnendendfyduneiioaiuiuiinsuiaskazRuamuludunsngnimnistu
wyudey agnlsinu AunindgninsRudulvgiidaseendenusuivamusnneain wielidnsnendenanids
Indfeariugnsmantulagiu deussdnisiansunideainitldifanavinyuninistu

6.3 AMULHLIATUININARDS
29ANTFINNTUNEBTNITRANILAIEBIINNNTVINENINAR IR wazdaya

v v
v o

1 Tl o Tudl 30 Aueneu 2566 aaﬁﬂ’ﬁ%’mﬂ’ﬁﬂgmﬁﬂéfﬂizLﬁumiﬂsz«fgﬂﬁwawnmL?%&Nﬁlﬁmﬁﬁaq UdN
uazlddoaguinanudsafinaieglussium

MeasdeamInsUi At ST e aUIaNSRY & Tuil 30 fueneu 2566 Feia1sanen
ﬂizLLaL'Euammmé’fyiy']ﬁé’ﬂ:JﬁmamLﬁugamﬂﬁ]@ﬂu annsonanslieeil

WY UM
__
AlYI18A997Y 15,051,561.73  20,728,984.43 223,333.36 36,003,879.52
wiaumL ey - 557,221.12 580,530.62 - 1,137,751.74
394 - 15,608,782.85 21,309,515.05  223,333.36 37,141,631.26

6.4 yargRsIsuvaaLATaToNIINTTRY
domniedesiomsnmsiudnlngresesdnsdanniideineglussanssesduiion
ponidelndifssfiudnsnondelunain ssdnisdanisindesssanuyargisssuvonaiasiionianiaiiu
TndiAsstuyadaaiyTuandusuuansgiugnisiiu

7. MSzWNWUINYINUSIEDIWIENU

o A ) I3 ) Y a o« ) ' | = | )
o Jui 30 fiugneu 2566 asrmIInnsideiinnsenuseerheyudsdulngneiulasnis
feasauaziiulszdnsamnsusmsdanisaaunninluwaiiundansundeduduoudu 1,583,757,475.56 U

8. MsoyualkoondUNISIBU
a & ve wa ¥ o s o Y aqw a & o oA =
ﬂUﬂ’]'ﬁLﬂuﬁlﬂiU@HﬁJ@ﬁ]’]ﬂBjj@’m’)&m’ﬁ@ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂﬂ’ﬁu’]LﬁEJSL‘W@E)ﬂ\?Uﬂ’ﬁNu LBIUN 27 UUIAU 2567

238 I\ s1g0UUsENU 2566 90ANISYANISUNIFY



6. Disclosure of Information about Financial Instruments

6.1 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the possibility of a loss resulting from a debtor’s failure to comply with the
terms of the contract, which could cause harm to the Wastewater Management Authority, and of the party’s
failure to meet contractual obligations, resulting in the WMA not receiving the full amount owed by the party.
The recognition of financial assets in the financial statement and the book value of
assets recorded in the financial statements is the maximum loss arising from the party’s default on its
contractual obligation.

6.2 Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the possibility of future loss resulting from a change in interest
rates, which affects the Wastewater Management Authority’s operations and cash flow. The WMA is
exposed to a high level of interest rate risk due to bank deposits and investments in current financial
assets. However, the interest rate of significant financial assets fluctuates with the market rate or is fixed
to the current rate so that the Wastewater Management Authority anticipates no monetary loss.

6.3 Liquidity Risk
The Wastewater Management Authority has monitored liquidity risk arising from the
creditor and leases. As of September 30, 2023, the WMA has evaluated the contract concentration risk
and determined that it is low risk.
Details of the payment due date for a financial liability at 30 September 2023, as
recorded from contractual cash flows that are not discounted are present value, can be presented as

follows:
Unit : Baht
I v
1 year 5 year
Accrued expenses 15,051,561.73  20,728,984.43 223,333.36 36,003,879.52
Lease Liabilities - 557,221.12 580,530.62 - 1,137,751.74
Total - 15,608,782.85 21,309,515.05 223,333.36 37,141,631.26

6.4 Fair Value of the Financial Instruments
This is because most of the Wastewater Management Authority’s financial instruments
are short-term and bear interest rates close to market rates; the Wastewater Management Authority
estimates the fair value of financial instruments close to the carrying amount shown in the financial

statement.

7. Obligation on Capital Expenditures
As of September 30, 2023, the Wastewater Management Authority has a total obligation of

1,583,757,475.56 baht for capital expenditures, mostly related to the construction and improvement of water
quality management projects in the wastewater management area’.

8. Issuance of Financial Statements
This financial statement was approved by the Director General of the Wastewater

Management Authority for its issuance on 27 March, 2024.
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